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MISSION
VISION

EVD aims to become the leader to provide value added intelligent 
Transportation System Solutions within Malaysia and ASEAN 
region.

•	 EVD is committed to offer innovation and excellent system 
solution to strive to become the customer’s referred partner.

•	 EVD aims to offer highest quality solution and services to deliver 
excellent system performance.

•	 EVD aims to provide highest level of support and excellent 
customer-oriented services in order to strive for long term 
business relationship with the customer.
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

NEW STATUS AS A PUBLIC LISTED 
COMPANY

This year marked the most significant milestone in the 
corporate history of EVD with our successful listing on 
the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
on July 2022.  We successfully raised RM26.64 million 
from the capital market and to prioritize our utilization 
towards working capital of EVD Group and the 
proposed acquisition of EVD Engineering Group.

The opening share price of 26 sen per ordinary share 
has given the Group a market capitalization of RM99.46 
million and an extended market capitalization of 
RM348.47 million after considering the Redeemable 
Convertible Preference Shares (“RCPS”) and Warrants.  
We are grateful to our shareholders for their confidence 
and trust not only in the leadership but also the 
business model and growth prospects of the Group in 
transportation industry.

2022 IN A GLANCE 

Overall, 2022 had been a challenging year despite the 
easing of Covid-19 restrictions and the re-opening of 
major economies around the world. We are heartened 
that our National Immunization Program has led the 
country into a smooth progression into recovery plan 
where most economy businesses resumed activities 
in the last quarter of 2022.  In accordance to the 
Department of Statistic, Malaysia Gross Domestic 
Product in 2022 grew 8.7% on an expansion in 
domestic demand and resilient exports in comparison 
to 3.1% in 2021.

Dear valued 
shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of EVD Berhad (“EVD or the 
Company”), it is my honour to present to you our first Annual Report 
and Audited Financial Statements of EVD and its subsidiaries 
(“the Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
(“FYE2022”).

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad Bin Syed Abdul Kadir 
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OVERVIEW OF EVD BERHAD FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE

Notwithstanding the challenging economic backdrop, 
the Group for financial year ended 2022 recorded 
revenue of RM96 million and gross profit of RM17.35 
million for the period May 2022 to December 2022. 
There were no comparison figures with the preceding 
period as this was our first year listed in ACE Market.

This was driven by several Mass Rapid Transit projects 
which were the biggest contributors to our overall 
revenue. Profitability wise, Profits After Tax for the 
year came in at RM7.39 million. For further analysis of 
the Group financial performances please refer to the 
Management Discussion and Analysis section of this 
Annual Report.

PROSPECTS

We believe, a good transportation system provides 
benefits to people, businesses, environment and the 
overall economy.  In the past decade, Malaysia has 
made significant advancement toward increasing 
upward social mobility as it strives to become a develop 
nation. Considering that 75% of Malaysia is an urban 
region, having a reliable transportation system is crucial 
to create an impact on our social-economic scenario 
and improved connectivity.

As we enter into the new financial year with optimism, 
we see growth opportunities thanks to our government, 
which dedicated to maintain balance in enhancing 
public transport and stimulate economic activities. 

Our Transport Minister, Antony Loke has also stressed 
that mega and large-scale projects include the Mass 
Rapid Transit 3 (“MRT3”), East Coast Rail Link (“ECRL”) 
and Light Rail Transit 3 (“LRT3”) projects will continue as 
usual under the ruling of our newly formed government 
of Malaysia.

According to MRT Corp’s official website, the MRT3 is 
the last critical route to complete Kuala Lumpur urban 
rail network, of which the line is 50.8km long and runs 
around Kuala Lumpur outskirts.  MRT3’s construction 
is expected to begin in early 2023 and is slated for full 
completion by 2030, while operations for the first phase 
will commence in 2028.

The ECRL, on the other hand, is a double-track railway 
link infrastructure project connecting Port Klang on the 
Straits of Malacca to Kota Baru in northeast Peninsular 
Malaysia, connecting Pahang, Terengganu and 
Kelantan, and to the Central Region of the peninsula’s 
west coast.  Both ECRL and  LRT3 as well as several 
local transportation projects are expected to continue 
according to plan.

On this note, EVD is confident to record steady 
growth for 2023 as we play our role in supporting 
the transportation industry as an ICT system solution 
provider, which focuses primarily on the transportation 
system solutions, capitalizing on the opportunities 
mentioned above.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, l would like to 
extend our heartfelt appreciation to the management 
team and employees of EVD for their continuous 
efforts and dedication. It has been a challenging two 
years for each and everyone of us during the pandemic 
restrictions and l am thankful for the commitment that 
all of you have shown to help EVD stay resilient and 
weather the challenging times. I believe that the worst 
is behind us and that we are on the road to gradual 
recovery.

We would also like to express our gratitude to all our 
shareholders, customers, business associates and 
partners, suppliers and sub-contractors, bankers, 
government authorities and regulators and all other 
stakeholders for their unwavering support and 
confidence in EVD.  

Lastly, a word of thanks to my fellow Board members 
for their collective wisdom and guidance as we steer 
EVD group ahead to greater heights and success.

Sincerely,
Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad Bin Syed Abdul Kadir 
Chairman
  

 

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
(CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS AND OPERATION REVIEW

The Group principally involved in the provision of ICT system solutions for transportation infrastructure. It also offer 
healthcare, integrated security system and engineering services.

The Group progressive and continuous growth is in tandem with the growing economies in the region fuelling the 
need for an ever-growing demand in transportation solutions. Cultivating a broad range of consulting engineering 
knowledge and expertise within an experienced, dynamic and forward looking team of industry professionals, we 
have successfully delivered effective and cost efficient, customer oriented total solutions to various infrastructure 
projects encompassing highways, expressways, railways, integrated gated community security systems, 
telecommunications packages and more.

From holistic system design, actual construction right through to project completion and full operation, we provide 
state-of-the-art turnkey solutions address even the most unique of requirements, integrating services that include 
consulting, design engineering (system, hardware and software), documentation, training, installation, maintenance 
and project management. 

Partnering with global technology partners in the ICT system solution and other related industries and combined 
with an intricate understanding of each market’s requirements, we continually strive to provide not only quality, 
cost-effective solutions, but also solutions that would set new benchmarks of excellent within the transportation 
industry. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW

FINANCIAL RESULTS & FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group is successfully listed on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 1 July 2022.

Our financial and non-financial indicators pertaining to our financial performance and financial position for the FYE 
2022 (announcement period from 1 May 2022 to 31 December 2022) is as follows: -

Our Financial Performance FYE 2022
RM’000

Revenue 95,999

Gross Profit (“GP”) 17,354

Profit Before Taxation (“PBT”) 10,325

Profit After Taxation (“PAT”) 7,392

Gross Profit Margin (%) 18.1%

PBT Margin (%) 10.8%

PAT Margin (%) 7.7%

Revenue By Segment

Transportation 88,774

Others 7,225

Our Financial Position

Total non-current assets 68,009

Total current assets 175,555

Total non-current liabilities 1,356

Total current liabilities 114,182

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company 128,088
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Revenue

Others
8%

Overseas
3% Malaysia 

97%

Transportation 
92%

 Transportation      Others  Malaysia      Overseas

Revenue
 (By Geographical Area)

Total Revenue 2022

The Group recorded revenue of RM96.0 million for FYE 2022. The Group’s revenue mainly derived from the 
provision of transportation system solutions for the followings:-

(i)	 System Solutions for railways and urban rail transit; and
(ii)	 Intelligent Transportation System solutions for roads and highways.

Our Group revenue from this segment of RM88.8 million for the FYE 2022 accounted approximately 92% of the 
total revenue recorded for FYE 2022. 

The business operations of the Group has predominantly been domestic based. Domestic markets contributed 
97% or RM93.5 million to the Group’s total revenue while the remainder came from a traffic management system 
solution project in the Philippines.

Costs and expenses

Total costs and expenses before finance costs for FYE 2022 which amounted to RM90.8 million comprised of the 
following items:

(a)	 Purchases and other direct costs amounted to RM78.6 million, 
(b)	 Selling and marketing expenses amounted to RM0.3 million
(c)	 Administration expenses amounted to RM6.4 million was mainly due to staffs costs and Directors’ remuneration
(d)	 Other expenses amounted to RM6.3 million was mainly due to amortisation of intangible assets.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

Total Costs and Expenses 2022

 Direct Costs     Administration and selling and marketing services     
 Other Expenses

Other 
Expenses 7%

Administration 
and selling 

and marketing 
services

 7%

Direct Costs 
86%
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Other income

Other income of the Group stood at RM5.6 million in 
FYE 2022, mainly due to the recognition of negative 
goodwill or bargain purchase during consolidation of 
RM4.6 million.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance cost of RM0.09 million was mainly 
due to lease liabilities interest and hire purchase interest 
incurred.

Taxation

The income tax expense for the Group was RM2.9 
million.

Profit attributable to Owners of the Company

Profit attributable to Owners of the Company was 
RM7.5 million or 3.01 sen per basic share.

Capital Structure and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total assets stood 
at RM243.6 million. This was attributable to the Group’s 
contract assets, goodwill and trade receivables. The 
Group’s total cash and bank balances as at the close 
of the financial year under review amounted to RM20.3 
million.    

As for the Group’s total liabilities stood at RM115.5 
million due to trade payables, contract liabilities and 
bank borrowings.

ANTICIPATED OR KNOWN RISKS

Competition

The Group competes with other ICT system solutions 
providers primarily for transportation infrastructure 
projects. As such, it experiences substantial 
competition during projects tendering stage. The Group 
is able to leverage on its past technical expertise and 
experience to remain competitive, having participated 
in providing ICT system solutions for key transportation 
infrastructure projects in Malaysia and in Philippines. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, there can be no 
assurance that the Group will be able to continuously 
compete effectively with its peers.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

Dependency on the Transportation Industry

The Group is an ICT system solutions provider, which 
focuses primarily on the transportation system solutions 
and as such, the Group’s business performance 
is correlated with the growth of the transportation 
sector in the markets in which it operates, namely 
Malaysia and the Philippines, as well as markets it 
intends to operate in. As such, a decline in the number 
of new transportation projects in these countries 
would translate into a fall in demand for the Group’s 
transportation system solutions, thereby adversely 
affecting the Group’s business operations and financial 
performance.

As with many businesses worldwide, the transportation 
industry in Malaysia and the Philippines were adversely 
affected during the Covid-19 pandemic and the 
national lockdown. At the present moment, the 
reopening of economy and Government’s continuous 
implementation of transportation infrastructure projects 
identified under the Budget 2023 will create new 
business opportunities but there can be no assurance 
that these future developments will not have a material 
adverse effect on the Group’s business performance.

Project risks

In view of the complexity of the ICT system solutions 
projects undertaken by the Group, the Group is subject 
to changes in the specifications required under these 
projects. As such, the Group is subject to, amongst 
others, the following risks: -

•	 Delay and/or cancellation of projects due to 
unforeseen circumstances such as unexpected 
changes in project requirements or timeline due 
to pandemic and movement restriction. Any delay 
in customers’ expansion projects will accordingly 
affect the implementation of the systems and this 
would affect the recognition of revenues from the 
relevant projects. Transportation infrastructure 
projects, including some of the Group’s present 
projects, were delayed due to the recent pandemic, 
which had a negative impact on the Group’s 
financial performance in the short-term. 

•	 Project cost overruns due to unanticipated 
difficulties encountered during the project 
implementation stage or changes in project 
requirements. These project cost overruns could 
impact the Group’s profitability.

•	 The primary materials used in projects are 
subjected to continuing price fluctuations. These 
prices are subject to market supply and demand 
conditions, prices of its raw materials, prevailing 
energy costs and government regulations. Any 
material change and price fluctuation may result 
in increase of the project costs and may have an 
adverse impact in the project performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency fluctuation

The purchases of hardware and software by the Group are denominated in RM, PHP and USD, while part of the 
revenue of the Group from its foreign customer is denominated in PHP.  In this regard, the Group is exposed to 
foreign currency exchange risk arising particularly from fluctuations in the change rate of USD and PHP against 
RM.  The management of the Group constantly monitor the movement of currencies with the aim of assessing 
such potential exposure/risk with due regard to its payables and receivables denomination in foreign currencies 
and if the need arises, to enter into hedging arrangement for the same.  Nevertheless, there can be no assurance 
that any future fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates will not have a material adverse impact on the 
earnings of the Group.

Financing Risk

The Group’s ability to obtain external financing is subject to various uncertainties, including its future results of 
operations, financial condition and cash flows, the performance of the Malaysian economy and the markets for its 
system solutions, the cost of financing and the condition of financial markets, and the continuing willingness of 
banks to provide new loans. If adequate funding is not available when needed, or is available only on unfavourable 
terms, taking advantage of business opportunities or responding to competitive pressures may become challenging, 
which could have a material and adverse effect on the business, financial condition and results of operations of 
the Group.

Concentration of Customers

The overall composition of the Group’s customers varies from year-to-year, but a significant portion of its annual 
revenue for any given year was contributed by a few major customers. This was mainly due to the following 
reasons:-

~ 	 the large value of each contract secured from major customers as a proportion to its total revenue i.e. a few 
major customers contributed more than 80% of its total revenue;

~ 	 the working capital and staff resources required in the implementation of such contracts; and

~ 	 the long implementation timeframe for each project that generally ranges between two (2) and five (5) years 
from the date of contracts commencement.

As such, any cancellation or variation in project specifications from these customers at any point in time may have 
a material adverse impact on the Group’s business operations and financial performance as the Group may not be 
able to secure replacement projects from other customers to cushion such impact in the respective year.

Nevertheless, the Group undertakes careful evaluation prior to accepting a project and detailed planning prior to 
project commencement as part of its measures to endure timely implementation of the contracts secured.
Dependency on the maintenance or renewal of licences

The validity of the Group’s registration as a Grade 7 (G7) contractor from CIDB and electrical contractor (under 
Class C) from the Energy Commission, as more particularly set out in Section 14, Appendix II(B) of this Explanatory 
Statement-Cum-Circular, are subject to renewal on a periodic basis or re-assessment by the relevant authorities. 
In the event the Group fails to comply with the rules and regulations issued by the governing authorities, such 
licences may be revoked, suspended or not renewed, as well as may result in the imposition of penalties and fines. 
In such circumstances, the Group’s business operations may be disrupted and may accordingly affect its financial 
performance and profitability.

Defect liabilities

The Group is exposed to the risk of defect liability claims by its customers during the defect liability period which 
typically ranges from twelve (12) to twenty-four (24) months after final acceptance by the customers, where it is 
responsible to make good and rectify any defects during such period. In the event of any claim against the Group, 
which could not be sufficiently covered by the product warranty given by the suppliers, for defect in respect of its 
ICT system solutions, the business and financial performance of the Group could be adversely affected.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(CONTINUED)

According to our Department of Statistic, Malaysia 
Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) in 2022 is forecasted 
to grow 8.7% on an expansion in domestic demand 
and resilient exports in comparison to 3.1% in 2021, 
with this the transportation system solutions industry in 
Malaysia stands to benefit from the above-mentioned 
initiatives driven by the Government. 

The Board is optimistic of the long-term prospect 
of the Group in line with the expected growth of the 
transportation system solutions industry in Malaysia. 
The future prospects of the Group are expected to 
be positive in the long term in light of the favourable 
industry outlook over the long term. 

Moving forward, the Group intends to leverage on 
opportunities created by the upcoming mega or large-
scale railway projects namely the last critical route of 
Mass Rapit Transit to complete Kuala Lumpur urban 
rail network, the construction medium capacity Light 
Rail Transit line, road and highway projects in Malaysia.  
The Group plans to focus on recurrence nature of 
revenue in the segment of service and maintenance 
for its passed railway and highway projects that has 
reached the timeline of scheduled maintenance. The 
Group aims to tap into the regional market, particularly 
the South East Asia countries.

Transportation system solutions are ICT system 
solutions that improve the efficiency and safety of 
transportation infrastructure such as railways, urban 
rail transit systems, roads and highways, ports and air 
travel related. The Group seeks to widen its range of 
ICT transportation system solutions, healthcare and 
surveillance systems, to focus on trainings and to 
keep up abreast with latest technological trends and 
advancement as the transportation industry evolves to 
be becoming more efficient and sophisticated. 

With the Group’s track record and technical 
capabilities as well a strong position in the domestic 
transportation industry, we are confident to capture 
market opportunities capitalising in the steady growth 
of the transportation industry in Malaysia and our 
neighbouring countries.

Changes in economic, political and regulatory 
conditions

The Group’s business prospects are dependent, to 
a large extent, on the developments in economic, 
political and regulatory conditions in the markets in 
which it operates, namely Malaysia and the Philippines. 
Any adverse development in such conditions that may 
cause unforeseen forced changes in contract terms 
and conditions, may have a negative impact on the 
prospects of the Group. These adverse developments 
include, among others, downturn in the global and 
Malaysia economies, changes in political leadership, 
changes in interest rates, war, terrorism activities, riots, 
and unfavourable changes in government policies such 
as introduction of new regulations, import restrictions 
and duties, tariffs, licensing regulations or subsidies. 
The recent pandemic has also caused an economic 
slowdown worldwide, including the delay in project 
implementation. Although the Group may take a prudent 
approach to manage these risks internally, however 
these risks are beyond its control. Hence, there can be 
no assurance that any adverse economic, political and 
regulatory changes will not materially affect the Group’s 
business prospects.

FORGING AHEAD 

The Malaysian Government has set an infrastructure 
development budget of US$20.43 billion for 2023. A 
total of 7,615 development projects of all types are 
planned for 2023 under this budget, which represents 
an increase of 25.7% from 2022. One of the major 
road projects being prioritised with the infrastructure 
development programme is the work for Phase 1b of 
the Pan Borneo Sabah Highway in Sabah. Also being 
prioritised will be infrastructure works in rural areas, 
including road maintenance and upgrade works. 

The Twelfth Malaysia Plan also aims to increase public 
transport ridership in Greater Kuala Lumpur or Klang 
Valley by 5% between 2021 and 2025, and increase 
the number of air transport passengers by 20% by 
2025.  Some of the strategies that were announced to 
achieve these targets include improving accessibility to 
public transportation by integrating different modes of 
transport through establishing an ICT platform which 
will use real-time data to co-ordinate and optimise 
travelling schedules, and enhancing efficiency of 
transportation services through upgrading system 
solutions.
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SUSTAINABILITY
STATEMENT

INTRODUCTION

EVD Berhad (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) is pleased to present its Sustainability 
Statement 2022 (“Sustainability Statement”). The Sustainability Statement outlines the Group’s 
efforts in establishing, maintaining and sustaining an Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) 
framework as a good and responsible corporate citizen. The Group recognises the importance of 
incorporating ESG aspects throughout its business operations and is committed to a sustainable 
business for the long term that delivers long-term value to its stakeholders. 

The Group prepared its statement in compliance to ACE Market Listing Requirements and consistent 
to its Safety, Health and Environment, Quality procedures provided under ISO 45001:2018, ISO 
14001:2015 and ISO 9001:2015. This report provides a brief overview of the Group’s initiatives 
undertaken during the year. 

ISO 45001:2018 = Occupational health and safety management systems 

ISO 14001:2015 = Environmental management systems 

ISO 9001:2015 = Quality management systems

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board has overall oversight over sustainability strategies, priorities and targets that promotes sustainable 
business practices that creates long-term value for its shareholders and at the same time ensuring the business 
operates responsibly with full accountability.

The Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director develops sustainable initiatives and oversees its implementation 
under his stewardship. The management team ensures that such sustainable initiatives are implemented and 
embedded all aspects of the operations of the Group.

	
	 The Group provides contracting and project 

management services and implements ICT 
system solutions for the railway and highway 
transportation industry and healthcare sector. The 
Group’s work substantially involves being at work 
sites project managing, observing and instructing 
workers and thus, maintaining stringent health 
and safety standards and policies and quality 
standards is paramount. 

	 The Group through its subsidiary EV-Dynamic 
Sdn. Bhd, was awarded the ISO 14001:2015 and 
ISO 45001:2018 – Safety Health Environment 
Management System certif ication by the 
international standards accreditation body. This 

sets the highest standards that will guide and 
govern work practises at sites that encompasses all 
aspects of safety, health and waste management. 

	 All employees as well as contract and third party 
workers employed by the Group and required to 
be at sites are frequently briefed on the importance 
of adhering to these policies and operating 
standards. During the year, there were no reported 
mishaps and the Group complied to all health and 
safety regulatory laws and regulations.

ECONOMIC       

KEY SUSTAINABILITY AREAS
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ENVIRONMENT        

a)	 Work sites

	 The environment that we work and live in is today 
under threat with global warming. Any initiatives be 
it on a small or on a large scale sets the right tone 
in moving towards reducing carbon emissions. 

	 The Group is cognisant that its operations at work 
sites will have an impact on the environment and 
as such, the Group has taken proactive steps to 
mitigate the impact by managing material wastes 
at work sites. The Group adhered to the policies 
and operating standards under ISO 14001:2015 
and ISO 45001:2018 – Safety Health Environment 
Management System to dispose of material waste. 
In addition to the above, the Group also complied 
with all regulatory laws and regulations during the 
year.  

b)	 Office premises

	 The Group moved to its new corporate premises 
this year and to ensure it contributes to reducing 
the carbon footprint, the Group has undertaken 
these key initiatives:

•	 The windows in the new office have been 
insulated with heat resistant materials. This 
has kept the interior of the office cooler 
away from the heat of the sun resulting in 
less air-conditioning usage. The lighting 
in the office were also replaced with LED 
energy saving bulbs which are longer lasting 
and consumes lower electricity. In addition, 
employees were encouraged to switch off 
the lights and air-conditioning when not in 
use. These initiatives have all led to reduced 
electricity costs; and 

•	 Employees were encouraged not to print 
documents, in a move to reduce excessive 
usage of paper. Instead, documents are 
to be viewed and stored on soft copies in 
the server and only accessed as and when 
required. This has resulted in less usage of 
paper during the year. 

SOCIAL        

	
	 The Group’s activities are predominantly service 

oriented. It does not own substantial tangible 
assets, and regards its employees as its greatest 
asset. Managing talent, staff retention and 
training is a priority for the Group to maintain an 
organisation that contributes to the long-term 
success of the Group. 

	 The Company invested in training and development 
programmes during the year including providing 
on-the-job training, to improve employee skills and 
technical knowledge. The Company constantly 
helps employees to develop their talents by 
challenging and guiding them so that they can 
realise their potential. 

	 The Company does not discriminate and treat 
all employees fairly. Maintaining and providing 
employees with a good work-life balance helps 
create a healthy and safe workplace for all. 
Employees were rewarded based on performance 
in addition to providing universal benefits to 
recognise and appreciate their contribution 
and commitment. Medical benefits, insurance 
coverage and annual leave are made available to 
employees. A proposed stock ownership in the 
form of Employee Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) 
is being developed as a retention initiative. 

	 To contribute more back to the community, the 
Company also provide internship programmes 
to university students. This allows, students first-
hand experience how work life is and how their 
areas of expertise can contribute to the success 
of the Company. 

	 GOVERNANCE     

	
	 Maintaining, inculcating and promoting a culture 

of good corporate governance forms the pillar of 
managing a successful business. The Company 
takes the conduct of its business in an ethical 
and sustainable manner seriously. Employees 
are updated regularly on the Company’s Code 
of Conduct and Work Ethics Policy and the 
importance of acting in a responsible, ethical and 
transparent manner.

	 A Whistleblowing Policy is in place to allow 
employees and members of the public with an 
avenue to report unethical behaviour and business 
practises.  

	 The Group has a zero tolerance policy for corrupt 
practises and strives for the highest standards of 
integrity, openness, and accountability. The Anti-
Bribery and Corruption Policy was implemented 
to provide employees with a guide to deal with 
improper solicitation, bribery and other corrupt 
practises that may arise in the course of business.

	 The Board acknowledges and is aware of the 
shortfall in the Company’s current sustainability 
initiatives and reporting. Notwithstanding the 
above, the Board is cognisant there are always 
areas of improvements and will move forward in 
small incremental steps towards putting a more 
robust sustainability framework as its primary 
focus.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
(CONTINUED)
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PROFILE OF 
DIRECTORS

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad Bin Syed Abdul Kadir, is 
our Chairman and is an Independent Non-Executive 
Director. He chairs the Nomination Committee and is 
a member of the Audit Committee, Risk Management 
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Datuk Dr. Syed graduated with a Bachelor of Arts 
(Hons) from University of Malaya in 1971. He obtained a 
Masters of Business Administration from the University 
of Massachusetts, USA, in 1977 and proceeded to 
obtain a PhD (Business Management) from Virginia 
Polytechnic Institute and State University, USA in 1986. 
In 2005, he obtained a Bachelor of Jurisprudence 
(Hons.) from the University of Malaya. He obtained 
the Certificate in Legal Practice in 2008 from the 
Malaysian Professional Legal Board and admitted as 
an Advocate and Solicitor of the High Court of Malaya 
in July 2009. He obtained the Master of Law (Corporate 
Law) from University Teknologi MARA in December 
2009. He became a fellow of The Chartered Institute of 
Arbitrators, United Kingdom in May 2012. 

Datuk Dr. Syed is a director of Export-Import Bank of 
Malaysia Berhad, Solution Group Berhad, Malakoff 
Corporation Berhad, Mara Corporation Sdn. Bhd. and 
Asia Capital Reinsurance Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. He is also 
the Chairman of Sun Life Malaysia Takaful Berhad and 
Sun Life Malaysia Assurance Berhad. 

He attended all two (2) Board Meetings held during the 
financial year ended 31 December 2022.

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad Bin 
Syed Abdul Kadir
Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 76 l Malaysian l Male 

Date of Appointment: 
24 May 2022

Ir. Hon Hin See, is our Independent Non-Executive 
Director. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration 
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, Risk 
Management Committee and Nomination Committee. 

Ir. Hon graduated with a Diploma in Mechanical 
Engineering from University Technology Malaysia. 
He has completed the Council of Engineering Part II 
Examination (UK) and is a member of the Institution 
of Engineers Malaysia. He is also a Registered 
Professional Engineer in Malaysia and has more than 40 
years of experiences in building industries by involving 
in the design and project management of engineering 
services for hospitals, universities, offices, housing, 
and industrial buildings. He has been working as an 
engineer with Perunding Hashim & NEH Sdn. Bhd. 
since 1981. He was a director of Perunding Hashim & 
NEH Sdn. Bhd. from 1994 to 2020. 

Ir. Hon was a director of Abric Berhad from 2001 to 
2017.

Ir. Hon is a director of iDimension Consolidated Bhd. 
as well as a director and shareholder of Euphogold 
Development Sdn. Bhd. 

He attended all two (2) Board Meetings held during the 
financial year ended 31 December 2022. 

Ir. Hon Hin See 
Independent Non-Executive Director 

Aged 64 | Malaysian | Male 

Date of Appointment: 
28 March 2022
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mah Seong Huak
Chief Executive Officer/ Executive Director, 
Operations

Aged 58 l Malaysian l Male 

Date of Appointment: 
27 April 2022

Mr Mah Seong Huak, is our co-founder and Chief 
Executive Officer/ Executive Director, Operations. 
He is responsible for overseeing and managing the 
Group’s overall operational and business development 
activities. 

Mr Mah graduated with a Diploma in Technology 
(Electronic Engineering) from Tunku Abdul Rahman 
University of Management & Technology (formerly 
Tunku Abdul Rahman College) in 1989. 

He began his career with Federal Telecommunication 
Sdn. Bhd. in 1989 as Technical Support Engineer, 
where he was responsible for telecommunication 
systems related works. In the same year, he left 
Federal Telecommunication Sdn. Bhd. and joined 
Industronics Bhd as Technical Support Engineer. He 
was later promoted to Assistant Technical Manager in 
1990. During his tenure as Technical Support Engineer 
and Assistant Technical Manager, he was responsible 
for overseeing the design and implementation of 
software and hardware systems. Subsequently, he was 
promoted to Audio Visual Manager in 1996 and Senior 
Manager in 1997. During his tenure as Senior Manager, 
he implemented intelligent traffic surveillance systems 
for roads and highways. In 2000, he was promoted 
to General Manager, where he was responsible for 
overseeing the division’s overall business operations. 

Mr Mah co-founded EV-Dynamic Sdn. Bhd. in 2006 
and later EVD Engineering Sdn. Bhd. in 2008.

He does not hold directorship in any public listed 
corporations.

He attended all two (2) Board Meetings held during the 
financial year ended 31 December 2022.

Chui Mee Chuen
Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 45 l Malaysian l Female
 
Date of Appointment: 
19 June 2022

Ms Chui Mee Chuen, is our Independent Non-
Executive Director. She is the Chairperson of the Audit 
Committee and Risk Management Committee. She 
is also a member of the Nomination Committee and 
Remuneration Committee.

Ms Chui started her career as Audit Assistant with 
RSM Robert Teo, Kuan & Co. in 2003, after graduating 
from Tunku Abdul Rahman University College (then 
known as Tunku Abdul Rahman College) with an 
Advanced Diploma in Accountancy. She later joined 
Crowe Horwath as Audit Assistant in 2005 and left 
as Audit Senior (Platoon Leader) in 2008. She then 
joined In-Fusion Solutions Sdn. Bhd., a company 
principally involved in the provision of education and 
education technology solutions, as Assistant Manager, 
Corporate Planning, during which she furthered her 
studies to obtain the Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants (“ACCA”) certificate and became a 
Chartered Certified Accountant in 2009. She was 
awarded the Fellowship of ACCA in 2013. She is 
also currently a member of the Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants. In 2009, Ms Chui left In-Fusion Solutions 
Sdn. Bhd. to join Han Tang International Holdings 
Limited (formerly known as Pearl River Tyre (Holdings) 
Limited), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock 
Exchange, as the Financial Controller. Subsequently, 
she joined Foshan Niro Ceramic Building Materials 
Trading Co. Ltd. in China as its Finance Manager in 
2014. In 2015, she joined HLT Global Berhad as Chief 
Financial Officer.

Ms Chui is the Executive Director of HLT Global 
Berhad. She is also a director in several private limited 
companies. 

She attended all two (2) Board Meetings held during the 
financial year ended 31 December 2022.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

1)	 None of the Directors have family relationship with other Directors or major shareholders of the Company.
2)	 None of the Directors have any conflict of interest with the Company.
3)	 None of the Directors have been convicted of any offence in the past five (5) years, or have been imposed 

with any public sanction or penalty by relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year ended 31 December 
2022.

Ir. Gan Wee Peng, is our co-founder and Executive 
Director, Corporate. He is responsible for overseeing the 
overall business development of the Group, including 
developing business strategic plans and direction as 
well as executing major business development plans.

Ir. Gan graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering 
(Electrical) from Monash University in 1982. He is 
presently registered as a professional electrical 
engineer with the Board of Engineers Malaysia. 

Upon graduation, Ir. Gan joined Perunding Bersatu 
Sdn. Bhd. as Engineer Consultant in 1982, where 
he was responsible for engineering design and site 
supervision. He joined Perunding Hashim & NEH 
Sdn. Bhd. as Senior Consultant in 1984, where he 
was responsible for design planning and coordinating 
project implementation works. He took up the role 
as Advisory Consultant in Tecsys Product Sdn. Bhd., 
where he was responsible for power system design 
review and consultancy. 

Ir. Gan co-founded EV-Dynamic Sdn. Bhd. in 2006 and 
later EVD Engineering Sdn. Bhd. in 2008.

He does not hold directorship in any public listed 
corporations.

He attended all two (2) Board Meetings held during the 
financial year ended 31 December 2022.

Ir. Gan Wee Peng
Executive Director, Corporate

Aged 64 | Malaysian | Male 

Date of Appointment: 
27 April 2022
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PROFILE OF KEY
MANAGEMENT TEAM

Manindar Singh Chawla
Corporate Project Director

Aged 58 | Indian | Male 

Gan Yen Ling
Head of Finance

Aged 55 | Malaysian | Female

Mr Manindar Singh Chawla, is our Corporate Project 
Director, he is responsible for overseeing and managing 
all project related operations of the Group. 

Mr Manindar graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering 
in Electronics Engineering from University of Allahabad, 
India in 1987. 

Upon graduation, he began his career in India with 
International Design Engineer Associates Ltd. in 1988 
as Design Engineer, where he was involved in the 
design of process instrumentation and control system. 
He left International Design Engineer Associates Ltd. 
and joined ABB India Ltd in 1992 as Lead Automation 
Engineer, where he led complex automation projects. 
He was promoted to Head of Project Management 
for Industrial Automation in 1996, where he was 
responsible for overseeing industrial automation 
projects. He was then promoted to Head of Sales and 
Marketing of Automation Segment for Eastern Region 
of India in 2000, where he was responsible for the 
business development of the region. 

In 2002, he left ABB India Ltd. and moved to Malaysia 
to join Va Tech Sat Sdn. Bhd. as Head of Sales and 
Marketing for SEA where he managed and oversaw the 
region’s sales and marketing activities. He joined ABB 
Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. in 2007 as Head of Local Division-
Industrial Automation and Power Systems, with full 
profit and loss responsibility of the business including 
the operational and financial performance of the local 
business units. He was promoted to Head of Global 
Operations-Business Unit Electrification Solution 
in 2014, where he was responsible for managing 
the business unit’s global operations including its 
manufacturing activities. 

He joined the Group in June 2018 and is now the 
Corporate Project Director.

Ms Gan Yen Ling, is the Head of Finance. She is 
responsible for overseeing the entire financial activities 
of the Group. 

She graduated with a Bachelor of Business in Financial 
Accounting from Swinburne University of Technology, 
Australia in 1991. She is an Australian Certified 
Practising Accountant and a member of the Malaysian 
Institute of Accountants since 1995. 

Upon graduation, she began her career with Azman, 
Wong, Salleh & Co in 1992 as Audit Assistant, 
where she was responsible for conducting various 
external audits and promoted to Audit Senior in 1994. 
Subsequently, she joined SA Tours Sdn. Bhd. in 1995 
as Finance Manager, where she was responsible for 
overseeing the finance department and the preparation 
of the company’s financial statements. In 1997, she 
joined Tag Sierra Sdn. Bhd. (“Tag Sierra”) as a Finance 
Director, where she was responsible for overseeing the 
finance and administrative activities of the company. 

She joined EV-Dynamic Sdn. Bhd. in 2016 as Personal 
Assistant to the Executive Director, Corporate. At the 
same time, she remained on the board of directors of 
Tag Sierra overseeing general administration function 
pending the recruitment of a replacement candidate. In 
2017, she relinquished her position as Finance Director 
in Tag Sierra and assumed a non-executive directorship 
in the company. 

She joined the Group in 2016 and now is the Head of 
Finance of the Group.

Ms Gan is the Director of iDimension Consolidated 
Bhd. and director and shareholders of several private 
limited companies.
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PROFILE OF KEY MANAGEMENT TEAM
(CONTINUED)

Heng Choo Ting
General Manager, Operations

Aged 58 | Malaysian | Male

Sin Yuen Lian
General Manager, Admin

Aged 53 | Malaysian | Female

Notes:

1)	 None of the Key Senior Management have family relationship with other Directors or major shareholders of 
the Company except for the following:-
- Ms Gan Yen Ling is the sister of Ir. Gan Wee Peng, a Director and major shareholder of the Company.

2)	 None of the Key Senior Management have any conflict of interest with the Company.
3)	 None of the Key Senior Management have been convicted of any offence in the past five (5) years, or have 

been imposed with any public sanction or penalty by relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year 
ended 31 December 2022.

Mr Heng Choo Ting, is the General Manager, Operations 
of our group. He is responsible for overseeing the 
daily business operations and human resources of the 
Group. 

Mr Heng graduated with a Bachelor of Science 
in Business Administration from University of 
Southwestern Louisiana (now known as University of 
Louisiana at Lafayette), United States of America in 
1988. 

Upon graduation, he began his career with Sharp-
Roxy Corporation (M) Sdn Bhd, a home appliance and 
consumer electronics company, as Planning Officer. He 
was promoted to Planning Manager in 1995. During 
his tenure there, he was responsible for developing 
and organising sales strategies for the company. He 
joined Bellcorp Technology Malaysia Sdn Bhd in 2003 
as Planning and Logistics Manager, where he was 
responsible for inventory management. He later joined 
Bright Routes Sdn Bhd in 2006 as Materials Manager, 
where he was responsible for managing the company’s 
inventory, warehouse and logistics activities. 

He joined EV-Dynamic Sdn. Bhd. in 2009 as Business 
Administration Manager, where he was responsible 
for overseeing the company’s administration-related 
activities. He was promoted to General Manager, 
Operations in 2014, where he was responsible for 
ensuring all operations-related activities, including 
improving management systems and processes as well 
as monitoring quality control activities. 

He is now General Manager, Operations of the Group.

Ms Sin Yuen Lian, is the General Manager, Admin of our 
Group. She is responsible for the daily administrative-
related activities of the Group. 

Ms Sin graduated with a Sijil Pelajaran Malaysia from 
Sekolah Menengah Kebangsaan Port Dickson Negeri 
Sembilan in 1988. 

She began her career with Gul Technologies Singapore 
Ltd. in 1989 as Engineering Assistant, where she 
was involved in laboratory chemical solution analyse 
and recommendation to production line. She joined 
Transware Distribution Services Pte. Ltd. in 1993 
as Container Service Executive, where she was 
responsible for coordinating the logistics of containers. 
She joined Lam Soon (M) Bhd. in 1995 as Administrative 
Assistant, where she was involved in administrative-
related activities. The following year, she joined 
Industronics Bhd as Project Administrator, where she 
was responsible for overseeing the procurement and 
administrative activities of projects. She was later 
promoted to Assistant Administrative Manager in 2005. 

She joined the Group in 2006 as Operations Manager, 
where she was responsible for daily administrative-
related activities. She was promoted to Finance and 
Administration Manager, where she was involved in the 
preparation of Project Account and finance. In 2013, 
she was promoted to Senior Manager (Administration 
& Finance) where she was involved in more finance-
related activities. She was then promoted to Assistant 
General Manager in 2017. She assumed her position as 
Assistant General Manager, Admin of EVD Engineering 
Sdn. Bhd. in March 2020 and promoted to General 
Manager, Admin in July 2021. 

She is now General Manager, Admin of the Group.
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Corporate Governance
Overview Statement

INTRODUCTION 

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of EVD Berhad (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) is committed 
towards upholding the highest standards of corporate governance and levels of integrity in the organisation in 
discharging their fiduciary duties and responsibilities as a good and responsible corporate citizen. The Board 
is pleased to provide a summary overview of the Group’s application of the Principles and Recommendations 
outlined in the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2021 (“MCCG 2021”) and the ACE Market Listing 
Requirements (“AMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) for the financial year ended 31 
December 2022. 

The Corporate Governance Overview Statement describing the manner in which the Group has applied the 
principles of MCCG 2021 for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 covers the following: 

A.	 Board leadership and effectiveness; 
B.	 Effective audit and risk management; and 
C.	 Integrity in corporate reporting and meaningful relationship with stakeholders. 

This Corporate Governance Overview Statement is to be read together with that the Corporate Governance Report 
2022 (“CG Report 2022”) which is available on the Company’s corporate website at https://evd-berhad.com and 
through an announcement on the website of Bursa Securities at https://www.bursamalaysia.com. 

PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS 

PART I – BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES 

1.	 Board governance, responsibilities and activities 

	 The Board has collective oversight and responsibility for the overall long-term success of the Group and 
the delivery of sustainable value to its stakeholders. In this respect, each member of the Board must show 
good stewardship, act in good faith and in a professional manner with utmost integrity and accountability 
in executing their fiduciary duties and responsibilities. The Group is lead and managed by an effective and 
experienced Board consisting of highly qualified individuals from different professional backgrounds with 
diverse experiences, skills and perspectives. 

	 The Board Charter defines the Board’s overall role and responsibilities’ and key matters reserved for the 
Board’s decision. The key responsibilities of the Board are to:

(a)	 Set the strategic direction and vision of the Group;
(b)	 Ensure there is a robust corporate governance framework in place for the success of the business;
(c)	 Adopt a strategic plan and carry out regular reviews and evaluate Management’s performance against 

these plans and objectives;
(d)	 Organise and plan Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) initiatives by integrating sustainability 

considerations in the Group’s corporate strategy, governance and decision making processes;
(e)	 Set the tone from the top and culture towards effective risk management and internal control in all 

aspects of the Group’s activities;  
(f)	 Ensure that the Board and the Management has the necessary skills and experience, and there are 

measures in place to provide for the orderly succession of the Board and Management;
(g)	 Ensure that the Company has in place procedures to enable effective communication and appropriate 

disclosure to its shareholders and other stakeholders;
(h)	 Ensure that the Board members are financially literate by providing adequate training, where applicable; 

and
(i)	 Ensure each member of the Board receive accurate reports on a timely basis that would provide 

them with a reasonable basis to make proper and informed judgement on an ongoing basis as to the 
financial position and business prospect of the Group. 

	 It also further sets out the importance of separating the roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer/Executive Director, Operations of the Company and the function of the Company Secretary 
amongst other matters.   
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Corporate Governance Overview Statement
(CONTINUED)

PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

PART I – BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (cont’d)

1.	 Board governance, responsibilities and activities (cont’d)

	 The Board will review and update the Board Charter from time to time to reflect changes to the Company’s 
policies and procedures to ensure the Board Charter remains consistent and relevant with the Board’s 
objectives, current laws and practices. The Board Charter was approved and adopted and is available on 
the Company’s corporate website at https://evd-berhad.com.

2.	 Role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Operations 

	 The Board Charter sets out clearly the roles and responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board and that of the 
Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Operations of the Company.

	 Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad bin Syed Abdul Kadir, was appointed to serve on the Board on 24 May 2022. He 
is an Independent Non-Executive Director and is currently the Chairman of the Board. His role is to ensure 
that the Board serves a common purpose, is effective in all aspects of its role as a Group and at individual 
Director Level, and upholds and promotes the highest standards of integrity and corporate governance. In 
addition, he also ensures that the Board receives complete and accurate information on a timely basis so 
that informed decisions can be made. 

	 Mr Mah Seong Huak is the Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Operations. He is overall responsible 
for overseeing and managing the day-to-day business operations and business development activities of 
the Group. His key responsibilities include implementing strategic plans approved by the Board, ensuring 
these plans are carried out and the Group’s performance is evaluated and reported on a timely manner. He 
is also responsible for providing leadership guidance and building a sustainable corporate culture.

	 The respective roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, 
Operations are kept distinct and separate to ensure there is an appropriate balance of power, increased 
accountability and greater capacity of the Board for independent decision-making, so that no one has 
unfettered powers of decision and authority.

3.	 Board committees 

	 To assist the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities, the Board delegated certain responsibilities 
to the following Board Committees: 

a)	 Audit Committee (“AC”);
b)	 Risk Management Committee (“RMC”); 
c)	 Nomination Committee (“NC”); and
d)	 Remuneration Committee (“RC”). 

	 The Board Committees each have specific defined Terms of Reference, scope and authority to review 
matters tabled before them prior to decision-making by the Board as a whole. The Terms of Reference are 
reviewed and updated regularly for any changes in regulatory and governance requirements.

	 The role of the Board Committees are to review, advice and make recommendations to the Board, who has 
ultimate responsibility and authority to make the final decision on all matters. The Chairperson of each of 
these Board Committees will provide a verbal report on the outcome of their respective Board Committee 
meetings to the Board. Any further deliberation and decision will then be made at the Board, if required. 

	 The AC, RMC, NC and RC each comprise of three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman 
of the Board chairs the NC and is a member of the AC, RMC and RC. Whilst this does not comply with 
Practice 1.4 under the MCCG 2021, the Company views that there are sufficient safeguard mechanisms 
in the form of checks and balances to prevent the exercise of undue influence on Board Committee Level 
deliberations by the Chairman. 
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

PART I – BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (cont’d)

3.	 Board committees (cont’d)

The NC comprises three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors. Members of the NC are as follows:

a)	 Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad bin Syed Abdul Kadir – Chairman
b)	 Ir Hon Hin See – Member
c)	 Ms Chui Mee Chuen – Member 

	 The terms of reference of the NC are available for viewing on the Company’s corporate website at https://
evd-berhad.com.

Part of the terms of reference of the NC includes the following responsibilities:-

•	 To regularly review the succession planning for the Board and Senior Management by refreshing the 
structure, size and composition including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of the Board.

•	 Based on the Board’s approved Fit and Proper Policy of the Group, to propose potential/new 
candidates to the Board to refresh the Board composition. The suitability of the candidates shall 
be assessed based on diversity of the Board, experience and competency, personal and financial 
integrity as well as several other aspects for consideration to ensure candidates are able to contribute 
to the Group effectively.

	 Activities carried out by the NC during the financial year ended 31 December 2022 are summarized as 
follows:-

•	 Reviewed and approved the Term of Reference for NC for adoption.
•	 Reviewed and recommended to the Board Annual Evaluation Forms for adoption for the assessment 

of Board and Board Committees, AC and AC Members Peer Evaluation, Independent Directors’ Self-
Assessment, External and Internal Auditors evaluation forms 

•	 Reviewed the proposed criteria for appointment of Deputy Chief Executive Officer and recommend the 
same to the Board. 

	 The decision-making processes of the respective Board Committees are collectively made in accordance 
with the Terms of Reference of each Board Committee. By design and strict adherence, no single person can 
influence the Company’s decision making as decisions must be made by consensus and in the best interests 
of the Company.

	 The full Terms of Reference of the Board Committees can be accessed on the Company’s corporate website 
at https://evd-berhad.com.

4.	 Company secretary

	 The role of the Company Secretary is to advise the Board on corporate governance best practices, corporate 
administration and Board processes to facilitate overall compliance with the AMLR of Bursa Securities, 
Companies Act 2016 and applicable laws and regulations. The Board has full and unrestricted access to the 
advice and services of the Company Secretary. 

	 The Company Secretary working with the Management to ensure Board papers are circulated within a 
reasonable time to allow the Board and/or Board Committee members with sufficient time to prepare for the 
meetings. 

	 The Company Secretary will complete and circulate minutes of meetings promptly and inform Management 
of action items to be followed up and remind the Board on the continuous training needs of Directors.

	 The Company Secretary also plays a critical role in managing the administrative process and proceedings at 
the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) ensuring all necessary notices and documents are sent to shareholders 
promptly and serve as a focal point of communication and engagement with shareholders on corporate 
governance matters.  

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
(CONTINUED)
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

PART I – BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (cont’d)

5.	 Code of Ethics

	 The Board approved and adopted the following policies that promotes good business conduct and a healthy 
corporate culture that engenders integrity, transparency and fairness:

(a)	 Code of Conduct and Work Ethics Policy;
(b)	 Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy;
(c)	 Whistle Blowing Policy; and
(d)	 Fit and Proper Policy

	 These polices will be reviewed and updated from time to time in accordance with the needs of the Company 
and is available in the Company’s corporate website at https://evd-berhad.com.

	 Sustainability

	 The Board acknowledges the importance of maintaining a sustainability framework and policy as a good 
corporate citizen that promotes sustainable business practices that creates long-term value and at the same 
time ensuring the business operates responsibly with full accountability. 

	 The Board has an overall oversight over sustainability strategies, priorities and targets, whilst the Chief 
Executive Officer/Executive Director, Operations is responsible to continously enhance the sustainability 
management framework and process to ensure effective implementation and execution of the ESG initiatives 
under his stewardship and leadership. 

	 The details of the sustainability activities are set out in the Sustainability Statement on pages 11 to 12 of this 
Annual Report.

PART II – BOARD COMPOSITION 

	The Board acknowledges that having the right balance of talent with the required experience and skills set in 
its Board composition is critical in ensuring its effectiveness and its ability to discharge its fiduciary duties and 
responsibilities.

1.	 Board composition

	 The Board currently comprise of five (5) members, three (3) are Independent Non-Executive Directors and 
two (2) of which are the Chief Executive Officer/ Executive Director, Operations and Executive Director, 
Corporate. Out of the three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors, one (1) is a female Director. The present 
Board composition complies with Rule 15.02 of the AMLR of Bursa Securities which requires at least one-
third (1/3) of the Board comprising of Independent Directors and one (1) director being a female. 

	 The composition of the Board is as follow:

Board of Directors Designation

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad bin Syed Abdul Kadir Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

Ir. Hon Hin See Independent Non-Executive Director

Chui Mee Chuen Independent Non-Executive Director

Ir. Gan Wee Peng Executive Director, Corporate

Mah Seong Huak Chief Executive Officer/ Executive Director, 
Operations
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

PART II – BOARD COMPOSITION (cont’d)

1.	 Board composition (cont’d)

	 The Board members comes from diverse background, each bringing with them a mix of qualifications 
covering accounting, finance, engineering, business, IT and law, whilst their collective skills and expertise 
include general management, technology and media, finance and treasury, marketing, telecommunications, 
people, regulatory and local affairs.

	 The Independent Non-Executive Directors represent more than half of the Board size. The Board views the 
current composition and size to be adequate for the effective discharge of its duties and responsibilities. The 
presence of Independent Non-Executive Directors on the Board and its Board Committees are essential, as 
they provide objective, unbiased and impartial opinions and judgment to Board deliberations. This ensures 
not only the interests of the Company are taken into account, but also that of minority shareholders and 
other stakeholders are well represented, addressed and adequately protected and being accorded with due 
consideration.

2.	 New board appointments

	 The Board shall via the NC assess the optimum size, required mix of skills, experience, independence, 
diversity and time commitment required collectively for the Board to effectively fulfil and discharge its duties 
and responsibilities. 

	 The NC is responsible for identifying and recommending suitable candidates for new appointments to the 
Board. The NC sets guiding principles and criteria required on candidates to ensure candidates possess 
the required core competencies, mix of skills, expertise and experience that they can bring to the Board. 
Any new nomination received will undergo a rigorous and objective evaluation process. If deemed suitable, 
a recommendation will be put forward to the Board for further assessment and endorsement before the 
appointment is formally made.

	 There was no appointment of new directors since the Company was listed on 1 July 2022.

3.	 Re-election/Re-appointment of retiring Directors

	 Any Director who is eligible for re-election and/or re-appointment will have to undergo the same evaluation 
process as a new appointment. The NC will evaluate the eligible Director’s core competencies, time 
commitment, contributions made at Board and Board Committee meetings, performance and their ability to 
act in the best interest of the Company. The Board’s recommendations on the re-election, re-appointment 
and the continuation in office of any retiring Director will be subject to shareholders’ approval at the AGM.

4.	 Board Evaluation process

	 The performance of Independent Directors, are evaluated based on, amongst others, their attendance at 
the Board and Board Committee meetings, any additional roles and responsibilities assumed, adequacy of 
preparation, effective contributions and inputs made to the Board and Board Committee meetings and any 
other contributions made to the Board and Board Committee as a whole. 

	 As for the performance evaluation of Executive Directors, their assessment will be benchmarked against 
key performance indicators and deliverables, amongst others, extent of achieving financial targets, strategic 
initiatives implemented, sustainability of the business, environmental and social  objectives, regulatory and 
corporate compliance, business growth, shareholder value creation, organisation and succession planning 
and personal input to the role. 

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
(CONTINUED)



EVD BERHAD 201901045325 (1354655-D)                                                            ANNUAL REPORT 2022 23

PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

PART II – BOARD COMPOSITION (cont’d)

4.	 Board Evaluation process (cont’d)

	 The NC together with the RC are responsible to review and perform the following assessments:- 

a)	 Annual performance evaluation for Executive Directors’ and Independent Non-Executive Directors’; 
b)	 Effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees as a whole; 
c)	 Annual performance of the AC and RMC; 
d)	 Independence of the Independent Directors; 
e)	 The re-election of retiring Directors pursuant to the Constitution of the Company; 
f)	 Remuneration packages for Executive Directors; and 
g)		 Directors’ fees and benefits payable to Non-Executive Directors.

5.	 Board tenure

	 The Board Charter sets a maximum tenure in which an Independent Director can serve in the Board, 
provided the term shall not exceed a cumulative period of nine (9) years from the date of his or her first 
appointment as an Independent Director. However, if the Board intends to retain a Director who has served 
as an Independent Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, the Board 
must justify its decision and seek shareholders’ approval through a two-tier voting process at a general 
meeting. During the financial year under review, none of the Independent Directors of the Company has 
served the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years. 

6.	 Board Diversity

	 The Board acknowledges that having diversity in its composition is critical in ensuring its effectiveness, 
competitiveness and adherence to the best corporate governance practices. A diverse Board will include 
and make use of differences in the age, skills, experience, cultural background, gender and ethnicity of its 
members to ensure effective governance and robust decision making by the Board. 

	 The Company acknowledges the importance to promote gender diversity at the Board Level. Given the size 
and female representation of 20% in the Board currently, the Board is of the view that it can still exercise 
good oversight and discharge its role and fiduciary duties effectively.

	 The Board commits to ensure all appointment of directors are made based on merit as outlined in the NC 
Terms of Reference. The NC and Board regularly review the composition of the Board and Board Committees 
to improve its diversity including its gender diversity. Notwithstanding the above, the Board and the NC will 
strive to work towards having more female Directors representation in the composition of the Board.
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

PART II – BOARD COMPOSITION (cont’d)

7.	 Board meetings and proceedings

	 The Board targets to meet at least four (4) times a year. Additional and ad-hoc meetings maybe called for in 
between scheduled meetings as and when urgent and important decisions need to be made. The Board and 
Board Committee meetings are planned at the beginning of the each financial year to facilitate the Directors 
in planning their schedules. 

	 The attendance of the Directors at the Board and Board Committee meetings were as follows:

Names Number of meetings

Board AC RMC NC RC

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad bin Syed 
Abdul Kadir
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

2/2 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1

Ir. Hon Hin See
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

2/2 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1

Chui Mee Chuen
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

2/2 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1

Ir Gan Wee Peng
(Executive Director, Corporate)

2/2 – – – –

Mah Seong Huak
(Chief Executive Officer/ 
Executive Director, Operations)

2/2 – – – –

	 There were full attendance at the Board and Board Committee Meetings held during the financial year 
ended 31 December 2022 and they have fulfilled the minimum requirement stipulated in the AMLR of Bursa 
Securities. 

	 Given the full attendance at the Board and Board Committee meetings, the Board is satisfied with the level 
of participation and time commitment given by the Directors towards fulfilling their fiduciary duties and 
responsibilities. 

8.	 Directors training

	 The Board acknowledges their duty to undergo appropriate continuing education programmes to equip 
themselves with the necessary knowledge so that they can discharge their duties and responsibilities 
effectively. Such education, training and learning programmes can take the form of talks, online tools, 
reading materials, briefings, workshops and seminars by subject matter experts. 

	 The Board and the NC will assess the training needs of each Director on an ongoing basis, by determining 
areas that would best strengthen his or her contributions to the Board. Directors are also encouraged to 
attend talks, briefings, workshops and utilise online learning tools, reading materials and trainings on areas 
that would benefit them in their roles and responsibilities. 

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
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Corporate Governance Overview Statement
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

PART II – BOARD COMPOSITION (cont’d)

8.	 Directors training (cont’d)

	 During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors attended the following training, seminars 
and conferences:-

Name of Director 	 Seminars/Conferences Attended

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad 
bin Syed Abdul Kadir

•	 Corporate Strategic Plan FY2023/2024- Board Challenge Session

•	 Environmental, Social, Governance (“ESG”) and Sustainability

•	 Khazanah Megatrends Forum 2022

•	 Cyber Security Awareness Training

•	 Engagement with CEOs/Chairmen of Insurance Companies /Takaful 
Operators and Insurance/Takaful Associations on of BNM’s Annual 
Report 2021, Economic & Monetary Review 2021, and Financial 
Stability Review Second Half 2021

•	 BNM-FIDE FORUM Dialogue: on Licensing Framework for Digital 
Insurers and Takaful Operators

Ir. Hon Hin See •	 Hospital Engineering Design

•	 Energy Saving Fan Systems

Chui Mee Chuen •	 Key Amendments to the ACE Marking Listing Requirement of Bursa 
Securities relating to Director Appointment, Independence and 
Other Amendments

•	 Virtual Tax Conference 2022

•	 ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System Awareness

Ir. Gan Wee Peng •	 Mandatory Accreditation Programme

•	 Conducting A Better Annual General Meeting

Mah Seong Huak •	 Mandatory Accreditation Programme

•	 Conducting A Better Annual General Meeting
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

Part III – REMUNERATION 

The Board delegated the responsibility of overseeing and recommending the remuneration of Directors and Senior 
Management to the RC in line with the Remuneration Policy that was established. The policy was set up to attract, 
reward and retain qualified Directors and Management of the calibre required to run and manage the Company 
successfully and create value for shareholders and other stakeholders. 

The RC will review annually and recommend if appropriate, the remuneration packages of the Directors, which will 
be commensurate with their experience, contribution and commitment in discharging their responsibilities, taking 
into consideration the Group’s performance. The remuneration packages will be tabled to the Board for further 
deliberation and approval. Each Director shall abstain from the deliberation and voting on matters pertaining to 
their own remuneration. 

The remuneration for Non-Executive Directors (including all fees, allowances and benefits payable) listed below 
was approved during the 2nd AGM.

The details of the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company and the Group on a named basis 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 are as below: 

Non-Executive Directors

Group

Names
Fees
(RM)

Salaries
(RM)

Benefits
in kind

(RM)
Allowances

(RM)
Bonus

(RM)
Total
(RM)

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad bin 
Syed Abdul Kadir

35,000 – – 1,000 – 36,000

Ir. Hon Hin See 29,800 – – 1,000 – 30,800

Chui Mee Chuen 27,500 – – 1,000 – 28,500

Company

Names
Fees
(RM)

Salaries
(RM)

Benefits
in kind

(RM)
Allowances

(RM)
Bonus

(RM)
Total
(RM)

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad bin 
Syed Abdul Kadir

35,000 – – 1,000 – 36,000

Ir. Hon Hin See 25,000 – – 1,000 – 26,000

Chui Mee Chuen 27,500 – – 1,000 – 28,500

Due to confidentiality, staff poaching by competitor and conflict between staff, the Company has not disclosed 
the remuneration of Executive Directors and Senior Management on a named basis according to Practice 8.2 of 
MCCG 2021 as the Board is of the view that such disclosure maybe detrimental to its business interest, given the 
industry’s competitiveness.

The remuneration of Executive Directors and Senior Management has been arrived at after careful consideration 
following a detailed and diligent evaluation process by the RC taking into consideration their experience, 
contribution and commitment in discharging their responsibilities and the financial performance of the Company. 
Their remuneration packages recommended are competitive and commensurate with the roles and responsibilities 
they assumed. 

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

Part III – REMUNERATION ( cont’d)

The Board has however opted for and adopted an alternative disclosure, by disclosing the Executive Directors and 
Senior Management’s remuneration in bands of RM50,000 on an unnamed basis below. 

Range of Remuneration

Group

No. of Key Senior Management Of�cer

RM300,001 to RM350,000 1

RM350,001 to RM400,000 1

RM400,001 to RM450,000 –

RM450,001 to RM500,000 2

RM500,001 to RM550,000 –

RM550,001 to RM600,000 –

RM600,001 to RM650,000 –

RM650,001 to RM700,000 –

RM700,001 to RM750,000 1

RM750,001 to RM800,000 –

RM800,001 to RM850,000 –

RM850,001 to RM900,000 –

RM900,001 to RM950,000 1

The Board is of the view that this suf�ciently and appropriately meets the objective of transparency.

PRINCIPLE B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

PART I – AC 

The AC comprises of three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors. The present composition ful�ls Rule 15.09 
of the AMLR of Bursa Securities requiring all committee members to be Non-Executive Directors with a majority 
being independent directors. 

Ms. Chui Mee Chuen, who is a Fellow Certi�ed Chartered Accountant and member of the Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants, chairs the AC and RMC. She and other members of the AC are �nancially literate, have extensive 
business experience, and brings with them the skill sets that allow the AC to effectively discharge their duties and 
responsibilities in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the AC. She does not chair the Board. 

The pro�le of the AC Directors are disclosed on pages 13 to 14 of the Annual Report. Their composition, roles, 
responsibilities and activities are further elaborated and explained in detail in the AC Report on pages 33 to 35 of 
this Annual Report. 

The Group has the following processes in place for effective audit and risk management.

Audit and accountability

Integrity of �nancial statements

The AC assists the Board to review the quarterly announcements and annual �nancial statements. The review 
relies on representations made by the Management team to the AC that there are proper maintenance of �nancial 
records, the �nancial statements prepared are complete and accurate applying consistent accounting policies, 
supported by reasonably prudent judgment and estimates and are in accordance with the applicable �nancial 
reporting standards.  

CORPORATE GOVERNANcE OVERVIEW STATEMENT
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PRINCIPLE B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

PART I – AC (cont’d)

Systems of internal controls

The AC also relies on assurances provided by the Management team to the AC that adequate systems of internal 
controls are in place and are complied with and operating as intended and work carried out by the internal and 
external auditors where applicable and corroborating results obtained.

External auditors

The Board have established a transparent and good professional working relationship with the external auditors. 
Such a relationship allows the Board to seek professional advice on matters relating to compliance and corporate 
governance. The AC has full and unhindered access to the external auditors, who, in turn, have access at all times 
to the AC Chair.

The AC places great emphasis on the objectivity and independence of the external auditors in providing transparent 
reports to the Board and shareholders. Any matters concerning the new appointment, re-appointment, resignation 
or dismissal of external auditors falls under the purview of the AC. 

The independence of external auditors is evaluated annually through a stringent evaluation process. The nature 
and extent of non-audit services provided by external auditors will be scrutinised to ensure their independence 
and objectivity is not impaired. Upon satisfactory evaluation, a recommendation will be made to the Board for their 
re-appointment upon which shareholders’ approval will be sought at the AGM of the Company. 

In complying with the AC Terms of Reference, none of the members of the AC and/or Board is a former partner of 
the external audit firm of the Company. The Board has no intention presently to appoint any former partner as a 
member of the AC and/or Board. 

Related Party Transaction and Recurrent Related Party Transaction 

The Company has in place a Related Party Transaction and Recurrent Related Party Transaction Policy to govern 
such transactions. In addition, procedures, guidelines and internal controls have been put in place to ensure 
related party transactions including recurrent related party transactions are entered into on normal arms’ length 
commercial terms that are no more favourable to the transacting party than those generally available to any third 
party and are not to the detriment of the Company’s minority shareholders.

Conflict of interest

In situation of any conflict or deemed conflict of interest in any particular Related Party Transaction whereby it 
involves any member of the AC and/or Board, he or she shall declare his or her interest in the transaction and will 
refrain from any deliberation and abstain from voting on the matter.

PART II – RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK 

Risk Management

The Board is fully committed to implement and maintain a sound and effective risk management system, so that 
the Board can have reasonable assurance that should an adverse event or situation arise in the foreseeable future 
that may impact the Group’s business, such risk of an event happening can be mitigated and managed. Whilst the 
Board sets the overall risk appetite in which the Group operates in, the Board is also cognisant that identification, 
evaluation and management of significant risks faced by the Group are ongoing and evolving constantly as 
business conditions change. 

The RMC has the delegated responsibility from the Board to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk 
management framework and system. The RMC’s key responsibilities is to review the risks identified, perform risk 
over sight and guide the business units in their mitigation and management plans and reporting to the Board. 

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
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PRINCIPLE B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

PART II – RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK (cont’d)

Risk Management (Cont’d)

The Board has adopted the Group Risk Policy in line with ISO 9001:2015 Quality Procedure for Risk Management 
as  a process for identifying, assessing and managing significant risks that may adversely affect its businesses, 
operating results, cash flows and financial conditions that may impact the achievement of the Group. 

Management has primary responsibility for assisting the Board in identifying, assessing, monitoring, reporting 
and developing policies and actions that can minimise or mitigate key business risks to the Group. This policy is 
in line with the overall Group’s strategic business objectives and identifying key critical business risks that may 
impact the business and establish appropriate corrective actions that can be implemented so that such risks can 
be mitigated on a timely manner.

Internal audit

Maintaining a conducive and strong system of internal control is paramount. The Board has appointed an 
independent consulting firm, GovernanceAdvisory.com Sdn Bhd to review the adequacy and integrity of its internal 
control system to achieve an effective control.  

The internal audit function is independent from the activities and operations of the Group. The internal auditor 
works alongside the AC to provide reasonable assurance that the system of internal controls is effective and is 
functioning as intended. The Internal Auditor reports directly to the AC to ensure issues highlighted are addressed 
independently, objectively and in an unbiased manner without any undue influence from management. 

The AC is empowered and have the authority of the Board to review any matters concerning the appointment, 
re-appointment, resignation or dismissal of the internal auditor as well as to review and evaluate factors relating to 
the independence of the internal auditors. 

The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control set out in the Annual Report further highlights the Risk 
Management and Internal Control environment of the Group. The Board maintains a continuing commitment to 
strengthening the Group’s internal control environment and processes.

PRINCIPLE C: INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS 

PART I – ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS 

The Board recognises the importance of keeping shareholders well informed on the Group’s financial performance 
and position. Providing accurate and valuable insights allows shareholders to make informed decisions with 
respect to the business of the Group. The Board is committed and endeavours to make timely and transparent 
disclosures of material matters that triggers the release of a public announcement immediately.

The Company uses the Annual Report, quarterly announcements and general meetings as primary sources of 
information where shareholders can access and be kept abreast of the Group’s progress and development. The 
Company’s corporate website at https://evd-berhad.com also serves as one of the most convenient platform 
for shareholders and members of the public to gain access to corporate information, Board Charters, Terms of 
References, policies, announcements, news and events relating to the Group.

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
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PRINCIPLE C: INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS (cont’d)

PART II – CONDUCT OF GENERAL MEETINGS 

The Company will convene its Third (3rd) AGM on 21 June 2023. The Notice convening the Third (3rd) AGM will be 
emailed and dispatched to all shareholders on 28 April 2023, a minimum 28 days notice period before the AGM 
to provide shareholders with sufficient time to go through the Annual Report and make the necessary attendance 
and voting arrangements.

The AGM will be conducted virtually via remote participation and electronic voting using a third party platform 
which has proven to be robust, reliable, stable and secure which can facilitate a large number of participants to 
attend the AGM.

This mode of meeting, will provide shareholders with a convenient platform to participate, speak and pose 
questions freely to the Board and Management. It promotes remote participation by shareholders and facilitate 
voting to be carried out remotely without having to be physically present, thus allowing for voting to be done in 
absentia.

Shareholders are encouraged to submit their questions and queries early via an email to the Company at 
investorrelations@evd.com.my on matters relating to the financial performance, developments within and the 
future direction of the Group and resolutions being proposed. 

For shareholders who do not submit their questions early, they will be accorded time and opportunity to raise 
questions online during the meeting.  Any shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting remotely, will be 
encouraged to exercise their voting rights by appointing any person or the Chairman of the meeting as his or her 
proxy to attend, participate, speak and vote in his or her stead.

The summary of the key matters discussed at the AGM will be published on the Company’s website at https://
evd-berhad.com for the shareholders’ information.  

STATEMENT BY THE BOARD ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 

This statement is prepared in compliance with Rule 15.25 of the AMLR of Bursa Securities and should be read 
together with the CG Report 2022 of the Company, which is available on the Company’s website at https://evd-
berhad.com.

The Company shall continue to strive for high standards of corporate governance throughout the Group, and 
the highest level of integrity and ethical standards in all of its business dealings. The Company has in all material 
aspects satisfactory complied with the principles and practices set out in MCCG 2021, except for the departures 
set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

This statement was tabled and approved at the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 25 April 2023.
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INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) is pleased to present the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control 
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of approval of this Statement for 
inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report. This statement is prepared pursuant to Rule 15.26(b) of the ACE Market 
Listing Requirements (“AMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and in accordance with 
the guidelines set out in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed 
Issuers (“Guidelines”). This statement outlines the key elements of risk management and internal control systems 
within the Group for the current financial year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of EVD Berhad acknowledges the importance of having a sound and effective risk management and 
internal control systems as best practices to enhance good corporate governance.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control system which includes 
the establishment of an appropriate control environment and assessment as well as reviewing its adequacy 
and integrity. The Board has delegated the responsibility for reviewing adequacy and effectiveness of the risk 
management and internal control systems to the Risk Management Committee (“RMC”).

The Board is aware that the risk management assessment and internal control systems are designed to manage 
the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk appetite, rather than eliminate the risks of failure to achieve corporate 
objectives. The system, by its nature, can only provide reasonable assurance, and not absolute assurance against 
any material misstatement of financial information and records or against financial losses, errors or fraud.

The Board has adopted the Group Risk Policy in line with ISO 9001:2015 Quality Procedure for Risk Management 
as  a process for identifying, assessing and managing significant risks that may adversely affect its businesses, 
operating results, cash flows and financial conditions that may impact the achievement by the Group. 

Management has primary responsibility for assisting the Board in identifying, assessing, monitoring, reporting 
and developing policies and actions that can minimise or mitigate key business risks to the Group. This policy is 
in line with the overall Group’s strategic business objectives and identifying key critical business risks that may 
impact the business and establish appropriate corrective actions that can be implemented so that such risks can 
be mitigated on a timely manner.

Key Elements of the Internal Control Process

Maintaining a conducive and strong system of internal control is paramount. The Board has appointed an 
independent consulting firm, GovernanceAdvisory.com Sdn Bhd to review the adequacy and integrity of its internal 
control system to achieve an effective control.  

The internal audit function is independent from the activities and operation of the Group. The Internal Auditor 
reports directly to the Audit Committee (“AC”) and is free from any relationships or conflict of interest which could 
impair their independence and objectivity. The AC is entrusted by the Board to ensure the effectiveness of the 
Group Internal Control systems and has the authority of the Board to review matters concerning the appointment, 
re-appointment, resignation and dismissal of the Internal Auditor as well as to review and evaluate factors relating 
to the independence of Internal Auditors.  

In the financial year under review, the Internal Auditors have carried out review based on approved internal audit 
plan on Tender/Contract Management Review on the Company. The internal audit report was presented to the AC. 
In summary, the Board and Management should continuously maintain the existing adequate system control and 
to put in place the best practice to enhance the internal controls.

Statement on Risk Management
and Internal Control
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
(CONTINUED)

Key Elements of the Internal Control Process (cont’d)

The other key elements of the Group’s internal control system are as follows:

•	 The Board and Audit Committee

	 The Board and AC met two (2) times during the financial year, with additional meetings to be convened 
whenever necessary to ensure that the Directors maintain full and effective control on all significant and 
operational issues. The Group was listed on 1 July 2022.

•	 Human Resources Policy

	 Comprehensive guidelines on employment are in place to ensure that the Group has a team of employees 
who are well trained and equipped with all necessary knowledge, skills and abilities to carry out their 
responsibilities effectively.

•	 Monitoring and Review

	 Management accounts containing key financial results and operational performance are presented to the 
Management for monitoring and review. The quarterly financial statements are presented to the Board for 
their review, consideration and approval.

•	 Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy

	 The Group has adopted an Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy in conjunction with the implementation of 
Section 17A of the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission (Amendment) Act 2018 which came into effect 
on 1 June 2020. The Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy is applicable to all Directors and employees of the 
Group and any third parties associated with the Group. This represents the Group’s effort in preventing the 
occurrence of bribery and corrupt practices in relation to the businesses of the Group.

ASSURANCE

In view of the Group’s current business activities, the Board is of the view that the above monitoring and reporting 
processes which have been put in place, provide an adequate form of check and balance. Nevertheless, the Board 
acknowledges that the system must continuously evolve and improve to support the Group’s business activities.

The Board recognises that the systems of internal control and risk management must continuously improve in line 
with the growth and evolving business environment of the Group. Therefore, the Board is committed to establish 
adequate plans to continuously improve the Group’s system of internal control and risk management.

REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to Rule 15.23 of the AMLR of Bursa Securities, the External Auditors have reviewed this Statement for 
inclusion in this Annual Report.  Their reviews were performed in accordance with Malaysian Approved Standard 
on Assurance Engagements, ISAE 3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagement Other than Audits or Reviews of 
Historical Financial Information and Audit and Assurance Practice Guide 3: Guidance for Auditors Report issued 
by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.  Based on their reviews, nothing has come to their attention that causes 
them to believe that this Statement is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the disclosures 
required by paragraphs 41 and 42 of the Guidelines to be set out, nor is factually accurate.

CONCLUSION

The Board is of the view that the risk management and internal control systems are functioning satisfactorily 
throughout the financial year under review and up to the date of this Statement. The Board will continue to take 
appropriate and necessary measures to monitor and improve the Group’s risk management and internal control 
systems to enhance the Group’s mission of good corporate governance practices. 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
REPORT

INTRODUCTION 

The Board is pleased to present the Audit Committee (“AC”) Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
(“FYE 2022”). This report outlines the activities held for the FYE 2022 in compliance with Rule 15.15 of the ACE 
Market Listing Requirements (“AMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”).

COMPOSITION 

The Company’s AC comprises of three (3) members, all of whom are exclusively Independent Non-Executive 
Directors. All the Independent Non-Executive Directors satisfied the test of independence under the AMLR of 
Bursa Securities. The AC meets the requirements of Rule 15.09(1)(a) and (b) of the AMLR of Bursa Securities. 

The Chairperson of the AC, Ms. Chui Mee Chuen, is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”) 
and hence, the Company complies with Rule 15.09(1)(c)(i) of the AMLR of Bursa Securities. She is also not the 
Chairperson of the Board in compliance with Practise 9.1 under the Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance 
2021 (“MCCG 2021”). 

The members of the AC and their respective designations and attendance are as follows:

Name Designation Meetings 
Attended

Profile on 
page

Chui Mee Chuen Chairperson
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

2/2 14

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad bin
Syed Abdul Kadir

Member
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

2/2 13

Ir. Hon Hin See Member
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

2/2 13

The Chairperson and members of the AC are financially literate, have extensive business experience, and brings 
with them the skill sets that allow the AC to effectively discharge their duties and responsibilities. The Board via 
the Nomination Committee would assess the composition and performance of the AC annually as part of its 
assessment of the effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees. 

The Terms of Reference of the AC that sets out the duties and responsibilities of the AC can be accessible at the 
Company’s corporate website at https://evd-berhad.com. 

The Company Secretary and/or her assistants attended all the AC meetings during the year. The two (2) Executive 
Directors and the Head of Finance attended all the meetings by way of invitation whilst the Internal and External 
Auditors were present by invitation at certain meetings that were relevant to them. 

SUMMARY ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE DURING THE YEAR 

A total of two (2) AC meetings were held in 2022. The following covered the areas that were reviewed and 
deliberated: 

1.	 Financial Reporting 

	 The AC discussed the quarterly financial performance and the quarterly announcements of the Group 
for the Second and Third Quarter of 2022. The quarterly announcement was reviewed for adequacy and 
appropriateness of disclosure and taking into account the provisions and judgmental accounting items 
for the respective financial quarters and in compliance with the relevant applicable accounting standards, 
laws and the AMLR of Bursa Securities. Having obtained reasonable assurance from management that the 
quarterly financial statements were prepared in accordance with the applicable financial reporting standards 
and the AMLR of Bursa Securities, a recommendation was made to the Board for consideration, approval 
and release to Bursa Securities.  
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE DURING THE YEAR (cont’d)

2.	 Terms of References and Policy

	 The Terms of Reference of the AC was reviewed and approved for adoption during the year. Given the 
size of the Board and nature of operations of the Group, a suggestion that the Audit Committee to be 
merged with the Risk Management Committee to form the Audit and Risk Management Committee upon the 
recommendation would be considered at a later date by the Board.

	 In addition, the AC reviewed and deliberated the Related Party Transactions and Recurrent Related Party 
Transaction Policy and approved for the policy to be tabled at the Board for adoption. 

3.	 External Audit

	 The AC reviewed and deliberated the Audit Planning Memorandum submitted by the External Auditors 
covering inter-alia their 2022 Audit Plan outlining their audit strategy, approach, audit emphasis, coordination 
with Internal Auditors and proposed fees for the current financial year’s statutory audit. The proposed Audit 
Plan and fees reviewed included non-recurring assurance related work for the financial year. The AC noted 
the proposed plan and approved it for the current financial year. 

	 The External Auditors also confirmed they have maintained their independence in accordance with the 
provisions of the Bye-Laws on Professional Independence of the MIA and the auditors firm’s requirements.

	 The External Auditors provided a brief update of key developments arising from changes in Accounting 
Standards and amendments to the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards and how this would impact the 
FYE 2022 financial statements.

	 The AC took note of the External Auditor’s comments and accepted their Audit Planning Memorandum for 
recommendation to the Board.   

4.	 Internal Audit 

	 The AC took note of the 2022/2023 risk-based internal audit plan presented by the Internal Auditors which 
included a detailed audit scope, areas to be reviewed and adequacy of resources required to execute the 
engagement. The 2022 audit scope was carried out as planned. 

	 The AC reviewed, discussed and took note of the audit findings, recommendations made and management 
responses accordingly. 

5.	 Recurrent Related Party Transactions

	 Presenting Recurrent Related Party Transactions (“RRPT”) are a standing agenda in each AC meeting. During 
the year, the AC reviewed the RRPT reports presented and assessed the adequacy of procedures to identify 
such transactions. The AC was satisfied that the RRPT were transacted at an arm’s length basis, were not 
detrimental to minority shareholders and in compliance with the AMLR of Bursa Securities. Furthermore, 
they were satisfied that they have not detected any issues that warranted specific disclosure. 

6.	 Re-appointment of External Auditors 

	 The AC carried out an assessment of the suitability, objectivity, independence, quality of the services 
provided, sufficiency of audit resources and interactions with management by the External Auditors. The 
AC was satisfied with the overall results of the assessment and have recommended to the Board the re-
appointment of the external auditors at the forthcoming 3rd Annual General Meeting to be held on 21 June 
2023. 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
(CONTINUED)

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION 

The presence of an internal audit function is essential to ensure the Group’s systems of internal controls are 
effective and is an integral part of the risk management process. 

The Group has outsourced its internal audit function to GovernanceAdvisory.com Sdn Bhd (“GovernanceAdvisory.
com” or ‘‘Internal Auditors’’), an independent firm of Internal Auditors that reports directly to the AC. Its primary 
responsibility is to provide independent and objective assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk 
management, internal control and governance processes established within the Group.

The profile of the Internal Auditors is as follow:

Audit lead Wong Tchen Cheg

Experience 	Associate Member of The Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia (IIAM)
Certified Practising Accountant (CPA)
Member of The Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA) 
Master in Finance and Accounting 
Master in Business Administration

Experience 	More than 17 years of experience in Financial Due Diligence and Internal Audit 
covering compliance reviews, internal audits, risk management, and financial due 
diligence.

Number of resources 	Each internal audit review will take approximately 15 days depending on 
complexity and will be supported by 2 to 3 staff per assignment.

GovernanceAdvisory.com is a corporate member of the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia (“IIAM”). 
 

SUMMARY OF INTERNAL AUDIT WORK FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 

GovernanceAdvisory.com undertook the following during the year: 

a.	 Prepared and presented a risk-based internal audit plan for the review and approval of the AC covering the 
following processes;

i.	 Tendering and Contract Management; and
ii.	 Project Monitoring and Management. 

b.	 Completed the review of the Group’s Tendering and Contract Management processes. 

	Their report highlighting their findings, recommendations and management’s responses and proposed action plans 
were presented to the AC on 25 November 2022. Notwithstanding there were some internal control weaknesses, 
none of the weaknesses had resulted in any material losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require a 
separate disclosure in the Annual Report. The total costs incurred for the outsourcing of the internal audit function 
for the financial FYE 2022 was RM14,400.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE
INFORMATION

1.	 REGULARISATION PLAN

	 The Company has partially utilised the regularisation plan proceeds during the financial year ended 31 
December 2022 (“FYE 2022”)

	 The gross proceeds arising from the regularisation plan amounting to RM26.643 million and the status of the 
utilisation of the proceeds were as follows:

	
					     Time frame
		  Proposed	 Actual	 Unutilised	 for utilisation
		  Utilisation	 Utilisation	 proceeds	 of proceeds
		  RM’000	 RM’000	 RM’000

Working capital for Group	 11,343	 6,000	 5,343	 Within 24 months
EVE Acquisition	 12,000	 12,000	 –	 Within 12 months
Estimated expenses in relation
  to the Regularisation Plan	 3,300	 3,300	 –	 Within 3 months

		  26,643	 21,300	 5,343

2.	 AUDIT FEE AND NON-AUDIT FEE

					     The Group	 The Company
					     RM’000	 RM’000

Audit fee				    129	 40
Non-Audit fee				    6	 6

					     135	 46

3.	 EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (“ESOS”)

	 The ESOS involves the granting of ESOS Option to all the Eligible Persons, which shall entitle the Eligible 
Persons to subscribe for new EVD Shares at a pre-determined price in accordance with the by-laws. The 
maximum number of new EVD Shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the ESOS Options that may 
be granted under the ESOS shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the total number of issued shares of 
EVD (excluding treasury shares) at any one time throughout the tenure of the ESOS.

	 The Company has announced that pursuant to Rule 6.44(1) of the Ace Market Listing Requirements of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad, the effective date for the implementation of the ESOS has been fixed on 29 
August 2022, being the date of full compliance of the ESOS for a period of five (5) years until 28 July 2027 
with the option to extend for a further of five (5) years.

	 As at 31st December 2022, the Company has not granted any ESOS option to any Eligible Persons.
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Statement Of
Directors’ Responsibility

For Preparing the Financial Statements

The Directors are required to prepare financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, the 
operations results and cash flow of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2016.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have: 

1.	 Selected and applied the appropriate and relevant accounting policies on a consistent basis;
2.	 Made judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudence in the circumstances;
3.	 Prepared the annual audited financial statements on a going concern basis and in compliance with all 

applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia; and
4.	 Reviewed the adequacy and integrity of internal control system and management information system in the 

company and within the Group. 

The Directors are responsible to ensure that the Group and the Company maintain proper accounting records that 
disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group and the Company. 

The Directors have an overall responsibility to take steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to establish, 
implement and maintain appropriate accounting and internal control systems to prevent and detect fraud and 
other irregularities. 

Incorporated on pages 38 to 113 of this Integrated Annual Report are the financial statements of the Group and 
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’
REPORT

The directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries 
are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements. 

RESULTS

				    The 	 The
				    Group	 Company
				    RM	 RM

Profit/(Loss) after taxation for the financial year			   7,391,698	 (574,948)

Attributable to:-
Owners of the Company				    7,453,900	 (574,948)
Non-controlling interests				    (62,202)	 –

				    7,391,698	 (574,948)

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was recommended by the directors for the financial year.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than those 
disclosed in the financial statements.

ISSUES OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the financial year:-

(a)	 the Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM0.40 to RM53,779,755 by way of:-

(i)	 issuance of 252,000,000 new ordinary shares for a cash consideration of RM0.15 each for purpose of 
acquisition of EVD Engineering Sdn. Bhd. and its subsidiaries (“EVE Group”);

(ii)	 issuance of 130,539,654 new ordinary shares for the purpose of exchange share with iDimension 
Consolidated Berhad (“ICB”);
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ISSUES OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES (cont’d)

(a)	 the Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM0.40 to RM53,779,755 by way of 
(Cont’d):-

	 The entire issued and paid-up share capital of the Company of 382,539,656 ordinary shares was listed and 
quoted on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 1 July 2022.

(iii)	 issuance of 23,559,580 new ordinary shares from the conversion of redeemable convertible preference 
shares (“RCPS”) at the exercise price of RM0.10 per RCPS; and

(iv)	 issuance of 552,100 new ordinary shares from the exercise of Warrants 2022/2029 at the exercise 
price of RM0.10 per warrant.

	 The new ordinary shares issued rank equally in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

(b)	 there were no issues of debentures by the Company.

WARRANTS

The details of the warrants are disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES 

During the financial year, no options were granted by the Company to any person to take up any unissued shares 
in the Company.

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable 
steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance 
for impairment losses on receivables and satisfied themselves that there are no known bad debts and that adequate 
allowance had been made for impairment losses on receivables.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would require the writing off of bad 
debts, or the additional allowance for impairment losses on receivables in the financial statements of the Group 
and of the Company.

CURRENT ASSETS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable 
steps to ensure that any current assets, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business, 
including their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company, have been written 
down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values attributed 
to the current assets in the financial statements misleading.

VALUATION METHODS

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which render 
adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading 
or inappropriate.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(CONTINUED)
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CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

At the date of this report, there does not exist:-

(a)	 any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year 
which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(b)	 any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

No contingent or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the 
directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations 
when they fall due.
 

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or 
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial 
statements misleading.

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not, in the opinion of 
the directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, 
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect substantially 
the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

DIRECTORS

The names of directors of the Company who served during the financial year and up to the date of this report are 
as follows:-

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad Bin Syed Abdul Kadir (Appointed on 24.5.2022)
Mah Seong Huak (Appointed on 27.4.2022)
Ir. Gan Wee Peng (Appointed on 27.4.2022)
Ir. Hon Hin See (Appointed on 28.3.2022)
Chui Mee Chuen (Appointed on 19.6.2022)
Ching Chee Pun (Resigned on 27.4.2022)
Tan Hoon San (Resigned on 27.4.2022)

The names of directors of the Company’s subsidiaries who served during the financial year and up to the date of 
this report, not including those directors mentioned above, are as follows:-

Gan Yen Ling (Appointed on 2.7.2022)
Sabapathy Ravindranath Vijay
 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors holding office at the end of the 
financial year in shares of the Company and its related corporations during the financial year are as follows:-

	 <---------------- Number of Ordinary Shares ---------------->
		  At	 Allotted/		  At
		  1.1.2022	 Bought	 Sold	 31.12.2022

The Company				  
				  
Direct Interests				  
				  
Ching Chee Pun		  1	 –	 (1)	 –
Tan Hoon San		  1	 –	 (1)	 –
Mah Seong Huak		  –	 113,500,001	 –	 113,500,001
Ir. Gan Wee Peng		  –	 113,500,001	 –	 113,500,001

Indirect Interests

Mah Seong Huak#		  –	 17,000,000	 –	 17,000,000
Ir. Gan Wee Peng*		  –	 8,000,000	 –	 8,000,000

	 <- Number of Redeemed Convertible Preference Shares ->
		  At		  Redeemed/	 At
		  1.1.2022	 Allotted	 Converted	 31.12.2022

The Company				  
				  
Direct Interests				  

Mah Seong Huak		  –	 1,079,000,000	 –	 1,079,000,000
Ir. Gan Wee Peng		  –	 1,079,000,000	 –	 1,079,000,000

Indirect Interests

Mah Seong Huak#		  –	 98,000,000	 –	 98,000,000
Ir. Gan Wee Peng*		  –	 72,000,000	 –	 72,000,000
 
*	 Deemed interested by virtue of his direct substantial shareholding in GWP Ventures Sdn. Bhd..
#	 Deemed interested by virtue of his direct substantial shareholding in Vistacove Sdn. Bhd..

By virtue of their shareholdings in the Company, Mah Seong Huak and Ir. Gan Wee Peng are deemed to have 
interests in shares in its related corporations during the financial year to the extent of the Company’s interests, in 
accordance with Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.

The other directors holding office at the end of the financial year had no interest in shares, options over unissued 
shares or debentures of the Company or its related corporations during the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any benefit 
(other than directors’ remuneration as disclosed in the “Directors’ Remuneration” of this report) by reason of a 
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the director is a 
member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest except for any benefits which 
may be deemed to arise from transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business with companies in which 
certain directors have substantial financial interests as disclosed in Note 36(b) to the financial statements.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Group or the Company a party to any arrangements 
whose object is to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures 
of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The details of the directors’ remuneration paid or payable to the directors of the Company during the financial year 
are as follows:-

				    The Group	 The Company
				    RM	 RM

Fees	 	 	 	 288,324	 87,500
Salaries, bonuses and other benefits				    1,028,481	 3,000
Defined contribution benefits				    112,104	 –

				    1,428,909	 90,500

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE COST

During the financial year, there was no indemnity given to or professional indemnity insurance effected for directors, 
officers or auditors of the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements. 

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

The significant events during the financial year are disclosed in Note 39 to the financial statements. 

 
SIGNIFICANT EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

The significant event occurring after the reporting period is disclosed in Note 40 to the financial statements. 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(CONTINUED)
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AUDITORS

The auditors, Crowe Malaysia PLT, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

The details of the auditors’ remuneration for the financial year are as follows:-

				    The Group	 The Company
				    RM	 RM
				  
Audit fees				    129,262	 40,000
Non-audit fees				    6,000	  6,000

				    135,262	 46,000

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 25 April 2023.

Mah Seong Huak

Ir. Gan Wee Peng

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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STATEMENT BY
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016

We, Mah Seong Huak and Ir. Gan Wee Peng, being two of the directors of EVD Berhad, state that, in the opinion 
of the directors, the financial statements set out on pages 53 to 113 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies 
Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as 
of 31 December 2022 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 25 April 2023.

Mah Seong Huak	 Ir. Gan Wee Peng

 

STATUTORY
DECLARATION

Pursuant To Section 251(1)(b) Of The Companies Act 2016

I, Mah Seong Huak, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of EVD Berhad, do 
solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 53 to 113 are, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the declaration to be 
true, and by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovementioned
Mah Seong Huak, NRIC Number: 650224-02-5181
at Kuala Lumpur 
in the Federal Territory
on this 25 April 2023

			    Mah Seong Huak

Before me

Datin Hajah Raihela Wanchik (W-275)
Commissioner for Oaths
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Evd Berhad

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of EVD Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 
31 December 2022 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the 
financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies, as set out on pages 53 to 113.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2022, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for 
the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards 
on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, 
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International 
Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Evd Berhad

(CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Accounting effect for the acquisition of subsidiaries and impairment assessment on goodwill arose from 
the acquisitions
Refer to Notes 4.1(a), 4.3, 8 and 33 to the financial statements

Key Audit Matter 	How our audit address the Key Audit Matter

During the financial year, the Group acquired the 
subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 33 to the financial 
statements.

(a)	 Acquisition accounting under MFRS 3 - Business 
Combinations. 

	 This was an area of focus as the acquisition 
is material and requires the use of significant 
judgement regarding the fair value of purchase 
consideration, identification of intangible assets 
acquired and the valuation of assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed. 

	 A purchase price allocation exercise was 
performed by an external expert. The primary 
element of the valuation exercise assessed is 
the fair value of purchase consideration and 
fair value of identifiable intangible assets. The 
goodwill of approximately RM62 million was 
also highly dependent on the fair value of the net 
identifiable assets at the acquisition date.

Our audit procedures, among others, included the 
following:-

•	 We evaluated the objectivity, independence and 
capabilities of the independent external expert.

•	 We assessed the appropriateness of the 
methodology adopted and the reasonableness 
of the discount rate used by management and its 
independent external expert, with the assistance 
of our internal specialist.

•	 We reviewed the adequacy of disclosure of the 
acquisition in the financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)

Accounting effect for the acquisition of subsidiaries and impairment assessment on goodwill arose from 
the acquisitions (Cont’d)
Refer to Notes 4.1(a), 4.3, 8 and 33 to the financial statements

Key Audit Matter 	How our audit address the Key Audit Matter

During the financial year, the Group acquired the 
subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 33 to the financial 
statements (Cont’d).

(b)	 Impairment assessment on goodwill arose from 
the acquisitions.

	 This was an area of focus given the inherent 
subjectivity of annual impairment testing 
required.

	 Management is required to conduct annual 
impairment assessment on the goodwill. For 
this purpose, Management has estimated the 
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit 
(“CGU”) in which the goodwill is attached to, 
using the value in use approach. This is derived 
from the present value of the future cash flows 
from the CGU.

	 This assessment is significant to our audit 
as it is highly subjective, involves significant 
judgement and is based on assumptions that 
may be affected by future market and economic 
conditions.

	 Further details are shown in Note 8 to the financial 
statements.

Our audit procedures, among others, included the 
following:-

•	 We obtained management’s impairment 
analysis and gained and understanding of their 
impairment assessment process.

•	 We assessed the appropriateness of the 
methodology adopted and the reasonableness 
of the discount rate used by management.

•	 We reviewed the reasonableness of the key 
assumptions used and judgement made in 
determining the recoverable amount of the CGU.

•	 We also performed and checked the sensitivity 
analysis to assess the impact on the recoverable 
amount of the CGU.

•	 We reviewed the adequacy of disclosure of 
goodwill in the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Evd Berhad
(CONTINUED)
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)

Revenue and Profit Recognition for Construction Services
Refer to Notes 4.1(c), 4.19(a) and 28 to the financial statements

Key Audit Matter 	How our audit address the Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition for construction contracts, due 
to the contracting nature of the business, involves 
significant judgements. This includes the determination 
of the total budgeted contract costs and the calculation 
of percentage of completion which affects the 
quantum of revenue to be recognised. In estimating the 
revenue to be recognised, the management considers 
past experience and certification by customers and 
independent third parties, where applicable.

We determined this to be a key audit matter due to the 
complexity and judgemental nature of the budgeting 
of contract costs and the determination of revenue 
recognised.

Our audit procedures, among others, included the 
following:-

•	 Read key contracts and discussed with 
management to obtain full understanding of the 
terms and risks to assess our consideration of 
whether revenue was appropriately recognised.

•	 Tested costs incurred to date to supporting 
documentation such as contractors’ claim 
certificates.

•	 Assessed the management’s assumptions in 
determining the percentage of trade receivables 
completion of projects, estimations of revenue 
and costs, provisions for foreseeable losses, 
liquidated and ascertained damages as well as 
recoverability of billed receivables and contract 
assets.

•	 Assessed the reasonableness of percentage 
of completion by comparing to certification by 
external parties.

•	 Reviewed estimated profit and costs to complete 
and adjustments for costing and potential 
contract losses.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Evd Berhad
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)

Impairment of Trade Receivables
Refer to Notes 10 and 38.1(b)(iii) to the financial statements

Key Audit Matter 	How our audit address the Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2022, trade receivables that were 
past due and not impaired amounted to RM6,327,546. 
The details of trade receivables and its credit risk are 
disclosed in Notes 10 and 38.1(b)(iii) to the financial 
statements. 

The management applied assumptions in assessing 
the level of allowance for impairment losses on trade 
receivables based on the following:-

•	 customers’ payment profiles of past sales and 
corresponding historical credit losses;

•	 specific known facts or circumstances on 
customers’ ability to pay; or

•	 by reference to past default experience. 

The impairment assessment involves significant 
judgements and there is inherent uncertainty in the 
assumptions applied by the management to determine 
the level of allowance. Hence, we determined this to be 
a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures, among others, included the 
following:-

•	 Obtained an understanding of:-

•	 the Group’s control over the trade 
receivables collection process;

•	 how the Group identifies and assesses the 
impairment of trade receivables; and 

•	 how the Group makes the accounting 
estimates for impairment.

•	 Reviewed the ageing analysis of trade receivables 
and testing the reliability thereof;

•	 Reviewed subsequent cash collections for major 
trade receivables and overdue amounts;

•	 Made inquiries of management regarding the 
action plans to recover overdue amounts;

•	 Compared and challenged management’s view 
on the recoverability of overdue amounts to 
historical patterns of collection;

•	 Examined other evidence including customer 
correspondences, proposed or existing 
settlement plans, repayment schedules; and

•	 Evaluated the reasonableness and adequacy of 
the allowance for impairment loss recognised.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Evd Berhad
(CONTINUED)
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors are also 
responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing 
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate 
the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards 
on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards 
on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:-

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Group’s and the Company’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the directors.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Evd Berhad
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 
the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiary of 
which we has not acted as auditors, is disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

OTHER MATTERS 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the 
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person 
for the content of this report.

Crowe Malaysia PLT	 Chua Wai Hong
201906000005 (LLP0018817-LCA) & AF 1018	 02974/09/2023 J
Chartered Accountants	 Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur

25 April 2023
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STATEMENTS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
		  Note	 RM	 RM	 RM

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries		  5	 –	 130,191,742	 –
Equipment		  6	 5,140,357	 –	 –
Right-of-use assets		  7	 1,116,917	 –	 –
Goodwill		  8	 61,631,757	 –	 –
Deferred tax assets		  9	 119,906	 –	 –

			   68,008,937	 130,191,742	 –

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivables		  10	 44,498,204	 –	 –
Other receivables, deposits and
  prepayments		  11	 1,962,933	 500	 500
Contract assets		  12	 78,530,563	 –	 –
Amount owing by a subsidiary		  13	 –	 6,000,000	 –
Current tax assets			   1,962,061	 –	 –
Fixed deposits with licensed banks	 	 14	 28,343,294	 5,052,921	 –
Cash and bank balances			   20,257,478	 3,260,281	 ^

			   175,554,533	 14,313,702	 500

TOTAL ASSETS			   243,563,470	 144,505,444	 500

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Share capital		  15	 53,779,755	 53,779,755	 ^
RCPS		  16	 61,950,332	 61,950,332	 –
Warrant reserve		  17	 4,271,832	 4,271,832	 –
Foreign translation reserve	 	 18	 685,142	 –	 –
Retained profits/(Accumulated losses)			   7,401,351	 (627,497)	 (52,549)

Equity attributable to owners of the 
  Company			   128,088,412	 119,374,422	 (52,549)
Non-controlling interests		  5	 (62,202)	 –	 –

TOTAL EQUITY	 	 	 128,026,210	 119,374,422	 (52,549)

 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at 31 December 2022
(CONTINUED)

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
		  Note	 RM	 RM	 RM

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings		  19	 265,564	 –	 –
Lease liabilities		  24	 417,847	 –	 –
Deferred tax liabilities		  9	 672,339	 –	 –

			   1,355,750	 –	 –

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables		  25	 66,754,967	 –	 –
Contract liabilities		  12	 26,484,236	 –	 –
Other payables and accruals		  26	 5,083,402	 131,022	 11,845
Amount owing to a subsidiary		  13	 –	 25,000,000	 –
Lease liabilities		  24	 755,996	 –	 –
Borrowings		  19	 13,511,086	 –	 –
Current tax liabilities			   1,591,823	 –	 –
Amount owing to a director		  27	 –	 –	 41,204

			   114,181,510	 25,131,022	 53,049

TOTAL LIABILITIES			   115,537,260	 25,131,022	 53,049

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES	 	 	 243,563,470	 144,505,444	 500

^ - Represents amount of RM0.40.

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
		  Note	 RM	 RM	 RM

REVENUE	 	 28	 95,998,626	 –	 –	
					   
COST OF SALES	 	 	 (78,644,216)	 –	 –

GROSS PROFIT	 	 	 17,354,410	 –	 –	
					   
OTHER INCOME			   5,640,689	 76,385	 –

			   22,995,099	 76,385	 –

SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES			  (344,576)	 –	 –	
				  
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES			   (6,376,967)	 (651,333)	 (30,740)

OTHER EXPENSES			   (6,288,775)	 –	 –

FINANCE COSTS	 	 	 (94,324)	 –	 –

NET REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS
  ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
  CONTRACT ASSETS		  29	 434,341	 –	 –

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION	 	 30	 10,324,798	 (574,948)	 (30,740)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE		  31	 (2,933,100)	 –	 –

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAXATION	 	 	 7,391,698	 (574,948)	 (30,740)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that Will be Reclassified
  Subsequently to Profit and Loss
Foreign currency translation differences	 	 	 685,142	 –	 –

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
  (EXPENSES) THE FINANCIAL YEAR	 	 	 8,076,840	 (574,948)	 (30,740)

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Financial Year ended 31 December 2022
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Financial Year ended 31 December 2022
(CONTINUED)

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
		  Note	 RM	 RM	 RM

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAXATION
  ATTRIBUTABLE TO:-
Owners of the Company			   7,453,900	 (574,948)	 (30,740)
Non-controlling interests			   (62,202)	 –	 –

			   7,391,698	 (574,948)	 (30,740)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
  (EXPENSES) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:-
Owners of the Company			   8,139,042	 (574,948)	 (30,740)
Non-controlling interests			   (62,202)	 –	 –

			   8,076,840	 (574,948)	 (30,740)

EARNINGS PER SHARE (SEN)		  32
Basic			   3.01
Diluted			   0.38

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Financial Year ended 31 December 2022
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Financial Year ended 31 December 2022
(CONTINUED)

					     Distributable
		  Share		  Warrant	 Accumulated	 Total
		  Capital	 RCPS	 Reserve	 Losses	 Equity
The Company	 Note	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
						    
Balance at 1.1.2021		  ^	 –	 –	 (21,809)	 (21,809)
						    
Loss/Total comprehensive
  expenses for the financial year		  –	 –	 –	 (30,740)	 (30,740)

Balance at 31.12.2021/1.1.2022		  ^	 –	 –	 (52,549)	 (52,549)

Loss after taxation/Total
  comprehensive expenses
  for the financial year		  –	 –	 –	 (574,948)	 (574,948)

Contribution by the owners
  of the Company:

- Issuance of shares	 15	 57,450,597	 –	 –	 –	 57,450,597
- Warrant reserve	 17	 (4,299,106)	 –	 4,299,106	 –	 –
- Exercise of warrant reserve	 17	 27,274	 –	 (27,274)	 –	 –

Total contribution by owners
  of the Company		  53,178,765	 –	 4,271,832	 –	 57,450,597

Issuance of RCPS	 16	 –	 62,551,322	 –	 –	 62,551,322
Conversion of RCPS	 16	 600,990	 (600,990)	 –	 –	 –

Balance at 31.12.2022		  53,779,755	 61,950,332	 4,271,832	 (627,497)	 119,374,422

^ - Represents amount of RM0.40.

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF
CASH Flows

For the Financial Year ended 31 December 2022

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
		  Note	 RM	 RM	 RM

CASH FLOWS (FOR)/FROM OPERATING
  ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before taxation			   10,324,798	 (574,948)	 (30,740)

Adjustments for:-
Amortisation of intangible asset			   4,103,000	 –	 –
Bargain purchase			   (4,598,995)	 –	 –
Depreciation:
- equipment			   741,496	 –	 –
- right-of-use assets			   1,016,199	 –	 –
Equipment written off			   250,617	 –	 –
Gain on lease modification			   (6,652)	 –	 –
Gain on unrealised foreign exchange			   (74,842)	 –	 –
Impairment loss
- contract assets			   139,388	 –	 –
- trade receivables			   211,412	 –	 –
Interest expense on lease liabilities			   69,774	 –	 –
Interest income			   (294,536)	 (76,385)	 –
Reversal of impairment loss			   (785,141)	 –	 –
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities
  that are not at fair value through profit or loss		  915,446	 –	 –

Operating profit/(loss) before working
  capital changes			   12,011,964	 (651,333)	 (30,740)
Decrease in contract cost assets			   229,001	 –	 –
Decrease in contract assets			   1,064,519	 –	 –
Increase in trade and other receivables			   (7,582,361)	 –	 –
Increase in trade and other payables			   543,614	 25,578	 8,845
Decrease in contract liabilities			   (15,775,591)	 –	 –
Net advances from a subsidiary			   –	 19,000,000	 –

CASH (FOR)/FROM OPERATIONS	 	 	 (9,508,854)	 18,374,245	 (21,895)
Income tax paid			   (1,616,281)	 –	 –

NET CASH (FOR)/FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES	 	 (11,125,135)	 18,374,245	 (21,895)

 
CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR) INVESTING
  ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash and
  cash equivalents acquired		  33(c)	 41,759,063	 (12,000,001)	 –
Additions in collateral account			   (11,769)	 –	 –
Additions to fixed deposits pledged
  licensed banks			   (858,894)	 –	 –
Interest received			   294,536	 76,385	 –
Purchase of equipment		  34(a)	 (1,377,968)	 –	 –
Withdrawal of fixed deposits with tenure
  more than 3 months			   678,972	 –	 –

NET CASH FROM/(FOR) INVESTING
  ACTIVITIES			   40,483,940	 (11,923,616)	 –
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	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
		  Note	 RM	 RM	 RM

CASH FLOWS (FOR)/FROM FINANCING
  ACTIVITIES
Advances from a director			   52,395	 52,395	 21,895
Net issuance of new ordinary shares			   1,810,178	 1,810,178	 –
Interest paid on:
- lease liabilities			   (69,774)	 –	 –
- hire purchase payables			   (16,742)	 –	 –
- invoice financing			   (755,824)	 –	 –
- bankers’ acceptance			   (139,060)	 –	 –
- bank overdraft			   (3,820)	 –	 –
Net repayment of borrowings			   (4,881,527)	 –	 –
Net repayment of lease liabilities			   (1,078,072)	 –	 –

NET CASH (FOR)/FROM FINANCING
  ACTIVITIES			   (5,082,246)	 1,862,573	 21,895

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
  EQUIVALENTS	 	 	 24,276,559	 8,313,202	 –

EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
  TRANSLATION			   444,711	 –	 –

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
  BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR	 	 ^	 ^	 ^

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
  END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR	 	 34(e)	 24,721,270	 8,313,202	 ^

^ - Represents amount of RM0.40.

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF CASH Flows
For the Financial Year ended 31 December 2022
(CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Financial Year ended 31 December 2022

1.	 GENERAL INFORMATION

	 The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The registered 
office and principal place of business are as follows:-

Registered office	 :	 Unit 30-01, Level 30, Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, 
			   Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi,
			   59200 Kuala Lumpur. 

Principal place of business	 :	 No. 5, Jalan Kajibumi U1/70, Kawasan Perindustrian Temasya,
			   40150 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

	 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution 
of the directors dated 25 April 2023.

2.	 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

	 The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding. The principal activities of the 
subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements. 

3.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION
	
	 The financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention and modified to 

include other bases of valuation as disclosed in other sections under significant accounting policies, and 
in compliance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

3.1	 During the current financial year, the Group has adopted the following new accounting standards and/
or interpretations (including the consequential amendments, if any):-

MFRSs and/or IC Interpretations (Including The Consequential Amendments)

Amendments to MFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to MFRS 116: Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to MFRS 137: Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018 - 2020
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3.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

3.2	 The Group has not applied in advance the following accounting standards and interpretations (including 
the consequential amendments, if any) that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
Board (MASB) but are not yet effective for the current financial year:-

MFRSs and/or IC Interpretations (Including The Consequential Amendments)	 Effective Date

MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts	 1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or Contribution of Assets between 
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture	 Deferred

Amendments to MFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback	 1 January 2024

Amendments to MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts	 1 January 2023

Amendment to MFRS 17: Initial Application of MFRS 17 and MFRS 9 - 
Comparative Information	 1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 101: Disclosure of Accounting Policies	 1 January 2023

Amendment to MFRS 101: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current	 1 January 2024

Amendments to MFRS 101: Non-current Liabilities with Covenants	 1 January 2024

Amendments to MFRS 108: Definition of Accounting Estimates	 1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 112: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising 
from a Single Transaction	 1 January 2023

	 The adoption of the above accounting standards and/or interpretations (including the consequential 
amendments, if any) is expected to have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group 
upon their initial application.

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1	 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

	 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

	 Management believes that there are no key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key 
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year other than as 
disclosed below:-

(a)	 Impairment of Goodwill

	 The assessment of whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of 
the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating a value in use amount 
requires management to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present 
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at the reporting date and the key 
assumptions are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.1	 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Cont’d)

(b)	 Impairment of Trade Receivables and Contract Assets

	 The Group uses the simplified approach to estimate a lifetime expected credit loss allowance for 
all trade receivables and contract assets. The contract assets are grouped with trade receivables 
for impairment assessment because they have substantially the same risk characteristics as the 
trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group develops the expected loss rates 
based on the payment profiles of past sales and the corresponding historical credit losses, and 
adjusts for qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. 
If the expectation is different from the estimation, such difference will impact the carrying value 
of trade receivables and contract assets. The carrying amounts of trade receivables and contract 
assets as at the reporting date are disclosed in Notes 10 and 12 to the financial statements 
respectively.

(c)	 Revenue Recognition for Construction Contracts

	 The Group recognises construction revenue by reference to the construction progress using 
the input method, determined based on the proportion of construction costs incurred for work 
performed to date over the estimated total construction costs. The total estimated costs are 
based on approved budgets, which require assessment and judgement to be made on changes 
in, for example, work scope, changes in costs and costs to completion. In making the judgement, 
management relies on past experience and the work of specialists. The carrying amounts of 
contract assets and contract liabilities as at the reporting date are disclosed in Note 12 to the 
financial statements.

 
(d)	 Income Taxes

	 There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination may be 
different from the initial estimate. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on its understanding 
of the prevailing tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary 
course of business. Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that 
were initially recognised, such difference will impact the income tax expense and deferred tax 
balances in the period in which such determination is made. The carrying amount of current tax 
assets and liabilities as at the reporting date is RM1,962,061 and RM1,591,823 respectively.

(e)	 Purchase Price Allocation

	 Purchase prices related to business combinations are allocated to the underlying acquired assets 
and liabilities based on their estimated fair value at the time of acquisition. The determination of 
fair value required the Group to make assumptions, estimates and judgements regarding future 
events. The allocation process is inherently subjective and impacts the amount assigned to 
individually identifiable assets and liabilities. As a result, the purchase price allocation impacts 
the Group’s reported assets (including goodwill) and liabilities, future net earnings due to the 
impact on future depreciation and amortisation expense and impairment tests. The fair values of 
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed under the business combinations made during the 
current financial year are disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.1	 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

		 Critical Judgements Made in Applying Accounting Policies

	 Management believes that there are no instances of application of critical judgement in applying the 
Group’s accounting policies which will have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements other than as disclosed below:-

(a)	 Lease Terms

	 Some leases contain extension options exercisable by the Group before the end of the non-
cancellable contract period. In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and 
circumstances including the past practice and any cost that will be incurred to change the asset 
if an option to extend is not taken. An extension option is only included in the lease term if the 
lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

4.2	 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

	 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries made up to the end of the reporting period.

	 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group is 
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability 
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Potential voting rights are considered when 
assessing control only when such rights are substantive. The Group also considers it has de facto 
power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the current ability 
to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.

	 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up to the 
effective date on which control ceases, as appropriate.

	 Intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Intragroup 
losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. 
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure 
consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.

(a)	 Business Combinations

	 Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. Under the acquisition 
method, the consideration transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets 
transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group at the acquisition 
date. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from 
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs, other than the costs to issue 
debt or equity securities, are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

	 In a business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are 
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised 
in profit or loss.

	 Non-controlling interests in the acquiree may be initially measured either at fair value or at the 
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net 
assets at the date of acquisition. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.2	 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONT’D)

(b)	 Non-controlling Interests

	 Non-controlling interests are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of financial 
position, separately from the equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and 
each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company 
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling 
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(c)	 Changes in Ownership Interests in Subsidiaries Without Change of Control

	 All changes in the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of 
control are accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by which 
the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is 
recognised directly in the equity of the Group.

(d)	 Loss of Control

	 Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group recognises any gain or loss on disposal in 
profit or loss which is calculated as the difference between:-

(i)	 the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any 
retained interest in the former subsidiary; and

(ii)	 the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the former 
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

	 Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the former 
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets 
or liabilities were disposed of (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained 
profits). The fair value of any investments retained in the former subsidiary at the date when 
control is lost is regarded as the fair value of the initial recognition for subsequent accounting 
under MFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate 
or a joint venture.

 
4.3	 GOODWILL

	 Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The carrying value of goodwill 
is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying amount may be impaired. The impairment value of goodwill is recognised immediately 
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

	 Under the acquisition method, any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred 
in the business combination, the amount of non-controlling interests recognised and the fair value 
of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the 
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition is recorded as goodwill.

	 Where the latter amount exceeds the former, after reassessment, the excess represents a bargain 
purchase gain and is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.4	 FUNCTIONAL AND FOREIGN CURRENCIES

(a)	 Functional and Presentation Currency

	 The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates, which is the functional currency.

	 The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the 
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b)	 Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the respective functional currencies on 
initial recognition, using the exchange rates at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and 
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are translated at the exchange rates ruling as of that 
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when 
the values were determined. All exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.

(c)	 Foreign Operations

	 Assets and liabilities of foreign operations (including any goodwill and fair value adjustments 
arising on acquisition) are translated to the Group’s presentation currency at the exchange 
rates at the end of the reporting period. Income, expenses and other comprehensive income of 
foreign operations are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. All exchange 
differences arising from translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity; attributed to the owners of the Company and non-controlling interests, 
as appropriate.

	 Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition of foreign operations are treated 
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of 
the foreign operations and translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period.

	 On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign 
subsidiary, or partial disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign 
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation 
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences 
accumulated in equity in respect of that foreign operation attributable to the owners of the 
Company are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. The portion 
related to non-controlling interests is derecognised but is not reclassified to profit or loss.

	 In addition, in relation to partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing 
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are 
reattributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. When the Group 
disposes of only part of its investment in an associate that includes a foreign operation while 
retaining significant influence, the proportionate share of the accumulative exchange differences 
is reclassified to profit or loss.

	 In the consolidated financial statements, when the settlement of an intragroup loan is neither 
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, the exchange differences arising from 
translating such monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in the foreign 
operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.5	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
	
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statements of financial position when the 

Group has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

	 Financial instruments are classified as financial assets, financial liabilities or equity instruments in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and their definitions in MFRS 132. 
Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument classified as liability are reported 
as an expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are 
charged directly to equity.

	 Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to 
settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

 
	 A financial instrument is recognised initially at its fair value (other than trade receivables without 

significant financing component which are measured at transaction price as defined in MFRS 15 at 
inception). Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial 
instrument (other than a financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss) are added to/deducted 
from the fair value on initial recognition, as appropriate. Transaction costs on the financial instrument 
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

	 Financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial position are disclosed in the individual 
policy statement associated with each item.

	
(a)	 Financial Assets

	 All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised 
cost or fair value (through profit or loss, or other comprehensive income), depending on the 
classification of the financial assets.

	 Debt Instruments

(i)	 Amortised Cost

	 The financial asset is held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest. Interest income is recognised by 
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When 
the asset has subsequently become credit-impaired, the interest income is recognised by 
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset.

	 The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate 
is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid 
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and 
other premiums or discounts), excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life 
of the financial asset or a shorter period (where appropriate).

(ii)	 Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

	 The financial asset is held for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial 
asset, where the asset’s cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. 
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the fair value reserve, except for the recognition of impairment, interest 
income and foreign exchange difference which are recognised directly in profit or loss. 
Interest income is calculated using the effective interest rate method.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.5	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(a)	 Financial Assets (Cont’d)

(iii)	 Fair Value through Profit or Loss

	 All other financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value 
through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value through profit or loss. The 
fair value changes do not include interest or dividend income.

	 The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing 
those assets change.

	 Equity Instruments

	 All equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses recognised 
in profit or loss except where the Group has elected to present the subsequent changes in 
fair value in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve at initial 
recognition.

	 The designation at fair value through other comprehensive income is not permitted if the equity 
investment is either held for trading or is designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise.

	 Dividend income from this category of financial assets is recognised in profit or loss when the 
Group’s right to receive payment is established unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery 
of part of the cost of the equity investments.

(b)	 Financial Liabilities

(i)	 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

	 Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are either 
held for trading or are designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or 
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise. The changes in fair value (excluding 
interest expense) of these financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

(ii)	 Other Financial Liabilities

	 Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method.

	 The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and 
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction 
costs and other premiums or discounts), through the expected life of the financial liability 
or a shorter period (where appropriate).

(c)	 Equity Instruments

	 Equity instruments classified as equity are measured initially at cost and are not remeasured 
subsequently.

	 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs.

	 Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for appropriation.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.5	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(d)	 Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares

	 The redeemable convertible preference shares are regarded as compound financial instruments, 
consisting of a liability component and an equity component.

	 The proceeds from the issuance of the redeemable convertible preference shares are first 
allocated to the liability component, determined based on the fair value of a similar liability 
that does not have a conversion feature or similar associated equity component. The residual 
amount is allocated as the equity component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are 
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

	 Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability component is measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. The equity component is not remeasured subsequent to the 
initial recognition.

	 Interest and losses and gains relating to the financial liability are recognised in profit or loss. 
On conversion, the financial liability is reclassified to equity; no gain or loss is recognised on 
conversion.

	 When the preference shares are not redeemed from proceeds of an issuance of new shares, a 
sum equal to the amount redeemed shall be transferred from retained profits to share capital. 

(e)	 Derecognition 

	 A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the financial asset expire or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. On derecognition of a 
financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the carrying amount of 
the asset and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit 
or loss. In addition, on derecognition of a debt instrument classified as fair value through 
other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the fair 
value reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. In contrast, there is no subsequent 
reclassification of the fair value reserve to profit or loss following the derecognition of an equity 
investment.

	 A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified 
in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a financial liability, the 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(f)	 Financial Guarantee Contracts

	 A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments 
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment 
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

	 Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as liabilities at fair value, net of transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts are recognised as income 
in profit or loss over the period of the guarantee or, when there is no specific contractual period, 
recognised in profit or loss upon discharge of the guarantee. If the debtor fails to make payment 
relating to a financial guarantee contract when it is due and the Group, as the issuer, is required 
to reimburse the holder for the associated loss, the liability is measured at the higher of the 
amount of the credit loss determined in accordance with the expected credit loss model and the 
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.6	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

	 Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the Company, and 
are reviewed for impairment at the end of the reporting period if events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. The cost of the investments includes 
transaction costs.

	 On the disposal of the investments in subsidiaries, the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the investments is recognised in profit or loss.

4.7	 EQUIPMENT

	 All items of equipment are initially measured at cost. Cost includes expenditure that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the asset and other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to 
working condition for its intended use.

	 Subsequent to initial recognition, all equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
any impairment losses.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when the cost is incurred and it is probable that the future economic benefits 
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 
The carrying amount of parts that are replaced is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing 
of equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

	 Depreciation on equipment is charged to profit or loss (unless it is included in the carrying amount of 
another asset) on a straight-line method to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over their 
estimated useful lives. Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is 
retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated. The principal annual rates used for this 
purpose are:-

Computer	 50%
Furniture, fittings and equipment	 10%
Motor vehicles	 20%
Renovation	 10% - 20%

	 The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at 
the end of each reporting period to ensure that the amounts, method and periods of depreciation are 
consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits embodied in the items of the equipment. Any changes are accounted for as a change in 
estimate.

	 When significant parts of an item of equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of equipment.

	 An item of equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset, being the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount, is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.8	 LEASES

	 The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at the inception of the contract. The Group 
recognises a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements 
in which it is the lessee, except for low-value assets and short-term leases with 12 months or less. 
For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line 
method over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time 
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

	 The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
right of-use assets and the associated lease liabilities are presented as a separate line item in the 
statements of financial position.

	 The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost. Cost includes the initial amount of the corresponding 
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any 
initial direct costs incurred, less any incentives received.

	 The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The depreciation starts 
from the commencement date of the lease. If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to 
the Group or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase 
option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. 
Otherwise, the Group depreciates the right-of-use asset to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the 
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assets are 
determined on the same basis as those equipment.

	 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid 
at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be 
readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

	 The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It 
is remeasured when there is a change in the future lease payments (other than lease modification that 
is not accounted for as a separate lease) with the corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount has been 
reduced to zero.

4.9	 CONTRACT ASSET AND CONTRACT LIABILITY

	 A contract asset is recognised when the Group’s right to consideration is conditional on something 
other than the passage of time. A contract asset is subject to impairment requirements of MFRS 9.

	 A contract liability is stated at cost and represents the obligation of the Group to transfer goods or 
services to a customer for which consideration has been received (or the amount is due) from the 
customers.

4.10	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits, and short-term, 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value with original maturity periods of three months or less. For 
the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank 
overdrafts.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.11	 IMPAIRMENT 

(a)	 Impairment of Financial Assets

	 The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt 
instruments that are measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and contract assets, as well 
as on financial guarantee contracts.

	 The expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that 
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group 
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

	 The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes 
in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument. The Group always 
recognises lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables and contract assets using the 
simplified approach. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using 
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience and are adjusted for 
forward-looking information (including time value of money where appropriate).

	 For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime expected credit losses when 
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit 
risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group 
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 month 
expected credit losses.

	 The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with 
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except 
for investments in debt instruments that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the fair value reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial 
asset in the statements of financial position.

(b)	 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

	 The carrying values of assets, other than those to which MFRS 136 does not apply, are reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period for impairment when an annual impairment assessment is 
compulsory or there is an indication that the assets might be impaired. Impairment is measured 
by comparing the carrying values of the assets with their recoverable amounts. When the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its recoverable 
amount and an impairment loss shall be recognised. The recoverable amount of an asset is 
the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use, which is measured 
by reference to discounted future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where it is 
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group determines 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

	 An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

	 When there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, a subsequent 
increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as a reversal of the previous impairment 
loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the asset that would have been 
determined (net of amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. The 
reversal is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.12	 PROVISIONS

	 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions 
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is the present value of the 
estimated expenditure required to settle the obligation. The discount rate shall be a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as interest expense in profit or loss.

4.13	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)	 Short-term Benefits

	 Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and bonuses are measured on an undiscounted basis and 
are recognised in profit or loss, in the period in which the associated services are rendered by 
employees of the Group.

(b)	 Defined Contribution Plans

	 The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss, in the 
period to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further 
liability in respect of the defined contribution plans.

4.14	 INCOME TAXES

(a)	 Current Tax

	 Current tax assets and liabilities are the expected amount of income tax recoverable or payable 
to the taxation authorities.

	 Current taxes are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent 
that the tax relates to items recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity).

(b)	 Deferred Tax

	 Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method for all temporary differences other than 
those that arise from goodwill or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 
which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting 
profit nor taxable profit.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits 
can be utilised. The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax 
benefits will be realised.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.14	 INCOME TAXES (CONT’D)

	 Current and deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions either in 
profit or loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Deferred tax arising from a business 
combination is adjusted against goodwill or negative goodwill.

	 Current tax assets and liabilities or deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally 
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes 
relate to the same taxable entity (or on different tax entities but they intend to settle current tax assets 
and liabilities on a net basis) and the same taxation authority. 

4.15	 OPERATING SEGMENTS

	 An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it 
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions 
with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to 
the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

4.16	 EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE

	 Basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the consolidated profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the reporting period, adjusted for own shares held.

	 Diluted earnings per ordinary share is determined by adjusting the consolidated profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary 
shares, which comprise convertible preference shares and warrant.

4.17	 BORROWING COSTS

	 Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

4.18	 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price 
is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. The measurement assumes that the 
transaction takes place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the 
most advantageous market. For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account 
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best 
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

	 For financial reporting purposes, the fair value measurements are analysed into level 1 to level 3 as 
follows:-

Level 1:	 Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liability that 
the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2:	 Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3:	 Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

	 The transfer of fair value between levels is determined as of the date of the event or change in 
circumstances that caused the transfer.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.19	 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

	 Revenue is recognised by reference to each distinct performance obligation in the contract with 
customer and is measured at the consideration specified in the contract of which the Group expects 
to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, net of sales and 
service tax, returns, rebates and discounts.

	 The Group recognises revenue when (or as) it transfers control over a product or service to customer. 
An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

	 The Group transfers control of a good or service at a point in time unless one of the following overtime 
criteria is met:-

•	 The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided as the Group 
performs.

•	 The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset 
is created or enhanced.

•	 The Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use and the Group has an 
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

(a)	 Construction Services

	 Revenue from construction services is recognised over time in the period in which the services 
are rendered using the input method, determined based the proportion of construction costs 
incurred for work performed to date over the estimated total construction costs. Transaction 
price is computed based on the price specified in the contract and adjusted for any variable 
consideration such as incentives and penalties. Past experience is used to estimate and provide 
for the variable consideration, using expected value method and revenue is only recognised to 
the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

	 A receivable is recognised when the construction services are rendered as this is the point 
in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required 
before the payment is due. If the construction services rendered exceed the payment received, 
a contract asset is recognised. If the payments exceed the construction services rendered, a 
contract liability is recognised.

(b)	 Rendering of Services

	 Revenue from services rendered is recognised at a point in time when the products have been 
transferred or the services have been rendered to the customer and coincides with the delivery 
of products and services and acceptance by customers.

	 There is no right of return and warranty provided to the customers on the sales of products and 
services rendered.

	 There is no significant financing component in the revenue arising from services rendered as the 
services is made on the normal credit terms not exceeding twelve months.

4.20	 REVENUE FROM OTHER SOURCE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

(a)	 Interest Income

	 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
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5.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

		  The Company
					     2022	 2021
					     RM	 RM

Unquoted shares, at cost
At 1 January				    –	 –
Acquisition during the financial year			   130,191,742	 –

At 31 December				    130,191,742	 –

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:-

		  Principal
		  Place of	 Percentage
		  Business/	 of Issued
		  Country of	 Share Capital
Name of Subsidiary	 Incorporation	 Held by Parent	 Principal Activities
			   2022	 2021	
			   %	 %

Subsidiaries of the Company

EV-Dynamic Sdn. Bhd.	 Malaysia	 100	 –	 Engaged in the provision
  (EV-Dynamic)				      of Information and
					       Communications Technology
					       (“ICT”) system solutions for
					       transportation infrastructure,
					       integrated security system
					       and engineering services.

EVD Engineering	 Malaysia	 100	 –	 ICT system solutions provider
  Sdn. Bhd. (“EVE”)				      focuses primarily on the
					       transportation system
					       solutions, healthcare and
					       security system solutions. 

ICB		  Malaysia	 100	 –	 Engaged in investment holding
					       and provision of management
					       services.

Subsidiaries of EVE				  
				  
EVD Global Pte. Ltd.^	 Singapore	 100	 –	 Engaged as turnkey and
					       procurement centre for 
					       engineering equipment and
					       products including software
					       and hardware used in
					       surveillance system and
					       integrated security system.
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5.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows (Cont’d):-

		  Principal
		  Place of	 Percentage
		  Business/	 of Issued
		  Country of	 Share Capital
Name of Subsidiary	 Incorporation	 Held by Parent	 Principal Activities
			   2022	 2021	
			   %	 %

Subsidiaries of EVE (Cont’d)

EVD Technology	 Malaysia	 51	 –	 Dormant company and it is
  Sdn. Bhd.				      intended to engage in big
					       data analytics services,
					       including operation,
					       monitoring, services and
					       maintenance, research and
					       development and aviation
					       information system.

^           This subsidiary was audited by other firm of chartered accountants.

(a)	 During the current financial year, the Company has acquired 100% equity interests in EVE, EV-Dynamic 
and ICB. The details of the acquisition are disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements.

(b)	 Summarised financial information of non-controlling interests has not been presented as the non-
controlling interests of the subsidiary is not individually material to the Group.
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6.	 EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

				    At	 Accumulated	 Carrying
				    Cost	 Depreciation	 Amount
The Group			   RM	 RM	 RM
			 
Computer			   4,164,710	 (4,004,333)	 160,377
Furniture, fitting and office equipment	 	 2,757,643	 (678,346)	 2,079,297
Motor vehicles			   5,956,332	 (5,497,373)	 458,959
Renovation			   4,692,516	 (2,250,792)	 2,441,724

				    17,571,201	 (12,430,844)	 5,140,357

	 Included in the equipment of the Group were motor vehicles with a total carrying amount of RM457,983 
held under hire purchase arrangements. These assets have been pledged as security for the hire purchase 
payables of the Group as disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements.

7.	 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

				    Depreciation	Acquisition of	
		  At	 Additions	 Charges	 Subsidiaries	 Modification	 At
		  1.1.2022	 (Note 34(a))	 (Note 30)	 (Note 33(b))	 Liabilities	 31.12.2022
The Group	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Carrying Amount

Buildings	 –	 187,362	 (1,016,199)	 1,758,950	 186,804	 1,116,917

	 The Group has leased a number of buildings that run between 1 to 3 years, with an option to renew the lease 
after that date.

 
8.	 GOODWILL

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM

Cost:-
At 1 January					     –
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33 (d))				    61,631,757

At 31 December					     61,631,757
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8.	 GOODWILL (Cont’d)

(a)	 The Group has assessed the recoverable amounts of goodwill allocated. The recoverable amounts 
of the cash-generating units are determined using the value in use approach, and this is derived 
from the present value of the future cash flows from each cash-generating unit computed based on 
the projections of financial budgets approved by management covering a period of 5 years. The key 
assumptions used in the determination of the recoverable amounts are as follows:-

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM

Average gross margin					     21.30%
Average growth rate					     5.00%
Discount rate (pre-tax)					     8.03%

(i)	 Gross margin was projected at an average of 21.30% per annum.
(ii)	 Growth rate was projected at an average of 5.00% over the 5 years.
(iii)	 Discount rate reflects specific risks relating to the cash-generating unit.

	 The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in 
the cash-generating units and are based on both external sources and internal historical data.

(b)	 Management believes that there is no reasonably possible change in the above key assumptions 
applied that is likely to materially cause the respective cash-generating unit carrying amount to exceed 
its recoverable amount.

9.	 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

				    Recognised		
				    in Profit or	 Acquisition of	
			   At	 Loss 	 Subsidiaries	 At
			   1.1.2022	 (Note 31)	 (Note 33(b))	 31.12.2022
The Group		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Deferred Tax Assets

Equipment		  –	 –	 83,880	 83,880
Lease liabilities		  –	 –	 36,026	 36,026
Provisions		  –	 (80,547)	 80,547	 –

			   –	 (80,547)	 200,453	 119,906
Deferred Tax Liability

Contract asset		  –	 281,005	 (953,344)	 (672,339)

			   –	 200,458	 (752,891)	 (552,433)
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10.	 TRADE RECEIVABLES

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM

Third parties					     42,770,530
Unbilled receivables	 	 	 	 	 5,739,178

						      48,509,708
Allowance for impairment losses					     (4,011,504)

						      44,498,204

Allowance for impairment losses:-	
At 1 January					     –
Acquisition of subsidiaries					     (4,585,233)
Addition during the financial year (Note 29)				    (211,412)
Reversal during the financial year (Note 29)				    785,141

At 31 December					     (4,011,504)

(a)	 The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 30 to 60 days.

(b)	 Included in the trade receivables are retention sums totalling RM24,695,646. These retention sums are 
expected to be collected within the periods ranging from 12 to 24 months.

11.	 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
			   RM	 RM	 RM

Other receivables:-
Third parties			   570,866	 –	 –
Sales and service tax receivable			   4,172	 –	 –
Related party			   7,340	 –	 –

				    582,378	 –	 –
Deposits			   1,099,350	 500	 500
Prepayments			   281,205	 –	 –

				    1,962,933	 500	 500

	 The amount owing by related party is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The amount is to 
be settled in cash.
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12.	 CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM

Contract Assets

Contract assets relating to construction contracts				    78,952,835
Allowance for impairment losses					     (422,272)

						      78,530,563

Allowance for impairment losses:-					   
At 1 January					     –
Acquisition of subsidiaries					     (282,884)
Addition during the financial year (Note 29)				    (139,388)

At 31 December 					     (422,272)

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities relating to construction contracts				    (26,484,236)

At 1 January					     –
Performance obligations performed				    93,613,447
Billing to customer during the financial year				    (68,586,688)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33(b))				    37,474,642
Advances received for future performance obligation				   (10,315,686)
Allowance for impairment losses					     (139,388)

At 31 December					     52,046,327

(a)	 The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to consideration for work completed but not 
yet billed as at the reporting date. The amount will be transferred to trade receivables when the Group 
issues billing in the manner as established in the contracts with customers.

(b)	 The contract liabilities primarily relate to advances received from customers to render construction 
works. The amount will be recognised as revenue when the performance obligations are satisfied.

(c)	 Revenue expected to be recognised in the future relating to performance obligations that are partially 
or unsatisfied as at the reporting date is summarised below:-

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM

Within 1 year					     78,183,337
Between 2 to 5 years					     12,040,545

						      90,223,882
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13.	 AMOUNTS OWING BY/(TO) A SUBSIDIARY

	 The amounts owing are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The amounts owing are to be 
settled in cash.

 
14.	 FIXED DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS

(a)	 The fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group and of the Company at the end of the reporting 
period bore effective interest rates ranging from 1.75% to 2.80% and 2.80% (2021 - Nil) per annum 
respectively. The fixed deposits have maturity periods ranging from 1 to 12 months and 1 month (2021 
- Nil) for the Group and the Company respectively.

(b)	 Included in the fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group at the end of the reporting period 
was an amount of RM22,862,048 which has been pledged to a licensed bank as security for banking 
facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Notes 20 and 21 to the financial statements.

15.	 SHARE CAPITAL

		         The Group/The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021	 2021
				    Number		  Number
			   RM	 of Shares	 RM	 of Shares

Issued and Fully Paid-Up

Ordinary Shares

At 1 January		  ^	 2	 ^	 2
Issuance of new shares:
- acquisition of subsidiaries		  55,640,419	 382,539,654	 –	 –
- transferred to warrant reserve		  (4,299,106)	 –	 –	 –

Conversion from RCPS:
- difference of RCPS’s aggregate
  value (Note 16 (v)(bb))		  1,754,968	 23,559,580	 –	 –
- transferred from RCPS		  600,990	 –	 –	 –

Exercise of warrant:
- issuance of ordinary shares		  55,210	 552,100	 –	 –
- transferred from warrant reserve		  27,274	 –	 –	 –

At 31 December		  53,779,755	 406,651,336	 ^	 2

^ - Represents amount of RM0.40.

(a)	 The holders of ordinary shares (except treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as and when 
declared by the Company and are entitled to one vote per ordinary share at meetings of the Company. 
The ordinary shares have no par value.
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15.	 SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d)

(b)	 During the financial year, the Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM0.40 to 
RM53,779,755 by way of:

(i)	 issuance of 252,000,000 new ordinary shares for a cash consideration of RM0.15 each for 
purpose of acquisition of EVE and its subsidiaries;

(ii)	 issuance of 130,539,654 new ordinary share for the purpose of exchange share with ICB;

(iii)	 issuance of 23,559,580 new ordinary shares from the conversion of redeemable convertible 
preference shares (“RCPS”) at the exercise price of RM0.10 per RCPS; and

(iv)	 issuance of 552,100 new ordinary shares from the exercise of Warrants 2022/2029 at the 
exercise price of RM0.10 per warrant.

	 The new ordinary shares issued rank equally in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the 
Company.

16.	 RCPS

		  The Group/
		  The Company
					     2022	 2021
					     RM	 RM

At 1 January				    –	 –
Issuance of RCPS				    62,551,322	 –
Transferred to share capital (Note 15)			   (600,990)	 –

At 31 December				    61,950,332	 –

On 27 April 2022, the Company issued 2,502,052,872 RCPS at RM0.025 per RCPS.

(a)	 Issuance of RCPS to the entitled shareholders pursuant to the following:-

(i)	 2,328,000,000 RCPS for the acquisition of EVE Group; and

(ii)	 174,052,872 RCPS for the exchange of all the RCPS in ICB with new RCPS of the Company 
on the basis of one (1) RCPS for every one (1) existing ICB RCPS in relation to the securities 
exchange.
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16.	 RCPS (CONT’D)

(b)	 The main features of the RCPS are as follows:-

(i)	 The RCPS will be constituted in the constitution of the Company and issued in registered form 
and in multiples of RM0.025 each;

(ii)	 The RCPS shall carry no right to vote at any general meeting of the Company except where 
permitted under law. Subject to applicable laws. The RCPS holder shall have the right to attend 
and vote at any general meeting convened for the purposes of sanctioning:-

(aa)	 a proposal to reduce the capital of the Company;

(bb)		 a proposal for the disposal of the whole Company’s property, business and undertaking;

(cc)	 a proposal or resolution which affects the rights and privileges attached to the RCPS;

(dd)	 a proposal to wind-up the Company; and

(ee)	 during the winding-up of the Company.

	 In any such case, the RCPS holder shall be entitled to vote together with the holders of ordinary 
shares and to one (1) vote for each RCPS held;

(iii)	 The RCPS may be convert 10 years from the date of issue;

(iv)	 Conversion price equivalent to RM0.10 for 1 new ordinary share to be issued rank equally with 
the existing shares; and

(v)	 Conversion price shall be satisfied through surrendering for cancellation:-

(aa)	 four (4) RCPS for one (1) new ordinary shares; or

(bb)		 a combination of such number of RCPS and cash with an aggregate value equal to 
the conversion price, subject to a minimum of one (1) RCPS, and paying the difference 
between the aggregate value of the RCPS surrendered and the Conversion price in cash 
for one (1) new ordinary share.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding RCPS remained at 2,478,013,292.
 

17.	 WARRANT RESERVE

		  The Group/
		  The Company
					     2022	 2021
					     RM	 RM

At 1 January				    –	 –
Transferred from share capital during the financial year (Note 15)		  4,299,106	 –
Transferred to share capital during the financial year (Note 15)		  (27,274)	 –

At 31 December				    4,271,832	 –
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17.	 WARRANT RESERVE (cont’d)

(a)	 The warrant reserve arose from the allocation of the proceeds received from the renounceable rights 
issue of 87,026,436 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each together with 87,026,436 free detachable 
warrants issued on 20 June 2022.

(b)	 The warrant reserve relates to the portion of proceeds from the rights issue subscribed to the attached 
Warrant 2022/2029. As and when the warrants are exercised, the related balance in the warrant reserve 
will be transferred to the share capital account.

	 WARRANT 2022/2029

	 The Company exchange of all the warrants in ICB as at 21 June 2022 (“Entitlement Date”) with new warrants 
in the Company on the basis of one (1) warrant of the Company for every one (1) existing ICB warrant held 
on the Entitlement Date pursuant to the securities exchange.

	 As at 31 December 2022, 86,474,336 Warrant 2022/2029 remained unexercised.

	 The warrants are constituted by the Deed Poll dated 28 April 2022. The salient features of the Warrant 
2022/2029 are as follows:-

(i)	 The exercise price of the Warrant 2022/2029 has been fixed at RM0.10 per Warrants 2022/2029, 
subject to further adjustment (where applicable) in accordance with the provisions of the Deed Poll for 
the Warrant 2022/2029;

(ii)	 The Warrant 2022/2029 may be exercised 7 years commencing from and inclusive of the date of first 
issue of Warrants 2022/2029; and

(iii)	 The new shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Warrant 2022/2029 shall, upon allotment 
and issue, rank equally in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in issue except 
they will not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other distribution, the entitlement 
date of which is before the allotment and issuance of the new shares.

 
18.	 FOREIGN TRANSLATION RESERVE

	 The foreign exchange translation reserve arose from the translation of the financial statements of foreign 
subsidiaries whose functional currencies are different from the Group’s presentation currency.

19.	 BORROWINGS
	

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM
					   
Current:
Bankers’ acceptance (Note 20)					     2,207,420
Bank overdraft (Note 21)					     16,715
Hire purchase payables (Note 22)					     267,575
Invoice financing (Note 23)					     11,019,376

						      13,511,086
Non-current:
Hire purchase payables (Note 22)					     265,564

						      13,776,650
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19.	 BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

The interest rate profile of the borrowings of the Group are summarised below:-

						      Effective
					     Interest rate	 Interest Rate

						      The Group
						      2022
						      %

Bankers’ acceptance (Note 20)	 	 	 	 Floating	 7.35 - 7.60
Bank overdraft (Note 21)	 	 	 	 Floating	 7.60
Hire purchase payables (Note 22)	 	 	 	 Fixed	 3.05 - 6.24
Invoice financing (Note 23)	 	 	 	 Floating	 7.17 - 7.67

20.	 BANKERS’ ACCEPTANCE

	 The bankers’ acceptance is secured by:-

(i)	 Fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements;

(ii)	 Legal charge over freehold land and buildings of a related party; and  

(iii)	 Corporate guarantee by the Company.

21.	 BANK OVERDRAFT

	 The bank overdraft of the Group is secured in the same manner, as disclosed in Note 20 to the financial 
statements.

22.	 HIRE PURCHASE PAYABLES

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM

Minimum hire purchase payments:					  
- not later than 1 year					     282,321
- later than 1 year and not later than 5 years				    274,636

						      556,957
Less: Future finance charges	 	 	 	 	 (23,818)

						      533,139

Analysed by:-					   
Current liabilities (Note 19)					     267,575
Non-current liabilities (Note 19)					     265,564

						      533,139

	 The hire purchase payables of the Group are secured by the Group’s assets under hire purchase terms, as 
disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements. The hire purchase arrangements are expiring within 1 to 4 
years.
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23.	 INVOICE FINANCING

(a)	 The invoice financing is secured by:-

(i)	 Blanket deed of assignment of contract proceed;

(ii)	 First party collateral account of the Group as disclose in Note 34(e) to the financial statements;

(iii)	 Legal charge over freehold land and buildings of a related party; 

(iv)	 Jointly and severally guarantee by certain directors of the Company; and

(v)	 Corporate guarantee by a subsidiary and the Company.

	 The joint and severally guaranteed by certain directors of the Company and a corporate guarantee by 
a subsidiary has been replaced by corporate guarantee by the Company in January 2023.

(b)	 The covenant for the invoice financing is the Company’s gearing ratio shall not exceeded 1.0 time.

24.	 LEASE LIABILITIES

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM

At 1 January					     –
Additions					     187,362
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33(b))				    1,884,401
Interest expense recognised in profit or loss				    69,774
Changes due to lease modification					    180,152
Repayment of principal					     (1,078,072)
Repayment of interest expense					     (69,774)

At 31 December					     1,173,843

Analysed by:-					   
Current liabilities					     755,996
Non-current liabilities					     417,847

						      1,173,843

25.	 TRADE PAYABLES

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM

Third parties					     31,302,866
Retention sum					     8,538,723
Trade accruals					     26,913,378

						      66,754,967

(a)	 The normal trade credit term granted to the Group ranging from 14 to 90 days.

(b)	 The retention sums are expected to be settled within the period ranging from 12 to 24 months.
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26.	 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
			   RM	 RM	 RM

Other payables			   1,484,512	 35,872	 4,945
Accruals			   3,598,890	 95,150	 6,900

				    5,083,402	 131,022	 11,845

27.	 AMOUNT OWING TO A DIRECTOR

	 In the previous financial year, the amount owing was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The 
amount owing was settled in cash.

28.	 REVENUE

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Recognised over time					   
Construction services					     93,613,447

Recognised at a point in time				  
Services rendered					     2,385,179

						      95,998,626

(a)	 The information on the disaggregation of revenue by geographical market is disclosed in Note 37.2 to 
the financial statements.

(b)	 The information on the unsatisfied performance obligations is disclosed in Note 12(c) to the financial 
statements.

29.	 NET REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND CONTRACT ASSETS

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM

Impairment losses:					   
- contract assets (Note 12)					     139,388
- trade receivables (Note 10)					     211,412
					   
Reversal of impairment losses:					   
- trade receivables (Note 10)					     (785,141)

						      (434,341)
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30.	 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 
	
	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
			   RM	 RM	 RM

Profit/(Loss) before taxation is arrived at after
  charging/(crediting):-

Amortisation of intangible asset			   4,103,000	 –	 –
Auditors’ remuneration:					   
- audit fee			   129,262	 40,000	 3,000
- non-audit fee			   6,000	 6,000	 –
Bargain purchase (Note 33(d))			   (4,598,995)	 –	 –
Directors’ remuneration (Note 35(a))		  1,428,909	 90,500	 12,500
Depreciation:					   
- equipment (Note 6)			   741,496	 –	 –
- right-of-use assets (Note 7)			   1,016,199	 –	 –
Equipment written off (Note 6)			   250,617	 –	 –
Gain on foreign exchange:					   
- realised			   (282,396)	 –	 –
- unrealised			   (74,842)	 –	 –
Gain on lease modification			   (6,652)	 –	 –
Interest expense on lease liabilities			  69,774	 –	 –
Lease expenses:					   
- low value assets			   80,078	 –	 –
- short-term leases			   206,491	 –	 –
Staff costs (including other key management
  personnel as disclosed in Note 35(b)):
- short-term employee benefits			   15,048,692	 –	 –
- defined contribution benefits			   1,873,254	 –	 –
- others			   859,179	 –	 –
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities
  that are not at fair value through profit or loss		  915,446	 –	 –
Total interest income on financial assets
  measured at amortised cost			   (294,536)	 (76,385)	 –

31.	 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
			   RM	 RM	 RM

Current tax expense			   2,856,288	 –	 –
Underprovision in the previous financial year	 	 277,270	 –	 –

				    3,133,558	 –	 –
Deferred tax (Note 9):
- origination and reversal of temporary differences		  (281,005)	 –	 –
- underprovision in the previous financial year		  80,547	 –	 –

				    (200,458)	 –	 –

Total income tax expense			   2,933,100	 –	 –
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31.	 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cont’d)

	 A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the profit/(loss) before taxation at the statutory tax rate 
to income tax expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:-

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
			   RM	 RM	 RM

Profit/(Loss) before taxation			   10,324,798	 (574,948)	 (30,740)

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 24% (2021 - 24%)		  2,257,000	 (138,000)	 (7,000)
					   
Tax effects of:-					   
Non-deductible expenses			   1,817,888	 138,000	 7,000
Utilisation of deferred tax assets previously
  not recognised			   (221,321)	 –	 –
Non-taxable income			   (1,251,183)	 –	 –
Statutory stepped tax exemption and rebates		  (27,101)	 –	 –
Underprovision in the previous financial year:
- current tax 			   277,270	 –	 –
- deferred tax			   80,547	 –	 –

Income tax expense for the financial year		  2,933,100	 –	 –

	 Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (2021 - 24%) of the estimated 
assessable profit for the financial year. The taxation of other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing 
in the respective jurisdiction.

 

32.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)	 Basic Earnings Per Share

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM
					   

Profit attributable to owners of the Company				    7,453,900

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue:-
Ordinary shares at 1 January 2022				    2
Effect of new ordinary shares issued				    247,705,895

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December 2022		  247,705,897

Basic earnings per share (Sen)				    3.01
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32.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE (cont’d)

(b)	 Diluted Earnings Per Share

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM

Profit attributable to owners of the Company				    7,453,900

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue for
  basic earnings per share					     247,705,897
Effect of RCPS					     1,667,746,285
Effect of Warrant 					     43,859,793

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue for
  diluted earnings per share					    1,959,311,975

Diluted earnings per share (Sen)				    0.38

33.	 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

	 On 27 April 2022, the Company has completed the acquisition of 100% equity interests in EVE Group and 
EV-Dynamic. The acquisition of these subsidiaries are to enable the Group to expand its business.

	 On 30 June 2022, the Company has completed the acquisition of 100% equity interest in ICB through 
regularisation plan. The completion of the acquisition has enabled the Company being listed and quoted on 
the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad from 1 July 2022.

	 The following summarises the major classes of consideration transferred, and the recognised amounts of 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.

(a)	 Fair Value of Purchase Consideration

EVE Group and EV-Dynamic

					     The Group	 The Company
					     2022	 2022
					     RM	 RM
					   
Cash					    12,000,001	 12,000,001
252,000,000 ordinary shares issued at RM0.15 per share		  37,800,000	 37,800,000
2,328,000,000 RCPS issued at RM0.025 per RCPS		  58,200,000	 58,200,000

Total purchase consideration				   108,000,001	 108,000,001
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33.	 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

(a)	 Fair Value of Purchase Consideration (Cont’d)

ICB

					     The Group	 The Company
					     2022	 2022
					     RM	 RM

130,539,654 ordinary shares issued at approximately
  RM0.1367 per share				    17,840,419	 17,840,419
174,052,872 RCPS issued at RM0.025 per RCPS		  4,351,322	 4,351,322

Total purchase consideration				   22,191,741	 22,191,741

(b)	 Identifiable Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed

	 EVE Group and EV-Dynamic

						      Carrying
						      Amount
						      2022
The Group					     RM

Equipment					     4,531,187
Right-of-use assets					     1,758,950
Deferred tax assets					     200,453
Trade receivables					     35,668,247
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments				    2,626,598
Contract cost assets					     229,001
Contract assets					     37,474,642
Current tax assets					     3,343,524
Fixed deposits with licensed banks	 	 	 	 25,809,390
Cash and bank balances					     24,873,397
Intangible asset					     4,103,000
Lease liabilities					     (1,884,401)
Deferred tax liabilities					     (953,344)
Hire purchase payables					     (683,133)
Trade payables					     (61,384,045)
Other payables and accruals					    (10,010,764)
Short-term borrowings					     (17,878,329)
Current tax liabilities					     (1,456,129)

Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired	 	 	 	 46,368,244
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33.	 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

(b)	 Identifiable Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed (Cont’d)

ICB

						      Carrying
						      Amount
						      2022
The Group					     RM

Equipment					     143,315
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments				    9,702
Current tax assets					     121
Cash and bank balance					     26,747,373
Other payables and accruals					    (109,775)

Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired	 	 	 	 26,790,736

(c)	 Cash Flows Arising from Acquisition

	 EVE Group and EV-Dynamic

					     The Group	 The Company
					     2022	 2022
					     RM	 RM

Purchase consideration settled in cash and
  cash equivalents (item (a) above)			   (12,000,001)	 (12,000,001)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries
	   acquired (item (b) above) #			   27,011,691	 –

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from the acquisition of subsidiaries		  15,011,690	 (12,000,001)

#  Net of collateral accounts of RM23,671,096.

ICB

					     The Group	 The Company
					     2022	 2022
					     RM	 RM

				  
Purchase consideration settled in cash and
  cash equivalents (item (a) above)			   –	 –
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries
	   acquired (item (b) above)			   26,747,373	 –

Net cash inflow from the acquisition of subsidiaries		  26,747,373	 –
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33.	 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

(d)	 (Bargain purchase)/Goodwill Arising from Acquisition

	 EVE Group and EV-Dynamic

						      The
						      Group
						      2022
						      RM

Total consideration transferred (item (a) above)				   108,000,001
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired (item (b) above)	 	 (46,368,244)

Goodwill from the acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 8)			   61,631,757

	 The goodwill is attributable to the workforce and the high profitability of the acquired business as well 
as the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating the subsidiary into the Group’s existing 
business segment. The goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.

ICB

						      The
						      Group
						      2022
						      RM

Total consideration transferred (item (a) above)				   22,191,741
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired (item (b) above)	 	 (26,790,736)

Bargain purchase from the acquisition of a subsidiary 			   (4,598,995)

(e)	 Impact of Acquisition on the Group’s Results

The acquired subsidiary has contributed the following results to the Group:-

						      The
						      Group
						      2022
						      RM

Revenue					     95,998,626
Profit after taxation					     8,225,966

	 If the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the current financial year, the Group’s revenue and 
profit after taxation from continuing operations would have been RM159,247,422 and RM12,805,870 
respectively.
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34.	 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a)		 The cash disbursed for the purchase of equipment and the addition of right-of-use assets is as 
follows:-

						      The
						      Group
						      2022
						      RM

Equipment					   
					   
Cost of equipment purchased (Note 6)				    1,457,968
Less: Acquired through hire purchase arrangements (Note 34(b))			  (80,000)

						      1,377,968

Right-of-use assets

Cost of right-of-use assets acquired (Note 7)				    187,362
Less: Additions of new lease liabilities (Note 24)			   (187,362)

						      –

(b)		 The reconciliations of liabilities arising from financing activities are as follows:- 

				    Hire		  Amount
		  Invoice	 Bankers’	  Purchase	 Lease	 Owing to
		  Financing	 Acceptance	 Payables	 Liabilities	 A Director	 Total
The Group	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

2022

At 1 January	 –	 –	 –	 –	 41,204	 41,204

Changes in Financing
  Cash Flows
Proceeds from
  drawdown	 28,505,592	 5,719,818	 –	 –	 –	 34,225,410
Repayment of principal	 (32,053,182)	 (6,823,761)	 (229,994)	 (1,078,072)	 –	 (40,185,009)
Repayment of interests	 (755,824)	 (139,060)	 (16,742)	 (69,774)	 –	 (981,400)
Payment on behalf from	 –	 –	 –	 –	 52,395	 52,395

		  (4,303,414)	 (1,243,003)	 (246,736)	 (1,147,846)	 52,395	 (6,888,604)

Balance carried forward	 (4,303,414)	 (1,243,003)	 (246,736)	 (1,147,846)	 93,599	 (6,847,400)
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34.	 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(b)		 The reconciliations of liabilities arising from financing activities are as follows (Cont’d):- 

				    Hire		  Amount
		  Invoice	 Bankers’	  Purchase	 Lease	 Owing to
		  Financing	 Acceptance	 Payables	 Liabilities	 A Director	 Total
The Group	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Balance brought forward	 (4,303,414)	 (1,243,003)	 (246,736)	 (1,147,846)	 93,599	 (6,847,400)

Other Changes
Acquisition of new lease
  (Note 34(a))	 –	 –	 80,000	 187,362	 –	 267,362
Acquisition of subsidiaries
  (Note 33(b))	 14,566,966	 3,311,363	 683,133	 1,884,401	 –	 20,445,863
Interest expense
  recognised in profit or
  loss (Note 30)	 755,824	 139,060	 16,742	 69,774	 –	 981,400
Lease modification
  (Note 24)	 –	 –	 –	 180,152	 –	 180,152
Transferred to other
  payables	 –	 –	 –	 –	 (93,599)	 (93,599)

		  15,322,790	 3,450,423	 779,875	 2,321,689	 (93,599)	 21,781,178

At 31 December	 11,019,376	 2,207,420	 533,139	 1,173,843	 –	 14,933,778

						      Amount
						      Owing to
						      A Director
The Company					     RM
			 
2022	 		
			 
At 1 January					     41,204
			 
Change in Financing Cash Flows			 
Payment on behalf from					     52,395
			 
Other Change			 
Transferred to other payables				    (93,599)

At 31 December					     –

2021	 		
			 
At 1 January					     19,309
			 
Change in Financing Cash Flows			 
Payment on behalf from					     21,895

At 31 December					     41,204
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34.	 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(d)		 The total cash outflows for leases as a lessee are as follows:-
 

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM

Payment of short-term leases				    206,491
Payment of low-value assets					    80,078
Interest paid on lease liabilities				    69,774
Payment of lease liabilities					     1,078,072

						      1,434,415

(e)		 The cash and cash equivalents comprise the followings:- 

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
			   RM	 RM	 RM

Fixed deposits with licensed banks	 	 28,343,294	 5,052,921	 –
Cash and bank balances			   20,257,478	 3,260,281	 ^
Bank overdraft			   (16,715)	 –	 –

				    48,584,057	 8,313,202	 ^
Less: Fixed deposits pledged to
	   licensed banks			   (22,862,048)	 –	 –
	 Fixed deposits with tenure of
	   more than 3 months			   (69,302)	 –	 –
Collateral accounts			   (931,437)	 –	 –

Cash and cash equivalents			   24,721,270	 8,313,202	 ^

^ - Represents amount of RM0.40.
 

35.	 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

	 The key management personnel of the Group and of the Company include executive directors and non-
executive directors of the Company and certain members of senior management of the Group and of the 
Company.

(a)	 Directors of the Company 

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
			   RM	 RM	 RM

Directors of the Company
Short-term employee benefits:
- fees				   288,324	 87,500	 12,500
- salaries, bonuses and other benefits		  1,028,481	 3,000	 –

				    1,316,805	 90,500	 12,500
Defined contribution benefits		  112,104	 –	 –

Total directors’ remuneration (Note 30)		  1,428,909	 90,500	 12,500
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35.	 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION (cont’d)

(b)	 Other Key Management Personnel 

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
			   RM	 RM	 RM

Short-term employee benefits		  995,949	 –	 –
Defined contribution benefits		  77,502	 –	 –

Total compensation for other key
  management personnel			   1,073,451	 –	 –

36.	 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)	 Identities of Related Parties

	 Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group or the Company has the ability, directly 
or indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in 
making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the 
party are subject to common control.

	 In addition to the information detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group has related 
party relationships with its directors, key management personnel and entities within the same group of 
companies.

(b)	 Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances 

	 Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the Company also 
carried out the following significant transactions with the related parties during the financial year:-

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
			   RM	 RM	 RM

Subsidiaries:-
Advances to			   –	 (6,000,000)	 –
Advances from			   –	 25,000,000	 –
Payment on behalf from			   –	 100,000	 –
					   
Related parties:-					   
Rental expenses			   795,600	 –	 –
					   
A director:-					   
Payment on behalf from			   52,395	 52,395	 21,895

	 The significant outstanding balances of the related parties together with their terms and conditions are 
disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements.
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37.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS

	 Operating segments are prepared in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Board 
of Directors as its chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess 
their performance on a quarterly basis. For management purposes, the Group is organised into business 
units based on their services provided. In addition, the businesses are also considered from a geographical 
perspective.

	 The Group is organised into 3 main reportable segments as follows:-

•	 Transportation - involved of the service rendered under railway and highway industries.

•	 Healthcare - involved of the service rendered under hospitality industries.

•	 All other segments - involved in the investment holding and service and maintenance.

(a)	 The key management personnel assesses the performance of the reportable segments based 
operating profit or loss which is measured differently from those disclosed in the consolidated 
financial statements. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s 
accounting policies.

(b)	 Borrowings, cash and bank balances and investment-related activities are managed on a group basis 
by the central treasury function and are not allocated to reportable segments.

(c)	 Each reportable segment assets is measured based on all assets (including goodwill) of the segment 
other than tax-related assets.

(d)	 Each reportable segment liabilities is measured based on all liabilities of the segment other than tax-
related liabilities.

(e)	 Assets, liabilities and expenses which are common and cannot be meaningfully allocated to the 
reportable segments are presented under unallocated items.

	 Transactions between reportable segments are carried out on agreed terms between both parties. The 
effects of such inter-segment transactions are eliminated on consolidation.
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37.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)

37.1	 BUSINESS SEGMENTS

					    Consolidation	 The
		  Transportation	 Healthcare	 Others	 Adjustment	 Group
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

2022	

Revenue
External revenue	 88,773,659	 4,839,788	 2,385,179	 –	 95,998,626
Inter-segment revenue	 72,741,419	 3,039,924	 –	 (75,781,343)	 –

Total revenue	 161,515,078	 7,879,712	 2,385,179	 (75,781,343)	 95,998,626

Results
Segment profit/(loss)	 14,858,890	 872,078	 (4,328,399)	 (983,447)	 10,419,122
Finance cost	 –	 –	 (94,324)	 –	 (94,324)

Consolidated profit/(loss)
  before tax	 14,858,890	 872,078	 (4,422,723)	 (983,447)	 10,324,798

Tax expenses					     (2,933,100)

Consolidated profit after
  taxation					     7,391,698

Other information					   
Amortisation of intangible
  asset	 –	 –	 –	 4,103,000	 4,103,000
Bargain purchase	 –	 –	 –	 (4,598,995)	 (4,598,995)
Depreciation:					   
- equipment	 –	 –	 741,496	 –	 741,496
- right-of-use assets	 –	 –	 1,016,199	 –	 1,016,199
Equipment written off	 –	 –	 250,617	 –	 250,617
Gain on lease modification	 –	 –	 (6,652)	 –	 (6,652)
Impairment loss:					   
- contract assets	 137,139	 2,536	 –	 –	 139,388
- trade receivables	 211,412	 –	 –	 –	 211,412
Interest expenses	 894,884	 –	 90,336	 –	 985,220
Interest income	 –	 –	 (294,536)	 –	 (294,536)
Reversal of impairment
  loss		 (785,141)	 –	 –	 –	 (785,141)
Unrealised gain on foreign
  exchange	 –	 –	 (897,775)	 822,933	 (74,842)
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37.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)

37.1	 BUSINESS SEGMENTS (CONT’D)

					    Consolidation	 The
		  Transportation	 Healthcare	 Others	 Adjustment	 Group
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

2022	

Assets					   
Segment assets	 143,707,158	 3,803,284	 57,215,074	 36,755,987	 241,481,503
Unallocated assets:	 	 	 	 	
- deferred tax assets	 –	 –	 119,906	 –	 119,906
- current tax assets	 –	 –	 1,962,061	 –	 1,962,061

Consolidated total assets					     243,563,470

Additions to non-current
  assets other than 
  financial instruments
  and deferred tax assets

Equipment	 –	 –	 1,457,968	 –	 1,457,968
Right-of-use assets	 –	 –	 187,362	 –	 187,362

Liabilities					   
Segment liabilities	 132,887,136	 1,138,884	 6,924,259	 (27,677,181)	 113,273,098

Unallocated liabilities:	 	 	 	 	
- deferred tax liabilities	 –	 –	 –	 672,339	 672,339
- current tax liabilities	 –	 –	 1,591,823	 –	 1,591,823

Consolidated total
  liabilities					     115,537,260

37.2	 GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

	 Revenue is based on the country in which the customers are located.

	 Non-current assets are determined according to the country where these assets are located. The 
amounts of non-current assets do not include financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

						      Non-
						      current
					     Revenue	 Assets
					     RM	 RM
2022

The Group

Malaysia				    93,462,783	 6,257,274
Philippines				    2,535,843	 –

					     95,998,626	 6,257,274
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37.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)

37.2	 GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

	 The information on the disaggregation of revenue based on geographical region is summarised below:-

				    At A Point 	 Over 	
				    in Time	 Time	 Group
				    RM	 RM	 RM
2022					   

The Group

Malaysia			   2,385,179	 91,077,604	 93,462,783
Philippines			   –	 2,535,843	 2,535,843

				    2,385,179	 93,613,447	 95,998,626

37.3	 MAJOR CUSTOMERS

	 The following are major customers with revenue equal to or more than 10% of the Group’s total 
revenue:

					     Revenue	 Segment
					     2022
					     RM

Customer #1				    50,814,096	 Transportation
Customer #2				    12,826,627	 Transportation
Customer #3				    10,010,956	 Transportation

38.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

	 The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate 
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall financial risk management policy 
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the 
Group’s financial performance.

38.1	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

	 The Company’s policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as follows:-

(a)	 Market Risk

(i)	 Foreign Currency Risk

	 The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions and balances that are 
denominated in currencies other than the respective functional currencies of entities within 
the Group. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollar (“USD”), 
Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) and Philippines Peso (“PHP”). Foreign currency risk is monitored 
closely on an ongoing basis to ensure that the net exposure is at an acceptable level. On 
occasion, the Group enters into forward foreign currency contracts to hedge against its 
foreign currency risk.

	 Any reasonably possible change in the foreign currency exchange rates at the end of 
the reporting period against the respective functional currencies of the entities within the 
Group does not have a material impact on the profit after taxation and equity of the Group 
and of the Company and hence, no sensitivity analysis is presented.
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38.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

38.1	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D)

(a)	 Market Risk (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Interest Rate Risk

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to interest 
rate risk arises mainly from long-term borrowings with variable rates. The Group’s policy 
is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available and by maintaining a balanced 
portfolio mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings.

	 The Group’s fixed rate receivables and borrowings are carried at amortised cost. 
Therefore, they are not subject to interest rate risk as in defined MFRS 7 since neither 
carrying amounts nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market 
interest rates.

	 The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk based on the carrying amounts of the financial 
instruments at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Note 19 to the financial 
statements.

	 Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity Analysis
	
	 The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in the 

interest rates at the end of the reporting period, with all other variables held constant:-

						      The
						      Group
						      2022
						      RM
			 
Effects on Profit After 
Taxation/Other Comprehensive Income			 
			 
Increase of 5 basis points				    (503,253)
Decrease of 5 basis points				    503,253

(iii)	 Equity Price Risk 

	 The Company does not have any quoted investments and hence, is not exposed to equity 
price risk.

(b)	 Credit Risk
	
	 The Group’s exposure to credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, arises mainly from trade 

and other receivables. The Group manages its exposure to credit risk by the application of credit 
approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures on an ongoing basis. For other financial assets 
(including cash and bank balances and derivatives), the Group minimises credit risk by dealing 
exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

	 The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from loans and advances to subsidiaries, 
and corporate guarantee given to financial institutions for credit facilities granted to a subsidiary. The 
Company monitors the results of this subsidiary regularly and repayments made by the subsidiary.
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38.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

38.1	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D)

(b)	 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(i)	 Credit Risk Concentration Profile

	 The Group’s major concentration of credit risk relates to the amounts owing by 2 customers 
which constituted approximately 57% of its trade receivables at the end of the reporting 
period.

(ii)	 Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk

	 At the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented 
by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statement of 
financial position of the Group and of the Company after deducting any allowance for 
impairment losses (where applicable).

(iii)	 Assessment of Impairment Losses

	 The Group has an informal credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored 
on an on-going basis through periodic review of the ageing of the trade receivables. The 
Group closely monitors the trade receivables’ financial strength to reduce the risk of loss.

	 At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether any of the financial assets at amortised 
cost, contract assets are credit impaired.

	 The gross carrying amounts of financial assets are written off against the associated 
impairment, if any, when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery despite the fact 
that they are still subject to enforcement activities.

	 A financial asset is credit impaired when any of following events that have a detrimental 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred:

-	 Significant financial difficulty of the receivable; 
-	 A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event; 
-	 Restructuring of a debt in relation to the receivable’s financial difficulty; or
-	 It is becoming probable that the receivable will enter bankruptcy or other financial 

reorganisation.

	 The Group uses a more lagging past due criterion for certain trade receivables when it is 
more appropriate to reflect their loss patterns.

	 Trade Receivables and Contract Assets

	 The Group applies the simplified approach to measure expected credit losses using a 
lifetime expected credit loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

	 Inputs, Assumptions and Techniques used for Estimating Impairment Losses

	 To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have 
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The 
contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same risk 
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. Therefore, the 
Group concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable 
approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.
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38.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

38.1	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D)

(b)	 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(iii)	 Assessment of Impairment Losses (Cont’d)

	 Trade Receivables and Contract Assets (Cont’d)

	 Inputs, Assumptions and Techniques used for Estimating Impairment Losses (Cont’d)

	 The Group measures the expected credit losses of certain major customers, trade 
receivables that are credit impaired and trade receivables with a high risk of default on 
individual basis.

	 The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over months before 
the reporting date and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within 
this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking 
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the trade receivables to 
settle their debts using the linear regressive analysis. The Group has identified the inflation 
rate as the key macroeconomic factors of the forward-looking information.

	 There are no significant changes in the estimation techniques and assumptions as 
compared to the previous financial year.

		  Gross	 Individual	 Collective	 Carrying
		  Amount	 Impairment	 Impairment	 Amount
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
The Group				  
				  
2022				  
				  
Current (not past due)	 38,685,520	 –	 (514,861)	 38,170,659
1 to 30 days past due	 1,272,965	 –	 (25,593)	 1,247,372
31 to 60 days past due	 239,483	 –	 (239,483)	 –
61 to 90 days past due	 679,250	 –	 (679,250)	 –
More than 90 days past due	 7,632,490	 (1,604,927)	 (947,390)	 5,080,174

Trade receivables	 48,509,708	 (1,604,927)	 (2,406,577)	 44,498,204
Contract assets	 78,952,835	 –	 (422,272)	 78,530,563

		  127,462,543	 (1,604,927)	 (2,828,849)	 123,028,767

	 The movements in the loss allowances in respect of trade receivables and contract assets 
are disclosed in Notes 10 and 12 to the financial statements respectively.
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38.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

38.1	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D)

(b)	 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(iii)	 Assessment of Impairment Losses (Cont’d)

	 Other Receivables

	 The Group applies the 3-stage general approach to measuring expected credit losses for 
its other receivables.

	 Under this approach, loss allowance is measured on either 12-month expected credit 
losses or lifetime expected credit losses, by considering the likelihood that the receivable 
would not be able to repay during the contractual period (probability of default, PD), the 
percentage of contractual cash flows that will not be collected if default happens (loss 
given default, LGD) and the outstanding amount that is exposed to default risk (exposure 
at default, EAD).

	 In deriving the PD and LGD, the Group considers the receivable’s past payment status 
and its financial condition as at the reporting date. The PD is adjusted to reflect current 
and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the 
receivable to settle its debts.

	 Allowance for Impairment Losses

	 No expected credit loss is recognised on other receivables as it is negligible.

	 Fixed Deposits with Licensed Banks, Cash and Bank Balances

	 The Group considers the licensed banks have low credit risks. In addition, some of the 
bank balances are insured by Government agencies. Therefore, the Group is of the view 
that the loss allowance is immaterial and hence, it is not provided for.

	 Amount Owing by A Subsidiary (Non-trade Balances)

	 The Company applies the 3-stage general approach to measuring expected credit losses 
for all inter-company balances.

	 Inputs, Assumptions and Techniques used for Estimating Impairment Losses

	 The Company measures the expected credit losses on individual basis, which is aligned 
with its credit risk management practices on the inter-company balances.

	 The Company considers loans and advances to subsidiaries have low credit risks. The 
Company assumes that there is a significant increase in credit risk when a subsidiary’s 
financial position deteriorates significantly. As the Company is able to determine the timing 
of payments of the loans and advances when they are payable, the Company considers 
the loans and advances to be in default when the subsidiaries are not able to pay when 
demanded.
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38.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

38.1	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D)

(b)	 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(iii)	 Assessment of Impairment Losses (Cont’d)

	 Amount Owing by A Subsidiary (Non-trade Balances) (Cont’d)

	 Inputs, Assumptions and Techniques used for Estimating Impairment Losses (Cont’d)

	 For loans and advances that are repayable on demand, impairment loss is assessed 
based on the assumption that repayment of the outstanding balances is demanded at 
the reporting date. If the subsidiary does not have sufficient highly liquid resources when 
the loans and advances are demanded, the Company will consider the expected manner 
of recovery to measure the impairment loss; the recovery manner could be either through 
‘repayable over time’ or a fire sale of less liquid assets by the subsidiary.

	 For loans and advances that are not repayable on demand, impairment loss is measured 
using techniques that are similar for estimating the impairment losses of other receivables 
as disclosed above.

	 There are no significant changes in the estimation techniques and assumptions as 
compared to the previous financial year.

	 Allowance for Impairment Losses

				    12-month 		
			   Gross	 Loss	 Lifetime Loss	 Carrying
			   Amount	 Allowance	 Allowance	 Amount
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
The Company				  
				  
2022				  
				  
Low credit risk		  6,000,000	 –	 –	 6,000,000

(c)	 Liquidity Risk

	 Liquidity risk arises mainly from general funding and business activities. The Group practises 
prudent risk management by maintaining sufficient cash balances and the availability of funding 
through certain committed credit facilities.
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38.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

38.1	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D)

(c)	 Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)

Maturity Analysis (Cont’d)

		  Effective 		  Contractual	
		  Interest 	 Carrying	 Undiscounted	 Within
		  Rate	 Amount	 Cash Flows	 1 Year
		  %	 RM	 RM	 RM
The Company			 

2022				  

Non-derivative
  Financial Liabilities				  
Other payables and accruals	 –	 131,022	 131,022	 131,022
Amount owing to a subsidiary	 –	 25,000,000	 25,000,000	 25,000,000
Financial guarantee contracts
  in relation to corporate
  guarantee given to a
  subsidiary	 –	 –	 95,346,000	 95,346,000

			   25,131,022	 120,477,022	 120,477,022

2021

Non-derivative
  Financial Liabilities
Other payables and accruals	 –	 11,845	 11,845	 11,845
Amount owing to a director	 –	 41,204	 41,204	 41,204

			   53,049	 53,049	 53,049

38.2	 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

	 The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be able to maintain an 
optimal capital structure so as to support its businesses and maximise shareholders value. To achieve 
this objective, the Group may make adjustments to the capital structure in view of changes in economic 
conditions, such as adjusting the amount of dividend payment, returning of capital to shareholders or 
issuing new shares.

EVD BERHAD 201901045325 (1354655-D)                                                            ANNUAL REPORT 2022110

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Financial Year ended 31 December 2022
(CONTINUED)



38.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

38.2	 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

	 The Group manages its capital based on debt-to-equity ratio that complies with debt covenants and 
regulatory, if any. The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. The Group 
includes within net debt, loans and borrowings from financial institutions less fixed deposits with 
licensed and banks and cash and bank balances. Capital includes equity attributable to the owners 
of the parent and non-controlling interest. The debt-to-equity ratio of the Group at the end of the 
reporting period was as follows:-

						      The Group
						      2022
						      RM
					   
Hire purchase payables					     533,139
Invoice financing					     11,019,376
Bankers’ acceptance					     2,207,420
Bank overdraft					     16,715

						      13,776,650
Less:-					   
Fixed deposits with licensed banks	 	 	 	 (28,343,294)
Cash and bank balances					     (20,257,478)

Net cash					     (34,824,122)

Total equity					     128,026,210

Debt-to-equity ratio					     NA

	 There was no change in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial period.

	 The Group is also required to comply with certain loan covenants as disclosed in Note 23(b) to the 
financial statements, failing which, the banks may call an event of default. The Group has complied 
with this requirement.
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38.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

38.3	 CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
			   RM	 RM	 RM

Financial Assets	 				  
					   
Amortised Cost					   
Trade receivables			   44,498,204	 –	 –
Other receivables			   582,378	 –	 –
Amount owing by a subsidiary		  –	 6,000,000	 –
Fixed deposits with licensed banks	 	 28,343,294	 5,052,921	 –
Cash and bank balances			   20,257,478	 3,260,281	 ^

				    93,681,354	 14,313,202	 ^

Financial Liabilities
					   
Amortised cost					   
Trade payables			   66,754,967	 –	 –
Other payables and accruals			  5,083,402	 131,022	 11,845
Amount owing to a director			   –	 –	 41,204
Amount owing to a subsidiary		  –	 25,000,000	 –
Hire purchase payables			   533,139	 –	 –
Invoice financing			   11,019,376	 –	 –
Bankers’ acceptance			   2,207,420	 –	 –
Bank overdraft			   16,715	 –	 –

				    85,615,019	 25,131,022	 53,049

^ - Represents amount of RM0.40.

38.4	 GAINS OR LOSSES ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

	 The Group	 The Company
			   2022	 2022	 2021
			   RM	 RM	 RM

Financial Assets	 				  
					   
Amortised Cost					   
Net gains recognised in profit or loss		  728,877	 76,385	 –

Financial Liabilities					   
					   
Amortised cost					   
Net losses recognised in profit or loss		  (985,220)	 –	 –
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38.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

38.5	 FAIR VALUE INFORMATION

	 At the end of the reporting period, there were no financial instruments carried at fair values in the 
statement of financial position.

	 The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company which 
are maturing within the next 12 months approximated their carrying amounts due to the relatively 
short-term maturity of the financial instruments or repayable on demand terms. 

39.	 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(a)	 On 19 December 2019, the Company entered into the conditional share sale agreement with ICB and 
EV-Dynamic Sdn. Bhd. (“EV-Dynamic”) pertaining to the acquisition of 5,000,000 ordinary shares in 
EVE at the purchase consideration of RM108 million.

	 The acquisition has been completed on 27 April 2022 and the EVE became a wholly-owned subsidiary 
of the Company.

(b)	 On 30 March 2021, the Company entered into the share sale agreement (“EV-Dynamic SSA”) with 
ICB and the Vendor pertaining to the acquisition of 10,000,000 ordinary shares in EV-Dynamic at the 
purchase consideration of RM1.

	 The acquisition has been completed on 27 April 2022 and the EV-Dynamic became a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of the Company.

(c)	 The Company has participated in the Regularisation Plan of ICB which has been announced by 
ICB announcement dated 19 December 2019 and its subsequent announcements in relation to the 
Regularisation Plan. Upon the completion of Regularisation Plan, the Company issued 130,539,654 
new ordinary shares, 87,026,436 new warrants and 174,052,872 new RCPS in exchange for all the 
securities of ICB. Following to this, ICB became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

	 On 30 June 2022, the Company has completed the acquisition of 100% equity interest in ICB through 
regularisation plan. The completion of the acquisition has enabled the Company being listed and 
quoted on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad from 1 July 2022.

40.	 SIGNIFICANT EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

	 On 27 March 2023, the Company has proposed a special issue of up to 132,323,000 new ordinary shares of 
the Company to Bumiputera investors to be identified or approved by the Ministry of International Trade and 
Industry (“Proposed special issue”). The applications had been submitted on 20 April 2023.

41.	 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

	 These are the first set of consolidated financial statements prepared by the Group. Hence, no comparative 
figures are presented.
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ANALYSIS OF
SHAREHOLDINGS
As at 31st March 2023

Class of Shares	 :	 Ordinary shares
Number of shares	 :	 407,940,836
No. of Shareholders	 :	 1,762
Voting Rights	 :	 One (1) vote for each ordinary share held.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Size of Holdings		  No. of Holders	 %	 No. of Shares	 %

1 – 99		  421	 23.89	 6,878	 0.000
100 – 1,000		  299	 16.97	 171,306	 0.040
1,001 – 10,000		  509	 28.89	 2,285,953	 0.56
10,001 – 100,000		  363	 20.60	 13,963,170	 3.42
100,001 – 20,397,040*		  168	 9.53	 164,513,527	 40.33
20,397,040 and above**		  2	 0.11	 227,000,002	 55.65

Total		  1,762	 100.000	 407,940,836	 100.000

Remarks
*	 -	 Less than 5% of issued shares
**	 -	 5% and above of issued shares

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Substantial Shareholders

Direct Interest Indirect Interest

No. of
Shares held % held

No. of
Shares held % held

Mah Seong Huak 113,500,001 27.82 17,000,0001 4.17

Ir. Gan Wee Peng 113,500,001 27.82 8,000,0002 1.96

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

Directors

Direct Interest Indirect Interest

No. of
Shares held % held

No. of
Shares held % held

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad Bin
Syed Abdul Kadir

– – – –

Mah Seong Huak 113,500,001 27.82 17,000,0001 4.17

Ir. Gan Wee Peng 113,500,001 27.82 8,000,0002 1.96

Chui Mee Chuen – – – –

Ir. Hon Hin See – – – –

Notes:
1	 Deemed interested by virtue of his interest in Vistacove Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016
2	 Deemed interested by virtue of his interest in GWP Ventures Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 

2016
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
As at 31st March 2023 (CONTINUED)

THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

No. Shareholders
No. of

Shares held % held

1 GAN WEE PENG 113,500,001 27.82

2 MAH SEONG HUAK 113,500,001 27.82

3 VISTACOVE SDN BHD 17,000,000 4.17

4 TOO TIAN JEN 15,196,000 3.73

5 YAU MING TECK 12,477,344 3.06

6 DAVID TAN CHAO HSIUNG 9,874,800 2.42

7 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR DANIEL BOO HUI SIONG

8,044,566 1.97

8 GWP VENTURES SDN BHD 8,000,000 1.96

9 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR CHANG SENG KOOI (KPG/KAF)

7,140,000 1.75

10 TOH YAN TAI 5,815,000 1.43

11 LIEW KHEK KONG 3,810,000 0.93

12 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
TAN SUN PING

3,610,000 0.88

13 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
CIMB FOR DANIEL BOO HUI SIONG (PB)

3,000,000 0.74

14 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
CIMB FOR YAP AH TECK (PB)

2,215,200 0.54

15 ONG PECK GIOK 2,164,000 0.53

16 KOAY XING BOON 2,000,000 0.49

17 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
WONG CHOY KIM

1,753,350 0.43

18 OOI SOO CHIN 1,670,000 0.41

19 ALLIANCE GROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR POH WEI LIANG (7012615)

1,599,300 0.39

20 YONG YOCK LIN 1,363,400 0.33

21 YEW AH CHAI 1,290,000 0.32

22 POH CHUAN SWEE 1,270,000 0.31

23 TAN YOKE SUM 1,200,210 0.29

24 CHIN KOK YOU 1,154,580 0.28

25 LIEW SENG CHIONG 1,152,100 0.28

26 TAN BEE LEAN 1,147,590 0.28

27 QUAH TEIK JIN 1,127,256 0.28

28 GRACE HOW PEI YEN 1,119,380 0.27

29 TOH WAH CHONG 1,112,500 0.27

30 OOI SOO ONG 1,050,000 0.26

TOTAL 345,356,578 84.66
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ANALYSIS OF REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE
PREFERENCE SHARES (“RCPS”)
As at 31st March 2023

Class of Securities	 :	 Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares
Number of RCPS	 :	 2,476,523,792
No. of RCPS Holders	 :	 326
Issue Date	 :	 01.07.2022
Maturity Date 	 :	 26.04.2032
Voting rights	 :	 The RCPS shall carry no right to vote at any general meeting of the Company except 

where permitted under law. Subject to applicable laws, the RCPS holder shall have 
the right to attend and vote at any general meeting convened for the purposes of 
sanctioning:-

	 (i)	 a proposal to reduce the capital of the Company;
	 (ii)	 a proposal for the disposal of the whole of the Company’s property, business 

and undertaking;
	 (iii)	 a proposal or resolution which affects the rights and privileges attached to the 

Company’s RCPS;
	 (iv)	 a proposal to wind-up the Company; and
	 (v)	 during the winding-up of the Company.

	 In such cases, the RCPS holder shall be entitled to vote together with the holders 
of ordinary shares and to one (1) vote for each RCPS held.

DISTRIBUTIONS OF RCPS HOLDINGS

Size of Holdings		  No. of Holders	 %	 No. of RCPS	 %

1 – 99		  8	 2.45	 412	 0.00
100 – 1,000		  18	 5.52	 8,444	 0.00
1,001 – 10,000		  63	 19.33	 335,596	 0.01
10,001 – 100,000		  130	 39.88	 5,234,088	 0.21
100, 001 – 123,826,188*		  105	 32.21	 312,945,252	 12.64
123,826,189 and above**		  2	 0.61	 2,158,000,000	 87.14

Total		  328	 100.000	 2,476,523,792	 100.000

Remarks
*	 -	 Less than 5% of issued warrants
**	 -	 5% and above of issued warrants

SUBSTANTIAL RCPS HOLDERS

Directors

Direct Interest Indirect Interest

No. of
RCPS held % held

No. of
RCPS held % held

Mah Seong Huak 1,079,000,000 43.57 98,000,0001 3.96

Ir. Gan Wee Peng 1,079,000,000 43.57 72,000,0002 2.91
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ANALYSIS OF REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES (“RCPS”)
As at 31st March 2023 (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ RCPS SHAREHOLDINGS

Directors

Direct Interest Indirect Interest

No. of
RCPS held % held

No. of
RCPS held % held

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad Bin
Syed Abdul Kadir

– – – –

Mah Seong Huak 1,079,000,000 43.57 98,000,0001 3.96

Ir. Gan Wee Peng 1,079,000,000 43.57 72,000,0002 2.91

Chui Mee Chuen – – – –

Ir. Hon Hin See – – – –

Notes:
1	 Deemed interested by virtue of his interest in Vistacove Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016
2	 Deemed interested by virtue of his interest in GWP Ventures Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 

2016

THIRTY (30) LARGEST RCPS HOLDERS

No. RCPS Holders
No. of

RCPS held % held

1 GAN WEE PENG 1,079,000,000 43.57

2 MAH SEONG HUAK 1,079,000,000 43.57

3 VISTACOVE SDN BHD 98,000,000 3.96

4 GWP VENTURES SDN BHD 72,000,000 2.91

5 YAU MING TECK 17,268,000 0.70

6 TOO TIAN JEN 15,984,328 0.65

7 DAVID TAN CHAO HSIUNG 13,709,900 0.55

8 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR DANIEL BOO HUI SIONG

10,726,088 0.43

9 ALLIANCE GROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR POH WEI LIANG (7012615)

6,000,000 0.24

10 LIEW KHEK KONG 5,100,000 0.21

11 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
TAN SUN PING

4,770,000 0.19

12 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
MAGDALENE SIAW SIEW MEI

4,626,500 0.19

13 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITES ACCOUNT FOR HANG SENG KOOI (KPG/KAF)

4,350,000 0.18

14 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
CIMB FOR DANIEL BOO HUI SIONG (PB)

4,000,000 0.16

15 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
WONG CHOY KIM

3,121,600 0.13

16 YEW AH CHAI 2,519,600 0.10

17 GEOFFREY LIM FUNG KEONG 2,228,500 0.09
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THIRTY (30) LARGEST RCPS HOLDERS (Cont’d)

No. RCPS Holders
No. of

RCPS held % held

18 FOO KOK BOON 2,076,700 0.08

19 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TEH PET HAN

2,000,000 0.08

20 SOR EN WEE 2,000,000 0.08

21 TSANG KIAN HOE 2,000,000 0.08

22 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
CIMB FOR YAP AH TECK (PB)

1,964,000 0.08

23 GRACE HOW PEI YEN 1,622,840 0.07

24 TAN YOKE SUM 1,600,280 0.06

25 CHIN KOK YOU 1,539,440 0.06

26 POR TEONG ENG 1,454,200 0.06

27 ONG KENG SENG 1,429,000 0.06

28 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ROHAN RAMESH JASANI

1,184,400 0.05

29 IFAST INVESTMENT (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
YAP AH TECK

1,151,400 0.05

30 CHYE AO HSIANG 1,088,100 0.04

TOTAL 2,443,514,876 98.67

ANALYSIS OF REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES (“RCPS”)
As at 31st March 2023 (CONTINUED)
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Type of securities	 :	 Warrants B
Number of outstanding Warrants	 :	 86,474,336
No. of Warrants holders	 :	 399
Issue date	 :	 01.07.2022
Maturity date	 :	 16.06.2029
Voting rights	 :	 The Warrants do not entitle the registered holders thereof to any voting 

rights in any general meeting of the Company or to participate in any 
distribution and/or offer of further securities in the Company unless the 
Warrant holder becomes a shareholder by exercising his/her Warrants.

DISTRIBUTIONS OF WARRANTS B HOLDINGS

		  No. of		  No. of
Size of Holdings		  Holders	 %	 Warrants	 %

1 – 99		  16	 4.01	 1,229	 0.00
100 – 1,000		  30	 7.52	 15,717	 0.02
1,001 – 10,000		  107	 26.82	 616,487	 0.71
10,001 – 100,000		  158	 39.60	 6,274,539	 7.26
100, 001 – 4,323,715*		  83	 20.80	 41,734,376	 48.26
4,323,715 and above**		  5	 1.25	 37,831,988	 43.75

Total		  399	 100.000	 86,474,336	 100.000

Remarks
*	 -	 Less than 5% of issued warrants
**	 -	 5% and above of issued warrants

DIRECTORS’ WARRANTS B SHAREHOLDINGS 

Directors

Direct Interest Indirect Interest

No. of
Warrants held % held

No. of
Warrants held % held

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad Bin
Syed Abdul Kadir

– – – –

Mah Seong Huak – – – –

Ir. Gan Wee Peng – – – –

Chui Mee Chuen – – – –

Ir. Hon Hin See – – – –

ANALYSIS OF
WARRANTS B HOLDINGS

As at 31st March 2023
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THIRTY (30) LARGEST WARRANTS B HOLDERS

No. Warrants Holders

No. of 
Warrants 

held % held

1 TOO TIAN JEN 9,882,900 11.43

2 YAU MING TECK 8,560,344 9.90

3 TOH YAN TAI 7,250,900 8.39

4 DAVID TAN CHAO HSIUNG 6,774,800 7.83

5 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR DANIEL BOO HUI SIONG

5,363,044 6.20

6 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
TAN SUN PING

3,547,900 4.10

7 LIEW KHEK KONG 2,700,000 3.12

8 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR CHANG SENG KOOI (KPG/KAF)

2,230,000 2.58

9 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
CIMB FOR DANIEL BOO HUI SIONG (PB)

2,000,000 2.31

10 ONG PECK GIOK 1,792,900 2.07

11 TOH WAH CHONG 1,763,500 2.04

12 ALLIANCE GROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR POH WEI LIANG (7012615)

1,671,800 1.93

13 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
WONG CHOY KIM

1,388,900 1.61

14 YAP CHIN CHOY 1,097,000 1.27

15 YONG YOCK LIN 1,072,000 1.24

16 CHIN CHUN TING 1,000,000 1.16

17 LIM KIM CHOO 1,000,000 1.16

18 TSANG KIAN HOE 1,000,000 1.16

19 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
CIMB FOR YAP AH TECK (PB)

920,000 1.06

20 FOO KOK BOON 915,000 1.06

21 TAN YOKE SUM 800,140 0.93

22 CHIN KOK YOU 769,720 0.89

23 GRACE HOW PEI YEN 738,920 0.85

24 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ROHAN RAMESH JASANI

520,900 0.60

25 ALLIANCE GROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LEE SING GEE (7010182)

520,000 0.60

26 LOH KOK LEONG 504,800 0.58

27 CHYE AO HSIANG 503,600 0.58

28 CHING SEEK FUI 454,564 0.53

29 LEE TEIK AUN 400,000 0.46

30 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LOO TAW WONG (E-BPJ)

395,400 0.46

TOTAL 67,539,032 78.10

ANALYSIS OF WARRANTS B HOLDINGS
As at 31st March 2023 (CONTINUED)
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NOTICE OF THIRD
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Third Annual General Meeting (“3rd AGM”) of the Company will be held 
virtually to transact the following businesses as follows:

Day and Date : 21 June 2023

Time : 10.00 a.m.

Online Meeting Platform : Securities Services e-Portal (“SS e-Portal”) at https://sshsb.net.my/ 
provided by SS E Solutions Sdn. Bhd.

Main & Broadcast Venue : Meeting Room, Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn. Bhd., Level 7, Menara 
Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara 
Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur

A G E N D A

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 
31 December 2022 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors 
thereon.

2.	 To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees up to an amount of RM350,000.00 
made payable to the Directors for the period from 1st January 2023 to the next 
Annual General Meeting.

3.	 To approve the payment of Directors’ Benefits up to an amount of RM50,000.00 
for the period from the 3rd AGM to the next Annual General Meeting.

4.	 To re-elect Ms Chui Mee Chuen who is retiring by rotation in accordance with 
Clause 115 of the Constitution of the Company.

5.	 To re-elect Ir Hon Hin See who is retiring in accordance with Clause 110 of the 
Constitution of the Company.

6.	 To re-appoint Messrs Crowe Malaysia PLT as Auditors of the Company and to 
authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

(Please refer to
Explanatory Note 1)

Ordinary Resolution 1
(Please refer to

Explanatory Note 2)

Ordinary Resolution 2
(Please refer to

Explanatory Note 2)

Ordinary Resolution 3
(Please refer to

Explanatory Note 3)

Ordinary Resolution 4
(Please refer to

Explanatory Note 3)

Ordinary Resolution 5
(Please refer to

Explanatory Note 4)
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AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, with or without 
modifications:

7.	 ORDINARY RESOLUTION 
	 AUTHORITY TO ISSUE AND ALLOT SHARES PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 

75 AND 76 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016 

	 “THAT contingent upon the passing of the Special Resolution on waiver of 
pre-emptive rights pursuant to Section 85 of the Companies Act 2016 (“the 
Act”) and subject always to the Act, the Constitution of the Company, the ACE 
Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa 
Securities”) and the approvals of the relevant governmental/regulatory 
authorities, the Directors be and are hereby empowered, pursuant to Sections 
75 and 76 of the Act, to allot shares in the Company (“Shares”) from time to 
time at such price, upon such terms and conditions, and for such purposes 
as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit provided that the 
aggregate number of Shares issued pursuant to this Ordinary Resolution does 
not exceed 10% of the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury 
shares) of the Company for the time being AND THAT the Directors be and are 
also empowered to obtain the approval from Bursa Securities for the listing of 
and quotation for the additional Shares to be issued on the Bursa Securities 
AND FURTHER THAT such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion 
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Ordinary Resolution 6
(Please refer to

Explanatory Note 5)

	 THAT such approval shall continue to be in force until: 

(a) 	 the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company held 
after the approval was given; 

(b) 	 the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting 
of the Company is required to be held after the approval was given; or 

(c) 	 revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders of the 
Company in a general meeting, 

	 whichever is the earlier. 

	 THAT pursuant to Section 85 of the Companies Act, read together Clause 12(3) 
of the Constitution of the Company, approval be and is hereby given to waive 
the statutory pre-emptive rights of the shareholders of the Company to be 
offered new Shares ranking equally to the existing issued Shares arising from 
issuance of new Shares pursuant to this general mandate. THAT the Directors 
of the Company be and are hereby also empowered to obtain the approval 
from Bursa Securities for the listing of and quotation for such new Shares on 
the ACE Market of Bursa Securities. 

	 AND THAT authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company, to 
give effect to this general mandate with full powers to assent to any conditions, 
modifications, variations and/or amendments as they may deem fit in the best 
interest of the Company and/or as may be imposed by the relevant authorities.

8.	 To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given in 
accordance with the Companies Act, 2016.

NOTICE OF THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(CONTINUED)
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By Order of the Board

WONG SIEW YEEN (MAICSA 7018749) (SSM PC No. 202008001471)
CHONG LAY KIM (LS0008373) (SSM PC No. 202008001920)
Company Secretaries

Kuala Lumpur
28 April 2023

NOTES:

(i)	 APPOINTMENT OF PROXY

1. 	 The 3rd AGM will be conducted virtually through live streaming and online remote voting using the 
Remote Participation and Voting (“RPV”) facilities to be provided by SS E-Solutions Sdn. Bhd. via 
Securities Services e-Portal (“SS e-Portal”) at https://sshsb.net.my/. Please follow the procedures 
provided in the Administrative Guide for the 3rd AGM in order to register, participate and vote remotely 
via the RPV facilities. 

2. 	 The Main & Broadcast Venue is strictly for the purpose of complying with Section 327(2) of the Act 
and the Constitution which require the Chairman of the Meeting to be present at the main venue of 
the Meeting. Members, proxies and/or corporate representatives will not be allowed to be physically 
present at the Main & Broadcast Venue on the day of the 3rd AGM. 

3. 	 In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as 
at 12 June 2023 shall be eligible to participate in the 3rd AGM. 

4. 	 A member entitled to participate and vote at the 3rd AGM is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) 
proxies to participate and vote in his/her stead. A proxy may but does not need to be a member of the 
Company. Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he/she 
specifies the proportions of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy. A proxy appointed 
to participate and vote at the 3rd AGM shall have the same rights as the member to participate, speak 
and vote at the 3rd AGM. Notwithstanding this, a member entitled to participate and vote at the 3rd 
AGM is entitled to appoint any person as his/her proxy to participate and vote instead of the member 
at the 3rd AGM. There shall be no restriction as to the qualifications of the proxy. 

	
	 The members, proxies or corporate representatives may submit questions before the 3rd AGM to the 

Chairman or the Board electronically by email to eservices@sshsb.com.my no later than Monday, 
20 June 2023 at 10.00 a.m. or via real time submission of typed texts through a text box within SS 
e-Portal at https://sshsb.net.my/ before the start or during live streaming of the 3rd AGM as the primary 
mode of communication. 

5. 	 In the case of a corporate member, the instrument appointing a proxy must be either under its common 
seal or under the hand of its officer or attorney duly authorised. 

6.	 Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in 
the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“Omnibus Account”), there is no 
limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each 
Omnibus Account it holds. Where an exempt authorised nominee appoints more than one (1) proxy to 
participate and vote at the 3rd AGM, the proportion of shareholdings to be represented by each proxy 
must be specified in the instrument appointing of the proxies, failing which, the appointment shall be 
invalid. 

7. 	 Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry 
(Central Depositories) Act 1991, it shall not be entitled to appoint more than two (2) proxies to participate 
and vote at a general meeting instead of him/her. Where an authorised nominee appoints two (2) proxies 
to participate and vote at the 3rd AGM, the proportion of shareholdings to be represented by each 
proxy must be specified in the instrument appointing of the proxies, failing which, the appointment 
shall be invalid. 
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8. 	 The instrument appointing a proxy may be made via hardcopy or by electronic means in the following 
manner and must be received by the Company no later than Monday, 19 June 2023 at 10.00 a.m. or 
at any adjournment thereof:

(i) 	 In Hardcopy Form
	 The Form of Proxy must be deposited at the Company’s Share Registrar office at Level 7, 

Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 
Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan, Malaysia. 

(ii)	 By Electronic Means
	 The Form of Proxy must be electronically lodged via SS e-Portal at https://sshsb.net.my/ or by 

fax to +603-2094 9940 or by email to eservices@sshsb.com.my.

(ii)	 EXPLANATORY NOTES

1.	 Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 

	 This item is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 340(1)(a) of the Act does not require a 
formal approval from the shareholders for the Audited Financial Statements. Hence, this item on the Agenda 
is not put forward for voting. 

2.	 Ordinary Resolutions 1 and 2 – Payment of Directors’ Fees and Directors’ Benefits 

	 Pursuant to Section 230(1) of the Act, the fees of the directors and any benefits payable to the directors shall 
be approved at a general meeting

	 The proposed Directors’ Fees and Directors’ Benefits will be paid upon shareholders’ approval at the 
forthcoming AGM. In the event the proposed amount is insufficient, due to enlarged Board size or more 
meetings, shareholders’ approval will be sought for the shortfall.

3.	 Ordinary Resolutions 3 and 4 – Re-election of Directors 

	 Ms Chui Mee Chuen and Ir Hon Hin See are standing for re-election as Directors of the Company and being 
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the 3rd AGM. The profiles of both Directors are set out on 
pages 13 to 14 of the 2022 Annual Report.

	 The Board has through the Nomination Committee, reviewed and agreed that the aforesaid Directors meet 
the criteria as prescribed by Rule 2.20A of the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities on character, 
experience, integrity, competence and time to effectively discharge their roles as Directors. All of them have 
also met the relevant requirements under the fit and proper assessment. 

	 The aforesaid Directors have abstained from deliberations and decision on their own eligibility and suitability 
to stand for re-election at the relevant Board meetings. 

4.	 Ordinary Resolution 5 – Re-appointment of Auditors
	
	 The Audit Committee (“AC”) had assessed the suitability and independence of the External Auditors and 

recommended the re-appointment of Crowe Malaysia PLT as External Auditors of the Company. 

	 The Board has in turn reviewed the recommendation of the AC and recommended the same to be tabled to 
the shareholders for approval at the 3rd AGM. 

5.	 Ordinary Resolution 6 - Authority to issue and allot shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Act 

	 The proposed ordinary resolution, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to issue and allot 
new Shares from time to time and grant rights to subscribe for Shares, or allot Shares under an agreement 
or option or offer, provided that the aggregate number of such Shares allotted pursuant to this resolution 
does not exceed 10% of the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares) for the time being 
(“Proposed General Mandate”). 
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	 The authority for the Proposed General Mandate will, unless revoked or varied by the Company in a general 
meeting, expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) or the expiration of the period 
within which the next AGM is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier. 

	 The waiver of the statutory pre-emptive rights will allow the Directors of the Company to issue new Shares 
which rank equally to the existing issued Shares, to any person without having to offer the new Shares to all 
existing shareholders of the Company prior to issuance of new Shares in the Company under the Proposed 
General Mandate.

	 This proposed resolution is a renewal of the previous year’s mandate. The mandate is to provide flexibility 
to the Company to issue new securities without the need to convene separate general meeting to obtain 
its shareholders’ approval so as to avoid incurring additional costs and time. By voting in favour of the 
Proposed General Mandate, the shareholders of the Company would be waiving their statutory preemptive 
right. The Proposed General Mandate, if passed, will enable the Directors to take swift action in case of a 
need to issue and allot new Shares to any person under the Proposed General Mandate without having to 
offer the new Shares to be issued equally to all existing shareholders of the Company prior to issuance, 
for fund raising exercise including but not limited to further placement of Shares for purpose of funding 
current and/or future investment projects, working capital, acquisitions and/or for issuance of Shares as 
settlement of purchase consideration, or other circumstances arise which involve grant of rights to subscribe 
for Shares, or allotment of shares under an agreement or option or offer, or such other application as the 
Directors may deem fit in the best interest of the Company. 

	 As at the date of this notice, the Company did not implement its proposal for new allotment of Shares under 
the general mandate pursuant to Section 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016 which was approved by 
shareholders at the 2nd AGM held on 30 June 2021 and lapse at the conclusion of the 3rd AGM to be held 
on 21 June 2023. As at the date of this notice, there is no decision to issue new Shares. Should there be a 
decision to issue new Shares after the general mandate is sought, the Company will make an announcement 
of the actual purpose and utilisation of proceeds arising from such issuance of Shares.

2022 ANNUAL REPORT

Should you require a printed copy of the 2022 Annual Report, kindly request through the telephone or email to our 
Company’s Share Registrar, Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn Bhd, at 603 - 2084 9000 or email address at info@
sshsb.com.my or via our Share Registrar’s website by following the simple steps below:

Step 1 - Visit https://www.sshsb.com.my/new/requestarep.aspx 

Step 2 - Type “EVD BERHAD” under “Company Name” and complete the online request form.

Step 3 - Click “Send” button to submit your request.

The printed copy of the 2022 Annual Report shall be provided to the shareholders within four (4) market days from 
the date of receipt of their written request.

PERSONAL DATA PRIVACY:

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to participate at the Annual General 
Meeting and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and 
disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and 
administration by the Company (or its agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for the Annual General 
Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes 
and other documents relating to the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof), and in order 
for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines 
(collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) warrants that where the member discloses the personal data of the member’s 
proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent of 
such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of 
the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the member will 
indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result 
of the member’s breach of warranty. 
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(A) Sign up for a user account at Securities Services e-Portal 
 

Only if you are not an existing registered user 
 

 (C) Submit e-Proxy Form 
 

Where you wish to appoint proxy(ies) to participate 
remotely on your behalf (you may also submit the hard 
copy Proxy Form) 

(B) Register for Remote Participation 
 

Where you wish to participate remotely at the 
meeting 

ON THE DAY OF THE MEETING 
 

(E) Vote Online Remotely during the 
Meeting (eVoting) 

(B)  

                                                                                           ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDE    

 SECURITIES SERVICES e-PORTAL 
 
WHAT IS Securities Services e-Portal? 
 
Securities Services e-Portal is an online platform that will allow both individual shareholders and body corporate shareholders 
through their appointed representatives, to - 
 Submit proxy form electronically – paperless submission 
 Register for remote participation and voting at meetings 
 Participate in meetings remotely via live streaming   
 Vote online remotely on resolution(s) tabled at meetings  
(referred to as “e-Services”) 
 
The usage of the e-Portal is dependent on the engagement of the relevant e-Services by EVD Berhad and is by no means a 
guarantee of availability of use, unless we are so engaged to provide. All users are to read, agree and abide to all the Terms and 
Conditions of Use and Privacy Policy as required throughout the e-Portal. 
 
Please note that the e-Portal is best viewed on the latest versions of Chrome, Firefox, Edge and Safari. 
 
REQUIRE ASSISTANCE? 
Please contact Mr. Wong Piang Yoong (DID: +603 2084 9168) or Ms. Lee Pei Yeng (DID: +603 2084 9169) or Ms. Rachel Ou (DID: 
+603 2084 9161) or our general line (DID: +603 2084 9000) to request for e-Services Assistance during our office hours on Monday 
to Friday from 8:30 a.m. to 12:15 p.m. and from 1:15 p.m. to 5:30 p.m. Alternatively, you may email us at eservices@sshsb.com.my. 
 
 

BEFORE THE MEETING 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

        

OR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    AND 

 

 

 

(D) Join the Live Stream Meeting (eLive) 
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(A) Sign up for a user account at Securities Services e-Portal 
Step 1 Visit https://sshsb.net.my/ 
Step 2 Sign up for a user account  
Step 3 Wait for our notification email that will be sent within 

one (1) working day 
Step 4 Verify your user account within seven (7) days of the 

notification email and log in 

 This is a ONE-TIME registration. If you already have a user 
account, you need not register again.  

 Your email address is your User ID. 
 Please proceed to either (B) or (C) below once you are a 

registered user. 
 

ALL SHAREHOLDERS MUST REGISTER AS A USER BY 15 JUNE 2023 

(B) Register for Remote Participation 
Meeting Date and Time Registration for Remote Participation 

Closing Date and Time 

Wednesday, 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. Monday, 19 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. 
 

 Log in to https://sshsb.net.my/  with your registered email and password. 
 Look for EVD Berhad under Company Name and 3rd AGM on 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. – Registration for Remote 

Participation under Corporate Exercise / Event and click “>” to register for remote participation at the meeting. 
 

 

Step 1  Check if you are attending as – 
 Individual shareholder 
 Corporate or authorised representative of a body corporate 

For body corporates, the appointed corporate/authorised representative has to upload the evidence of authority 
(e.g. Certificate of Appointment of Corporate Representative, Power of Attorney, letter of authority or other 
documents proving authority). All documents that are not in English or Bahasa Malaysia have to be accompanied 
by a certified translation in English in 1 file. The original evidence of authority and translation thereof, if required, 
have to be submitted to the Share Registrar, Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn Bhd at Level 7, Menara Milenium, 
Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan for 
verification before the registration closing date and time above. 

Step 2   Submit your registration. 
 

 

 A copy of your e-Registration for remote participation can be accessed via My Records (refer to the left navigation panel). 
 Your registration will apply to all the CDS account(s) of each individual shareholder / body corporate shareholder that you 

represent. If you are both an individual shareholder and representative of body corporate(s), you need to register as an 
individual and also as a representative for each body corporate. 

 As the meeting will be conducted virtually and only the Chairman and other essential individuals will be present at the 
broadcast venue, we highly encourage all shareholders to remotely participate and vote at the meeting, failing which, please 
appoint the Chairman of the meeting as proxy or your own proxy(ies) to represent you. 
 

(C) Submit e-Proxy Form 
Meeting Date and Time Proxy Form Submission Closing Date and Time 

Wednesday, 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. Monday, 19 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. 

 Log in to https://sshsb.net.my/  with your registered email and password. 
 Look for EVD Berhad under Company Name and 3rd AGM on 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. – Submission of Proxy Form 

under Corporate Exercise / Event and click “>” to submit your proxy forms online for the meeting by the submission 
closing date and time above. 

Step 1 Check if you are submitting the proxy form as – 
 Individual shareholder 
 Corporate or authorised representative of a body corporate 

For body corporates, the appointed corporate/authorised representative is to upload the evidence of authority (e.g. 
Certificate of Appointment of Corporate Representative, Power of Attorney, letter of authority or other documents 
proving authority). All documents that are not in English or Bahasa Malaysia have to be accompanied by a certified 
translation in English in 1 file. The original evidence of authority and translation thereof, if required, have to be 
submitted to the Share Registrar, Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn Bhd at Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan 
Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan for 
verification before the proxy form submission closing date and time above. 

BEFORE THE MEETING 
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ON THE DAY OF THE MEETING 

Step 2 Enter your CDS account number or the body corporate’s CDS account number and corresponding number of securities. 
Then enter the information of your proxy(ies) and the securities to be represented by your proxy(ies). 
You may appoint the Chairman of the meeting as your proxy where you are not able to participate remotely. 

Step 3 Proceed to indicate how your votes are to be casted against each resolution. 
Step 4 Review and confirm your proxy form details before submission. 
 
 A copy of your submitted e-Proxy Form can be accessed via My Records (refer to the left navigation panel). 
 You need to submit your e-Proxy Form for every CDS account(s) you have or represent. 

 

PROXIES 
 

All appointed proxies need not register for remote participation under (B) above but if they are not registered Users of the e-
Portal, they will need to register as Users of the e-Portal under (A) above by 15 June 2023. PLEASE NOTIFY YOUR PROXY(IES) 
ACCORDINGLY. Upon processing the proxy forms, we will grant the proxy access to remote participation at the meeting to which 
he/she is appointed for instead of the shareholder, provided the proxy must be a registered user of the e-Portal, failing which, 
the proxy will not be able to participate at the meeting as the meeting will be conducted virtually. 

 

 

 

Log in to https://sshsb.net.my/  with your registered email and password 

(D) Join the Live Stream Meeting (eLive) 
Meeting Date and Time eLive Access Date and Time 

Wednesday, 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. Wednesday, 21 June 2023 at 9:30 a.m. 

 Look for EVD Berhad under Company Name and 3rd AGM on 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. – Live Stream Meeting under 
Corporate Exercise / Event and click “>” to join the meeting. 

 The access to the live stream meeting will open on the abovementioned date and time. 
 If you have any questions to raise, you may use the text box to transmit your question. The Chairman/Board/ 

Management/relevant adviser(s) will endeavour to broadcast your question and their answer during the meeting. Do 
take note that the quality of the live streaming is dependent on the stability of the internet connection at the location 
of the user. 

(E) Vote Online Remotely during the Meeting (eVoting) 
Meeting Date and Time eVoting Access Date and Time 

Wednesday, 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. Wednesday, 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. 

 If you are already accessing the Live Stream Meeting, click Proceed to Vote under the live stream player. 
OR 

 If you are not accessing from the Live Stream Meeting and have just logged in to the e-Portal, look for EVD Berhad under 
Company Name and 3rd AGM on 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. – Remote Voting under Corporate Exercise / Event and 
click “>” to remotely cast and submit the votes online for the resolutions tabled at the meeting. 

Step 1 Cast your votes by clicking on the radio buttons against each resolution. 
Step 2 Review your casted votes and confirm and submit the votes. 

 
 The access to eVoting will open on the abovementioned date and time.  
 Your votes casted will apply throughout all the CDS accounts you represent as an individual shareholder, corporate / 

authorised representative and proxy. Where you are attending as a proxy, and the shareholder who appointed you has 
indicated how the votes are to be casted, we will take the shareholder's indicated votes in the proxy form. 

 The access to eVoting will close as directed by the Chairman of the meeting. 
 A copy of your submitted e-Voting can be accessed via My Records (refer to the left navigation panel). 
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ON THE DAY OF THE MEETING 

Step 2 Enter your CDS account number or the body corporate’s CDS account number and corresponding number of securities. 
Then enter the information of your proxy(ies) and the securities to be represented by your proxy(ies). 
You may appoint the Chairman of the meeting as your proxy where you are not able to participate remotely. 

Step 3 Proceed to indicate how your votes are to be casted against each resolution. 
Step 4 Review and confirm your proxy form details before submission. 
 
 A copy of your submitted e-Proxy Form can be accessed via My Records (refer to the left navigation panel). 
 You need to submit your e-Proxy Form for every CDS account(s) you have or represent. 

 

PROXIES 
 

All appointed proxies need not register for remote participation under (B) above but if they are not registered Users of the e-
Portal, they will need to register as Users of the e-Portal under (A) above by 15 June 2023. PLEASE NOTIFY YOUR PROXY(IES) 
ACCORDINGLY. Upon processing the proxy forms, we will grant the proxy access to remote participation at the meeting to which 
he/she is appointed for instead of the shareholder, provided the proxy must be a registered user of the e-Portal, failing which, 
the proxy will not be able to participate at the meeting as the meeting will be conducted virtually. 

 

 

 

Log in to https://sshsb.net.my/  with your registered email and password 

(D) Join the Live Stream Meeting (eLive) 
Meeting Date and Time eLive Access Date and Time 

Wednesday, 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. Wednesday, 21 June 2023 at 9:30 a.m. 

 Look for EVD Berhad under Company Name and 3rd AGM on 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. – Live Stream Meeting under 
Corporate Exercise / Event and click “>” to join the meeting. 

 The access to the live stream meeting will open on the abovementioned date and time. 
 If you have any questions to raise, you may use the text box to transmit your question. The Chairman/Board/ 

Management/relevant adviser(s) will endeavour to broadcast your question and their answer during the meeting. Do 
take note that the quality of the live streaming is dependent on the stability of the internet connection at the location 
of the user. 

(E) Vote Online Remotely during the Meeting (eVoting) 
Meeting Date and Time eVoting Access Date and Time 

Wednesday, 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. Wednesday, 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. 

 If you are already accessing the Live Stream Meeting, click Proceed to Vote under the live stream player. 
OR 

 If you are not accessing from the Live Stream Meeting and have just logged in to the e-Portal, look for EVD Berhad under 
Company Name and 3rd AGM on 21 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. – Remote Voting under Corporate Exercise / Event and 
click “>” to remotely cast and submit the votes online for the resolutions tabled at the meeting. 

Step 1 Cast your votes by clicking on the radio buttons against each resolution. 
Step 2 Review your casted votes and confirm and submit the votes. 

 
 The access to eVoting will open on the abovementioned date and time.  
 Your votes casted will apply throughout all the CDS accounts you represent as an individual shareholder, corporate / 

authorised representative and proxy. Where you are attending as a proxy, and the shareholder who appointed you has 
indicated how the votes are to be casted, we will take the shareholder's indicated votes in the proxy form. 

 The access to eVoting will close as directed by the Chairman of the meeting. 
 A copy of your submitted e-Voting can be accessed via My Records (refer to the left navigation panel). 

  

✄

PROXY FORM

I/We_________________________________________________________________________ Tel:_______________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
	 [Full name in block, NRIC/Passport/Company No.]

of_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

being member(s)of EVD BERHAD (“EVD”), hereby appoint:

Full Name (in Block) NRIC/ Passport No. Proportion of Shareholdings

No. of Shares %

Address

Email Address:

and/ or*(*delete as appropriate)

Full Name (in Block) NRIC/ Passport No. Proportion of Shareholdings

No. of Shares %

Address

Email Address:

or failing him/her, the CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Third Annual 
General Meeting (“3rd AGM”) of the Company that will be conducted entirely on a virtual basis through the online meeting 
platform of Securities Services e-Portal (“SS e-Portal”) at https://sshsb.net.my/ provided by SS E Solutions Sdn. Bhd. at the 
broadcast venue at Meeting Room, Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn. Bhd., Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, 
Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur on Wednesday, 21st June 2023 at 10:00 a.m. or at 
any adjournment thereof, and to vote as indicated below:

Item Agenda

1 To receive the Directors’ Report, Audited Financial Statements and the 
Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended 31st December 2022.

Item Description of Resolutions Resolutions For Against

2 To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees up to an amount of 
RM350,000.00 made payable to the Directors for the period from 1st 
January 2023 to the next Annual General Meeting.

Ordinary
Resolution 1

3 To approve the payment of Directors’ Benefits up to an amount of 
RM50,000.00 for the period from the 3rd AGM to the next Annual General 
Meeting.

Ordinary
Resolution 2

4 To re-elect Ms Chui Mee Chuen who is retiring by rotation in accordance 
with Clause 115 of the Constitution of the Company.

Ordinary
Resolution 3

5 To re-elect Ir Hon Hin See who is retiring in accordance with Clause 110 of 
the Constitution of the Company.

Ordinary
Resolution 4

6 To re-appoint of Messrs Crowe Malaysia PLT as the Auditors of the 
Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Ordinary
Resolution 5

7 To approve the Authority to Issue and Allot Shares pursuant to Sections 75 
and 76 of the Companies Act 2016.

Ordinary
Resolution 6

Please indicate with an “X” in the space provided whether you wish your votes to be cast for or against the resolutions. In the 
absence of specific direction, your proxy will vote or abstain as he/she thinks fit.

Signed this	 day of

Signature(s) of Member(s) /Common Seal

Registration No. 201901045325 (1354655-D)
(Incorporated in Malaysia

CDS Account No.

No. of Shares held



NOTES:-

(i)	 APPOINTMENT OF PROXY

1. 	 The 3rd AGM will be conducted virtually through live streaming and online remote voting using the Remote 
Participation and Voting (“RPV”) facilities to be provided by SS E-Solutions Sdn. Bhd. via Securities 
Services e-Portal (“SS e-Portal”) at https://sshsb.net.my/. Please follow the procedures provided in the 
Administrative Guide for the 3rd AGM in order to register, participate and vote remotely via the RPV 
facilities. 

2. 	 The Main & Broadcast Venue is strictly for the purpose of complying with Section 327(2) of the Act and the 
Constitution which require the Chairman of the Meeting to be present at the main venue of the Meeting. 
Members, proxies and/or corporate representatives will not be allowed to be physically present at the 
Main & Broadcast Venue on the day of the 3rd AGM. 

3. 	 In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 
12 June 2023 shall be eligible to participate in the 3rd AGM. 

4. 	 A member entitled to participate and vote at the 3rd AGM is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) 
proxies to participate and vote in his/her stead. A proxy may but does not need to be a member of the 
Company. Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he/she 
specifies the proportions of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy. A proxy appointed to 
participate and vote at the 3rd AGM shall have the same rights as the member to participate, speak and 
vote at the 3rd AGM. Notwithstanding this, a member entitled to participate and vote at the 3rd AGM is 
entitled to appoint any person as his/her proxy to participate and vote instead of the member at the 3rd 
AGM. There shall be no restriction as to the qualifications of the proxy. 

	 The members, proxies or corporate representatives may submit questions before the 3rd AGM to the 
Chairman or the Board electronically by email to eservices@sshsb.com.my no later than Monday, 20 
June 2023 at 10.00 a.m. or via real time submission of typed texts through a text box within SS e-Portal 
at https://sshsb.net.my/ before the start or during live streaming of the 3rd AGM as the primary mode of 
communication. 

5. 	 In the case of a corporate member, the instrument appointing a proxy must be either under its common 
seal or under the hand of its officer or attorney duly authorised. 

6.	 Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the 
Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“Omnibus Account”), there is no limit 
to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each Omnibus 
Account it holds. Where an exempt authorised nominee appoints more than one (1) proxy to participate 
and vote at the 3rd AGM, the proportion of shareholdings to be represented by each proxy must be 
specified in the instrument appointing of the proxies, failing which, the appointment shall be invalid. 

7. 	 Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry 
(Central Depositories) Act 1991, it shall not be entitled to appoint more than two (2) proxies to participate 
and vote at a general meeting instead of him/her. Where an authorised nominee appoints two (2) proxies 
to participate and vote at the 3rd AGM, the proportion of shareholdings to be represented by each proxy 
must be specified in the instrument appointing of the proxies, failing which, the appointment shall be 
invalid. 

8. 	 The instrument appointing a proxy may be made via hardcopy or by electronic means in the following 
manner and must be received by the Company no later than Monday, 19 June 2023 at 10.00 a.m.  or at 
any adjournment thereof:

(i) 	 In Hardcopy Form
	 The Form of Proxy must be deposited at the Company’s Share Registrar office at Level 7, Menara 

Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur, 
Wilayah Persekutuan, Malaysia. 

(ii)	 By Electronic Means
	 The Form of Proxy must be electronically lodged via SS e-Portal at https://sshsb.net.my/ or by fax 

to +603-2094 9940 or by email to eservices@sshsb.com.my.

PERSONAL DATA PRIVACY:

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to participate at the Annual General 
Meeting and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure 
of the member’s personal data by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration 
by the Company (or its agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for the Annual General Meeting (including 
any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents 
relating to the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its 
agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”), 
(ii) warrants that where the member discloses the personal data of the member’s proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) 
to the Company (or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) 
for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/
or representative(s) for the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of any 
penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result of the member’s breach of warranty.



EVD BERHAD
c/o Share Registrar
Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn Bhd
Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela,
Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights,
50490 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

AFFIX
STAMP

Fold this flap for sealing

Then fold here

1st fold here
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